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Part]
Item 1.

BUSINESS
GENERAL

Puget Sound Energy, Inc. (the “Company”), is an investor-
owned public utility incorporated in the State of
Washington furnishing electric and gas service in a territo-
Iy covering approximately 6,000 square miles, principally
in the Puget Sound region of Washington state.

At December 31,1998, the Company had approximate-
ly 890,800 electric customers, consisting of 789,800 resi-
dential, 95,300 commercial, 4,200 industrial and 1,500
other customers and approximately 543,900 gas cus-
tomers, consisting of 497,200 residential, 43,600 commer-
cial, 3,000 industrial and 100 other customers. For the year
1998, the Company added approximately 18,900 electric
custorners and approximately 22,600 gas customers, repre-
senting annualized growth rates of 2.2% and 4.3%, respec-
tively. During 1998, the Company’s billed retail revenues
from electric utility operations were derived 45% from res-
idential customers, 36% from commercial customers, 15%
from industrial customers and 4% from other customers,
and the Company's retail revenues from gas utility opera-
tions were derived 61% from residential customers, 28%
from commercial customers, 8% from industrial customers
and 3% from other customers. During this period, the
largest customer accounted for 2.4% of the Company’s util-
ity operating revenues.

The Company is affected by various seasonal weather
patterns throughout the year and, therefore, operating rev-
enues and associated expenses are not generated evenly
during the year. Variations in energy usage by consumers
occur from season to season and from month to month
within a season, primarily as a result of weather condi-
tions. The Company normally experiences its highest ener-
gy sales in the first and fourth quarters of the year. Sales of
electricity to other utilities also vary by quarters and years
depending principally upon streamflow conditions for the
generation of surplus hydro-electric power, customer
usage and the energy requirements of other neighboring
utilities. Earnings from electric operations therefore, since

the discontinuance of the PRAM in 1996 can be significantly

influenced by surplus sales and variations in weather,
hydro conditions and non-firm regional electric energy
prices. Earnings from gas operations can be significantly
influenced by variations in weather. The Company has a
Purchased Gas Adjustment (“PGA”) mechanism in retail
rates to recover variations in gas supply costs. (See
“Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Rate Matters.”)

During the period from January 1, 1994, through
December 31,1998, the Company made gross electric utility
plant additions of $729 million and retirements of $154 mil-
lion. In the five-year period ended December 31, 1998, the
Company made gross gas utility plant additions of
$481 million and retirements of $52 million. Gross electric
utility plant at December 31,1998, was approximately $3.8
billion which consisted of 47% distribution, 25% genera-
tion, 16% transmission and 12% general plant and other.
Gross gas utility plant at December 31, 1998, was approxi-
mately $1.3 billion which consisted of 82% distribution, 5%
transmission and 13% general plant and other.

Atyear-end the Company had 2,996 aggregate full-time
equivalent utility employees.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The electric and gas industries in the United States are
undergoing significant changes. The focus of these
changes is to promote competition among suppliers of
electricity and gas and associated services. In 1996 and
1997, the Federal Energy Regulatory Cornmission (“FERC")
issued orders that require utilities, including the Company,
to file open access transmission tariffs that will make the
utilities’ electric transmission systems available to whole-
sale sellers and buyers on a non-discriminatory basis. A
number of states, including California, have restructured
their electric industries to separate or “unbundle” power
generation, transmission and distribution in order to per-
mit new competitors to enter the market place. In part
because electric rates in the Pacific Northwest have been
among the lowest in the nation, certain of the legislatures
in this region, including Washington, have not yet enacted
laws to provide for competition at the retail level. The
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Washington Commission has initiated a pilot program, in
which the Company participates, that permits consumers
limited direct access to competitive energy suppliers. The
Company is actively monitoring developments in this area
and has indicated its support for the enactment of legisla-
tion that would provide increased choice for electric service
customers in the State of Washington.

In order to position itself to respond effectively to
future restructuring of the utility industry, and in anticipa-
tion of a competitive environment for electric energy sales,
the Company in 1997 organized its utility operations into
separate business units: energy delivery; energy supply
and customer solutions. This reorganization accommo-
dates, if it occurs, legislatively mandated unbundling of
power generation from transmission and distribution
which would allow customers to purchase these services
and commodities individually from different suppliers or,
alternatively, as a complete package.

Since 1986, the Company has been offering gas trans-
portation as a separate service to industrial and commercial
customers who choose to purchase their gas supply directly
from producers and gas marketers. The continued evolution
of the natural gas industry, resulting primarily from FERC
Orders 436, 500 and 636, has served to increase the ability of
large gas end-users to bypass the Company in obtaining gas
supply and transportation services. Although the Company
has not lost any substantial industrial or commercial load
as a result of such bypass, in certain years up to 160 cus-
tomers annually have taken advantage of unbundled trans-
portation service; in 1998, 123 commercial and industrial
customers, on average, chose to use such service.

REGULATION AND RATES

The Company is subject to the regulatory authority of (1)
the Washington Commission as to retail rates, accounting,
the issuance of securities and certain other matters and (2)
the FERC with respect to the transmission of electric ener-
gy, the resale of electric energy at wholesale, accounting
and certain other matters. (See “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations - Rate Matters.”)

ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATIONS

At December 31, 1998, the Company’s peak electric power
resources were approximately 5,145,610 KW. The Company’s
historical peak load of approximately 4,847,000 KW
occurred on December 21,1998.

During 1998, the Company’s total electric energy pro-
duction was supplied 25% by its own resources, 20%
through long-term contracts with several of the
Washington Public Utility Districts (“PUDs”) that own
hydroelectric projects on the Columbia River, 29% from
other firm purchases and 26% from non-firm purchases.
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The following table shows the Company’s electric energy supply resources at December 31,1998, and energy pro-

duction during the year:

Peak POWER RESOURCES

AT DECEMBER 31,1998 1998 ENERGY PRODUCTION

KiLowaTTs % KxLOWATr-HOURs_ %
(THOUSANDS)
Purchased Resources:
Columbia River PUD Contracts (Hydro) 1,416,000 27.5% 6,471,295 20.1%
Other Hydro! 573,760 11.2% 3,015,835 9.3%
Other Producers? 1,401,900 27.2% 14,836,079 46.0%
Total Purchased 3,391,660 65.9% 24,323,209 75.4%
Company-Owned Resources:
Hydro 308,200 6.0% 1,231,496 3.8%
Coal 771,900 15.0% 5,746,536 17.8%
Natural gas/oil 673,850 13.1% 956,698 3.0%
Total Company-Owned 1,753,950 34.1% 7,934,730 24.6%
Total 5,145,610 100.0% 32,257,939 100.0%

1 Power received from other utilities is classified between hydro and other producers based on the character of the utility system used to supply the power or, if the

power is supplied from a particular resource, the character of that resource.

Company-Owned Electric Generation Resources The Company
and other utilities are joint owners of four mine-mouth,
coal-fired, steam-electric generating units at Colstrip,
Montana, approximately 100 miles east of Billings,
Montana. The Company owns a 50% interest (330,000 KW)
in Units 1 and 2 and a 25% interest (350,000 KW) in Units 3
and 4. The owners of the Colstrip Units purchase coal for the
Units from Western Energy Company (“Western Energy”),
an affiliate of Montana Power Company (“Montana Power”)

. (one of the joint owners), under the terms of long-term coal

supply agreements. In February 1997, the Company,
Montana Power and Western Energy settled a dispute
under a power sales agreement between Montana Power
and the Company and entered into an’ agreement to
restructure the mines and plants. In the third quarter of
1998, Western Energy, the Company and other joint owners
of Units 3 and 4 revised the coal supply contract which
reduced the delivered price of coal for Units 3 and 4 and
allows for the joint owners to review and approve mining
plans and budgets.

In November 1998, the Company announced that it had
signed an agreement to sell its interest in the Colstrip

plant, as well as associated transmission facilities to PP&L
Global, Inc,, of Fairfax, Virginia, a subsidiary of PP&L
Resources, Inc.

The Company owns a 7% interest (91,900 KW) in a coal-
fired, steam-electric generating plant near Centralia,
Washington, with a total net capability of 1,313,000 KW. In
1991, the Company and other owners of the Centralia project
renegotiated a long-term coal supply agreement with
PacifiCorp. The Company and other owners of the Centralia
project are reviewing emissions compliance options that
will need to be adopted to meet Federal and State emission
requirements by the year 2000. The Company has joined
with the other owners of the Centralia project in offering for
sale its ownership interest in the facility. As part of the sale
process, the Centralia owners are reviewing the projected
reclamation liability related to the coal mining operations.

The Company also has the following plants with an
aggregate net generating capability of 982,050 KW: Upper
Baker River hydro project (103,000 KW) constructed in 1959;
Lower Baker River hydro project (71,400 KW) reconstructed in
1960; White River hydro plant (63,400 KW) constructed in 1911
with installation of the last unit in 1924; Snoqualmie Falls
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hydro plant (44,000 KW), half the capability of which was
installed during the period 1898 to 1910 and half in 1957; and
one smaller hydro plant, Electron (26,400 KW), constructed
during the period 1904 to 1929; a standby internal combus-
tion unit (2,750 KW) installed in 1969; an oil-fired combustion
turbine unit (67,500 KW) installed in 1974; four dual-fuel com-
bustion turbine units (89,100 KW each) installed during 1981;
and two dual-fuel combustion turbine units (123600 KW
each) installed during 1984. All of these generating facilities
are l?cated in the Company’s service territory.

The Company’s combustion turbines installed in 1981
and 1984 may be fueled with either natural gas or distillate
oil. Short-term supplies of distillate fuel are stored on-site.
These plants are operated from time to time for peaking
purposes and to produce energy for sales to other utilities,
either directly or through tolling arrangements.

On December 19, 1997, the Company was issued a 50-
year license by FERC for its existing and operating White
River project which includes authorization to install an
additional 14,000 KW generating unit. The Company has
filed for a rehearing with FERC on certain articles of the
license because certain restrictions placed on the operation
of the plant may make it uneconomic to operate. The out-
come of the Company’s appeal before the FERC is uncertain
at this time. The initial license for the existing and operat-
ing Snoqualmie Falls project expired in December 1993, and
the Company continues to operate this project under a
temporary license. The Company is continuing the FERC
application process to relicense this project. The Company
has also applied for a license to expand its existing 1,750 KW
Nooksack Falls project which is currently unlicensed and
not operating because of an electric generator fire in 1996.

Columbia River Electric Energy Supply Contracts During 1998,
approximately 20.1% of the Company's energy output was
obtained at an average cost of approximately 11.5 mills per
KWH through long-term contracts with several of the
Washington PUDs owning hydroelectric projects on the
Columbia River.

The Company’s purchases of power from the Columbia
River projects is generally on a “cost of service” basis under
which the Company pays a proportionate share of the
annual debt service and operating and maintenance costs

of each project in proportion to the amount of power annu-
ally purchased by the Company from such project. Such
payments are not contingent upon the projects being oper-
able. These projects are financed through substantially
level debt service payments, and their annual costs may
vary over the term of the contracts as additional financing
is required to meet the costs of major maintenance, repairs
or replacements or license requirements.

The Company has contracted to purchase from Chelan
County PUD (“Chelan”) a share of the output of the original
units of the Rock Island Project which equaled 54.9%
through June 30, 1998. This share decreases gradually to
50% of the output at July 1, 1999, and remains unchanged
thereafter for the duration of the contract. The Company
has also contracted to purchase the entire output of the
additional Rock Island units for the duration of the contract,
except that the Company’s share of output of the additional
units may be reduced up to 10% per year beginning July 1,
2000, subject to a maximum aggregate reduction of 50%,
upon the exercise of rights of withdrawal by Chelan for use
in its local service area. Chelan has given notice of with-
drawal of 5% on July 1, 2000. As of December 31, 1998, the
Company’s aggregate annual capacity from all units of the
Rock Island Project was 480,000 KW. The Company has con-
tracted to purchase from Chelan 38.9% (505,000 KW as of
December 31,1998) of the annual output of the Rocky Reach
Project, which percentage remains unchanged for the
remainder of the contract. The Company’s share of the
annual output of the Wells Project purchased from Douglas
County PUD is currently 31.3% (261,000 KW as of
December 31, 1998) upon the additional exercise of with-
drawal rights by Douglas County PUD. The Company has
contracted to purchase from Grant County PUD 8.0%
(72,000 KW as of December 31,1998) of the annual output of
the Priest Rapids project and 10.8% (98,000 KW as of
December 31, 1998) of the annual output of the Wanapum
project, which percentages remain unchanged for the
remainder of the contracts. (See Note 17 to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In 1964, the Company and fifteen other utilities and
agencies in the Pacific Northwest entered into a long-term
coordination agreement extending until June 30, 2003 (the
“Coordination Agreement”). This agreement provides for
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the coordinated operation of substantially all of the hydro-
electric power plants and reservoirs in the Pacific
Northwest. A new Coordination Agreement was negotiat-
ed in 1997 and will replace the prior agreement in February
1999. Various fishery enhancement measures, including
most recently the 1995 “biological opinion” from the
National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS"), have reduced
the flexibility provided by the Coordination Agreement.
(See “Environment - Federal Endangered Species Act.”)

Certain utilities in the northwest United States and
Canada are obtaining the benefits of additional firm power
as a result of the ratification of a 1961 treaty between the
United States and Canada under which Canada is providing
approximately 15,500,000 acre-feet of reservoir storage on
the upper Columbia River. As a result of this storage, stream-
flow which would otherwise not be usable to serve firm
regional load is stored and later released during periods
when it is usable. Pursuant to the treaty, one-half of the firm
power benefits produced by the additional storage accrue to
Canada. The Company’s benefits from this storage are based
upon its percentage participation in the Columbia River
projects and one-half of those benefits must be returned to
Canada. Also in 1961, the Company contracted to purchase
17.5% of Canada’s share of the power to be returned result-
ing from such storage until a phased expiration of the
contract from 1998 through 2003. The Company has
also contracted to purchase from the Bonneville Power
Administration (“BPA”) supplemental capacity in amounts
that decrease gradually until a phased expiration of the con-
tract from 1998 through 2003. In 1997, the Company entered
into agreements with the Mid-Columbia PUDs which spec-
ify the amount of the Company’s share of the obligation to
return one-half of the firm power benefits to Canada begin-
ning in 1998 and continuing until the earlier of the expira-
tion of the PUD contracts or 2024. '

Electric Energy Supply Contracts and Agreements With Other
utilities Under a 1985 settlement agreement relating to
Washington Public Power Supply System (“WPPSS”)
Nuclear Project No. 3, in which the Cormpany had a 5%
interest, the Company is receiving from BPA for approxi-
mately 30.5 years, beginning January 1, 1987, electric power
during the months of November through April. Under the

contract, the Company is guaranteed to receive not less
than 191,667 MWH in each contract year until the Company
has received total deliveries of 5,833,333 MWH.

On April 4, 1988, the Company executed a 15-year con-
tract, with provisions for early termination by the Company,
for the purchase of firm energy supply from Avista
Corporation (formerly Washington Water Power Company).
This agreement calls for the delivery of 100 MW of capacity
and 657,000 MWH of energy from the Avista system annu-
ally (75 annual average MW). Minimum and maximum
delivery rates are prescribed. Under this agreement, the
energy is to be priced at Avista's average generation and
transmission cost, subject to certain price ceilings.

On October 27, 1988, the Company executed a 15-year
contract for the purchase of firm power and energy from
PacifiCorp. Under the terms of the agreement, the
Company receives 120 average MW of energy and 200 MW
of peak capacity. N

On November 23,1988, the Company executed an agree-
ment to purchase surplus firm power from BPA. Under the
agreement, the Company receives 150 average MW of energy
and 300 MW of peak capacity from BPA between October 3
and March 31 of each contract year. In 1997, the Company elect:
ed to terminate the agreement on June 30, 2001, the date that
the purchase was to convert to a summer-winter exchange.

On October 1, 1989, the Company signed a contract
with Montana Power under which Montana Power pro-
vides the Company, from its share of Colstrip Unit 4, 7:
average MW of energy (94 MW of peak capacity) over a 21
year period. On February 27,1995, the Company delivered tc
Montana Power notice of termination of the contract basec
on Montana Power's failure to arrange for firm contractua,
transmission rights for such energy as required by the con-
tract. Pursuant to a settlement between the Company anc
Montana Power on February 21,1997, the contract remains
in effect and the price of power purchased by the Company
is reduced. The settlement also addressed certain price
reductions and restructuring activities in connection witt
the Colstrip coal supply arrangements.

On December 11, 1989, the Company executed :
conservation transfer agreement with Snohomish Count;
PUD. Snohomish County PUD, together with Mason anc
Lewis County PUDs, will install conservation measures it
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their service areas. The agreement calls for the Company
to receive the power saved over the expected 20-year life
of the measures. The agreement calls for BPA to deliver the
conservation power to the Company from March 1, 1990,
through June 30, 2001, and for Snohomish County PUD to
deliver the conservation power for the remaining term of
the agreement. Annual power deliveries gradually
increased over the first five years of the agreement and
will remain at 6 average MW of energy throughout the
remaining term of the agreerent.

' The Company executed an exchange agreement with
Pacific Gas & Electric Company which became effective on
January 1,1992. Under the agreement, 300 MW of capacity
together with 413,000 MWH of energy are exchanged sea-
sonally every year on a unit for unit basis. No payments are
made under this agreement. Pacific Gas & Electric
Company is a summer peaking utility and will provide
power during the months of November through February.
The Company is a winter peaking utility and will provide
power during the months of June through September. Each
party may terminate the contract for various reasons. The
Company has obtained 400,000 KW of transmission rights
(similar in nature to ownership type rights) on the Pacific
Northwest-Southwest AC Intertie to California. These
transmission rights which are used, in part, to transmit
power under this agreement, have been subject to unanti-
cipated limitations and curtailments over the past several
years. The Company is working with BPA to obtain a
restoration of these rights and compensation for damages.

In October 1997 a 10-year power exchange agreement
between the Company and Powerex (a subsidiary of a
British Columbia utility) became effective. Under this
agreement Powerex pays the Company for the right to
deliver power to the Company at the Canadian border in
exchange for the Company delivering power to Powerex at
various locations in the United States. The Company also
obtained 425,000 KW of transmission rights (similar in
nature to ownership type rights) on the Westside Northern
Intertie to Canada in October 1997. These transmission
rights which are used, in part, to transmit power under this
agreement have been subject to unanticipated limitations
and curtailments. The Company is working with BPA to
obtain a restoration of these rights.

Electric Energy Supply Contracts and Agreements With Non-
Utilities As required by the federal Public Utility Regulatory
Policies Act (“PURPA"), the Company entered into long-term
firm purchased power contracts with non-utility generators.
The most significant of these are the five contracts described
below which the Company entered into in 1989, 1990 and
1991 with operators of natural gas-fired cogeneration proj-
ects. The Company purchases the net electrical output of
these five projects at fixed and annually escalating prices
which were intended to approximate the Company’s avoid-
ed cost of new generation projected at the time these agree-
ments were made. Principally as a result of dramatic changes
in natural gas price levels, the power purchase prices under
these agreements are significantly above the current market
price of power and, based upon projections of future market
prices, are expected to remain well above market for the
duration of the contracts. The Company’s estimated pay-
ments under these five contracts are $280 million for 1999,
$284 million for 2000, $308 million for 2001, $313 million for
2002, $318 million for 2003 and in the aggregate, $2.4 billion
thereafter through 2012. These payments reflect the Tenaska
contract restructuring described below. The Company con-
tinues to seek restructuring of the other four contracts. If
retail electric energy prices move to market levels as a result
of electric industry restructuring, the Company plans to seek
to continue to recover in rates the above market portion of
these contract costs.

OnJune 29; 1989, the Company executed a 20-year con-
tract to purchase 70 average MW of energy and 8o MW of
capacity, beginning October 11, 1991, from the March Point
Cogeneration Company (“March Point”), which owns and
operates a natural gas-fired cogeneration facility known as
March Point Phase I, located at a Texaco refinery in
Anacortes, Washington. On December 27, 1990, the
Company executed a second contract (having a term coex-
tensive with the first contract) to purchase an additional 53
average MW of energy and 60 MW of capacity, beginning
in January 1993, from another natural gas-fired cogenera-
tion facility owned and operated by March Point, which
facility is known as March Point Phase II and is located at
the Texaco refinery in Anacortes, Washington.

On February 24, 1989, the Company executed a 20-year
contract to purchase 108 average MW of energy and 123 MW of
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capacity, beginning in April 1993, from Sumas Cogeneration
Company, LP, which owns and operates a natural gas-fired
cogeneration project located in Sumas, Washington.

On September 26, 1990, the Company executed a 15-
year contract to purchase 141 average MW of energy and
160 MW of capacity, beginning in July 1993, from Encogen
Northwest LP. (“Encogen,” a limited partnership having a
general partner that is a subsidiary of Enserch
Development Corp.), which owns and operates a natural-
gas fired cogeneration facility located at the Georgia Pacific
mill near Bellingham, Washington.

On March 20, 1991, the Company executed a 20-year
contract to purchase 216 average MW of energy and 245 MW
of capacity, beginning in April 1994, from Tenaska
Washington Partners, LP, which owns and operates a natu-
ral-gas fired cogeneration project located near Ferndale,
Washington. In December 1997 and January 1998, the
Company and Tenaska Washington Partners entered into
revised agreements which will lower purchased power costs
from the Tenaska project by restructuring its natural gas
supply. The Company paid $215 million to buy out the pro-
ject’s existing long-term gas supply contracts, which con-
tained fixed and escalating gas prices that were well above
current and projected future market prices for natural gas.
The Company became the principal natural gas supplier to
the project and power purchase prices under the Tenaska
contract were revised to reflect market-based prices for the
natural gas supply. The Company obtained an order from the
Washington Commission creating a regulatory asset related
to the $215 million restructuring payment. Under terms of
the order, the Company is allowed to accrue as an additional
regulatory asset one-half the carrying costs of the deferred
balance over the first five years. These revised arrangements
are expected to reduce the Company’s power supply costs
from the Tenaska project between 15 and 20 percent annual-
ly over the remaining 13-year life of the contract, net of the
costs of the restructuring payment. The Company’s pur-
chased electric energy cost associated with the Tenaska con-
tract was $80.1 million in 1998.

Energy Trading On April 1, 1998, the Company and Duke
Energy Trading and Marketing (“DETM") of Houston, a unit
of Duke Energy Corp., signed an agreement relating to

energy-marketing and trading activities in 14 western
states and British Columbia. The purpose of this agreement
is to coordinate the two companies’ activities in serving
Puget Sound Energy’s native power load with DETM'’s west-
ern power and natural gas marketing and trading opera-
tions. The companies share the benefits of this coordination
proportionally up to certain stipulated amounts intended to
be reflective of the value the companies would have realized
from their respective operations in the absence of the agree-
ment. The companies share equally any benefits created
above the stipulated amounts.

Under the terms of the agreement, DETM performs the
forward electric energy trading function. As a result, the
Company’s future wholesale “sales to other utilities” rev-
enues and related “secondary purchase” power expenses,
which previously have reflected trading activity by the
Company, will be lower than amounts which the Company
would report absent this agreement. During 1998, the
Company continued to execute in its own name transac-
tions in which electric energy is delivered within the next
30 days. Therefore, the Company’s results include those
transactions. The Company recorded its share of the bene-
fits that result from the agreement as a credit to purchased
power expense. The agreement provides that forward trad-
ing activities will be conducted according to DETM's energy
price risk and credit policies, and that the Company is not
responsible for any losses caused by deviation from these
policies. The Company and DETM are presently considering
modifications to the agreement.

Electric Rates and Regulation The order approving the merger
of the Company, Washington Energy Company and
Washington Natural Gas Company (“Merger”), issued by the
Washington Commission on February s, 1997, contains a rate
plan designed to provide a five-year period of rate certainty for
customers and to provide the Company with an opportunity
to achieve a reasonable return on investment. General electric
tariff rates were stipulated to increase between 1.0% to 1.5%
depending on rate class on January 1,1999 through 2001, while
those for certain customers will increase by 1.5% in 2002.
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ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING STATISTICS

YeaR ENDED ON DECEMBER 31 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Operating revenues by classes (thousands):
Residential $ 540,549 $ 529,990 $ 554,318 $ 524,748 $ 532,124
Commercial 431,752 414,480 423,139 397,211 375,751
Industrial 180,959 166,473 170,596 168,501 163,574
Other consurers 42,952 32,453 44,125 38,730 38,759
Operating revenues
, billed to consumers! 1,196,212 1,143,396 1,192,178 1,129,190 1,110,208
' Unbilled revenues -
net increase (decrease) 4,024 (4,921) 13,201 {6,382) (2,522)
PRAM accrual — (40,777) (74,326) 3,955 25,835
Total operating revenues
from consumers 1,200,236 1,097,698 1,131,053 1,126,763 1,133,521
Other utilities and marketers 274,972 133,726 67,716 52,567 60,537
Total operating revenues $ 1,475,208 $ 1,231,424 $ 1,198,769 $ 1,179,330 $ 1,194,058
Number of customers (average): :
Residential 782,095 767,476 754,097 739,173 723,566
Commercial 94,118 91,517 89,613 87,404 85,203
Industrial 4,193 4,090 3,993 3,908 3,851
Other 1,437 1,389 1,371 1,346 1,325
Total customers (average) 881,843 864,472 849,074 831,831 813,945
KWH generated, purchased and interchanged (thousands): :
Company generated 7,934,730 6,641,118 5,585,595 6,371,416 7,011,932
Purchased power 24,231,978 22,611,963 20,573,983 17,897,922 16,268,042
Interchanged power (net) 91,230 103,959 99,942 48,485 (87771
Total energy output 32,257,938 29,357,040 26,259,520 24,317,823 23,192,203
Losses and company use (1,413,331) (1,414,101) (1,322,262) (1,235.457) (1,291,322)
Total energy sales 30,844,607 27,942,939 24,937,258 23,082,366 21,900,881

1 Operating revenues in 1998, 1997, 1996 and 1995 were reduced by $46.7 million, $40.5 million, $41.0 million and $25.1 million, respectively, as a result of the
Company’s sale of $237.7 million of its investment in customer-owned energy conservation measures. (See “Operating revenues — Electric™ in Management's

Discussion and Analysis and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)
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[YEAR ENDED ON DECEMBER 31 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Electric energy sales, KWH (thousands)
Residential 9,313,652 9,319,508 9,350,292 8,972,498 8,913,903
Commercial 7.191,164 7,022,092 6,807,465 6,538,533 6,301,568
Industrial 4,072,722 3,994,748 3,793,966 3,720,641 3,724,931
Other consumers 284,312 206,330 205,066 205,232 200,622
Total energy billed
to consumers 20,861,850 20,542,678 20,156,789 19,436,904 19,141,024
Unbilled energy sales -
net increase (decrease) 43,027 (45,556) 224,412 (158,920) (72,352)
Total energy sales
to consumers 20,904,877 20,497,122 20,381,201 19,277,984 19,068,672
Sales to other
utilities and marketers 9,939,730 7,445,817 4,556,057 3,804,382 2,832,209
Total energy sales 30,844,607 27,942,939 24,937,258 23,082,366 21,900,881
Per residential customer:
Annual use (KWH) 11,909 12,143 12,399 12,139 12,319
Annual billed revenue $721.09 $716.88 $762.35 $726.95 $735.42
Billed revenue per KWH $.0606 $.0590 $.0615 $.0599 $.0597
Company-owned generation
capability - KW:
Hydro 308,200 309,950 309.950 309,950 309,950
Steam 771,900 771,900 771,900 771,900 771,900
Natural gas/oil 673,850 702,350 702,350 702,350 702,350
Total 1,753,950 1,784,200 1,784,200 1,784,200 1,784,200
Heating degree days 4,498 4,599 4,953 3.994 4341
% of normal of 30 year average 91.6% 93.7% 100.9% 81.4% 88.4%
Load factor 52.6% 58.7% 55.5% 56.7% 54.7%




GAS UTILITY OPERATIONS

Gas Supply The Company currently purchases a blended
portfolio of long-term firm, short-term firm, and spot gas
supplies from a diverse group of major and independent

producers and gas marketers in the United States and
Canada. All of the Company's gas supply is ultimately
transported through Northwest Pipeline Corporation
(“NPC”), the sole interstate pipeline delivering directly into
the western Washington area.

PEAK FIRM GAS SUPPLY AT DECEMBER 31,1998 DtH pEr Day %
Purchased Gas Supply
. British Columbia 212,400 27.8
' Alberta 75,900 9.9
United States 50,900 6.7
Total Purchased Gas Supply 339,200 44.4
Purchased Storage Capacity
Clay Basin 89,900 1.8
Jackson Prairie 47,700 6.2
LNG 69,600 9.1
Total Purchased Storage Capacity 207,200 271
Owned Storage Capacity
Jackson Prairie 188,400 24.6
Propane-Air Injection 30,000 3.9
Total Owned Storage Capacity 218,400 28.5
Total Peak Firm Gas Supply 764,800 100.0

All supplies and storage are connected to PSE’s market with firm transportation capacity.

For baseload and peak-shaving purposes, the
Company supplements its firm gas supply portfolio by pur-
chasing natural gas at generally lower prices in summer,
injecting it into underground storage facilities and with-
drawing it during the winter heating season. Storage facil-
ities at Jackson Prairie in Western Washington and at Clay
Basin in Utah are used for this purpose. Peaking needs are
also met by using Company-owned gas held in NPC's lique-
fied natural gas ("LNG”) facility at Plymouth, Washirigton,
and by producing propane-air gas at a plant owned by the
Company and located on its distribution system.

In 1998, the Company took assignment from Cascade
Natural Gas of a Peaking Gas Supply Service (“PGSS”) con-
tract whereby the Company can divert up to 48,000 MMBTu
per day of gas supply away from the Tenaska Cogeneration
Facility and toward the core gas load by causing Tenaska to

operate its facility on distillate fuel and paying any addi-
tional costs of such operation.

The Company expects to meet its firm peak-day
requiremnents for residential, commercial and industrial
markets through its firm gas purchase contracts, firm
transportation capacity, firm storage capacity and other
firm peaking resources. The Company believes that it will
be able to acquire incremental firm gas supply resources
which are reliable and reasonably priced, to meet antici-
pated growth in the requirements of its firm customers for
the foreseeable future.
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Gas Supply Portfolio For the 1998-99 winter heating season,
the Company has contracted for approximately 28% of its
expected peak-day gas supply requirement from sources
originating in British Columbia under a combination of
long-term and winter-peaking purchase agreements.
Long-term gas supplies from Alberta represent approxi-
mately 10% of the peak-day requirement. Long-term and
winter peaking arrangements with U.S. suppliers and gas
stored at Clay Basin make up approximately 18% of the
peak-day portfolio. The balance of the peak-day require-
ment is expected to be met with gas stored at Jackson
Prairie, LNG held at NPC’s Plymouth facility and propane-
air resources, which represent approximately 31%, 9% and
4%, respectively, of expected peak-day requirements.
During 1998, approximately 46% of gas supplies pur-
chased by the Company originated from British Colurmbia
while 27% originated in Alberta and 27% originated in the U.S.
The current firm, long-term gas supply portfolio consists
of arrangements with 16 producers and gas marketers, with
no single supplier representing more than 15% of expected
peak-day requirements. Contracts have remaining terms
ranging from less than one year to 13 years, with an average
term of 2 years. All gas supply contracts contain market-sen-
sitive pricing provisions based on several published indices.
The Company’s firm gas supply portfolio is structured
to capitalize on regional price differentials when they arise.
Gas and services are marketed outside the Company’s serv-
ice territory (“off-system sales”) whenever on-system cus-
tomer demand requirements permit. The geographic mix
of suppliers and daily, monthly and annual take require-
ments permit a high degree of flexibility in selecting gas
supplies during off-peak periods to minimize costs.

Gas Transportation Capacity The Company currently holds
firm transportation capacity on pipelines owned by NPC and
PG&E Gas Transmission-Northwest, formerly known as
Pacific Gas Transportation (“PGT”). Accordingly, the
Company pays fixed monthly demand charges for the right,
but not the obligation, to transport specified quantities of
gas from receipt points to delivery points on such pipelines
each day for the term or terms of the applicable agreements.

The Company holds firm capacity on NPC’s pipeline
totaling 454,533 Dekatherms per day (one Dekatherm “Dth”

is equal to one million British thermal units or “MMBTu"
per day), acquired under several agreements at various
times. The Company has exchanged certain segments of its
firm capacity with third parties to effectively lower trans-
portation costs. The Company'’s firm transportation capaci-
ty contracts with NPC have remaining terms ranging from
6 to 17 years. However, the Company has either the unilat-
eral right to extend the contracts under their current terms
or the right of first refusal to extend such contracts under
current FERC orders. The Company’s firm transportation
capacity on PGT's pipeline has a remaining term of 25 years.

Gas Storage Capacity The Company holds storage capacity
in the Jackson Prairie and Clay Basin underground gas
storage facilities adjacent to NPC's pipeline. The Jackson
Prairie facility, operated and one-third owned by the
Company, is used primarily for intermediate peaking pur-
poses, able to deliver a large volume of gas over a relative-
ly short time period. Combined with capacity contracted
from NPC's one-third stake in Jackson Prairie, the
Company has peak, firm delivery capacity of over 230,000
Dth per day and total firm storage capacity exceeding
6,000,000 Dth at the facility. The location of the Jackson
Prairie facility in the Company’s market area provides sig-
nificant cost savings by reducing the amount of annual
pipeline capacity required to meet peak-day gas require-
ments. The Company, as project operator of the facility,
received approval from FERC on September 30, 1998, to
expand the Jackson Prairie facility. The Company’s share of
the expanded project will provide additional firm delivery
capacity of over 100,000 Dth per day and additional firm
storage capacity of above 1,000,000 Dth at the start of the
1999-2000 heating season. The Company has secured
rights to additional firm seasonal pipeline capacity to be
utilized in conjunction with the expanded project.

The Clay Basin storage facility is supply area storage and
is withdrawn over the entire winter, capturing savings due
to injecting lower cost gas supplies during the summer. The
Company has maximum firm withdrawal capacity of over
100,000 Dth per day from the facility with total storage
capacity exceeding 13,000,000 Dth. The capacity is held
under two contracts with remaining terms of 15 and 21 years.
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LNG and Propane-Air Resources LNG and propane-air
resources provide gas supply on short notice for short peri-
ods of time. Due to their high cost, these resources are uti-
lized as the supply of last resort in extreme peak-demand
periods, typically lasting a few hours or days. The Company
has long-term contracts for storage of nearly 250,000 Dth
of Company-owned gas as LNG at NPC's Plymouth facility,
which equates to approximately three and one-half days’
supply at maximum daily deliverability of 70,500 Dth. The
Cormpany owns storage capacity for approximately 1.4 mil-
lior gallons of propane. The propane-air injection facilities
are capable of delivering the equivalent of 30,000 Dth of
gas per day for up to four days directly into the Company’s
distribution system. :

capacity Release FERC provided a capacity release mecha-
nism as the means for holders of firm pipeline and storage
entitlements to relinquish temporarily unutilized capacity
to others in order to recoup all or a portion of the cost of
such capacity. Capacity may be released through several
methods including open bidding and by pre-arrangement.
The Company continues to successfully mitigate a
substantial portion of the demand charges related to both
storage and NPC and PGT pipeline capacity not utilized
during off-peak periods. WNG CAP I, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, was formed to provide addi-
tional flexibility and benefits from capacity release.
Washington Energy Gas Marketing Cornpany (“WEGM”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, also markets
excess capacity on the PGT pipeline. (See Note 17 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Gas Rates and Regulation The order approving the Merger,
issued by the Washington Commission on February 5,1997,
contains a rate plan which provided unchanged rates for
all classes of natural gas customers until January 1, 1999,
when rates decreased by 1% on gas utility margins.

On March 25,1998, the WUTC approved the Company’s
Purchase Gas Adjustment (“PGA”) and deferral amortization
(true-up) filing effective April 1,1998. The PGA filing reflect-
ed a reduction in expected gas costs of approximately $4.3
million. The deferral amortization filing was a refund to
customers for prior period over-collections of gas costs. This
filing replaced a larger deferral amortization refund that
had been in effect since May 1995. The combined filings
reduced gas rates to all sales customers less than 1%.

On June 25,1998, the Company received approval from
the Washington Commission to begin a new performance-
based mechanism for strengthening its gas-supply pur-
chasing and gas-storage practices. The PGA Incentive
Mechanism, which encourages competitive gas purchasing
and management of pipeline and storage-capacity became
effective July 1, 1998. Incentive gains and losses from the
three-year program are shared between customers and
shareholders. After the first $o.5 million, which is allocated
to customers, gains and losses are shared 40%/60%
between the Cormpany and customers up to $26.5 million,
and 33%/67% thereafter. Gains or losses are determined rel-
ative to a weighted average index which is reflective of the
Company’s gas supply and transportation contract costs.
The Company’s share of incentive gains under the PGA
Incentive Mechanism in 1998 were approximately $1.1 mil-
lion while customers received approximately $2.0 million.
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GAS UTILITY OPERATING STATISTICS

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

Operating revenues by classes (thousands):
Regulated utility sales:

Residential sales $ 253,169 S 246,747 $ 238,560 S 231,202 $ 206,602
Commercial firm sales 96,116 97,233 94,251 97,396 91,749
Industrial firm sales 18,557 19,524 20,024 25,860 28,827
Interruptible sales 22,190 19,832 23,376 44,511 51,425
Transportation services 14,211 14,631 12,812 10,762 8,399
Other 12,308 1,480 11,085 10,317 9,405

Total gas operating revenues  $ 416,551 $ 409,447 $ 400,108 $ 420,048 $ 396,407
Customers, average number served

Residential _ 486,553 465,185 440,586 423,195 403,642
Commercial firm 42,273 41,158 39,651 38,378 37,112
Industrial firm 2,850 2,839 2,762 2,754 2,824
Interruptible 940 962 1,000 1,037 1,009
Transportation 123 128 106 55 36
Total customers (average) 532,739 : 510,272 484,105 465,419 444,623
Gas volumes (thousands of therms):
Residential sales 444,611 434,179 421,727 398,283 371,472
Commercial firm sales 193,765 195,087 188,321 179,725 174,668
Industrial firm sales 42,737 44,563 46,640 55,365 62,698
Interruptible sales 72,115 60,244 72,229 132,316 151,175
Transportation volumes 254,368 277,092 242,299 156,941 119,590
Total gas volumes 1,007,596 1,011,165 971,216 922,630 879,603
Working-gas volumes in storage at year end (thousands of therms):
Jackson Prairie 37,683 52,430 65,834 ’ 65,834 65,834
Clay Basin 58,827 64,930 82,847 130,970 47,557
Average use per customer (therms):
Residential 914 933 957 941 921
Commercial firm ' 4,584 4,740 4,749 4,683 4,708
Industrial firm 14,995 15,697 16,886 20,103 22,035
Interruptible 76,7118 62,624 72,229 127,595 147,315
Transportation 2,068,033 2,164,781 2,285,840 2,853,473 3,400,694
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(continued from previous page)

TwELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Average revenue per customer:
Residential $ 520 $ 530 $ 541 $ 546 $ 512
Commercial firm 2,274 2,362 2,377 2,538 2,472
Industrial firm 6,511 6,877 7,250 9,390 10,208
Interruptible 23,606 20,615 23,376 42,923 50,966
Transportation 115,537 114,305 120,868 195,673 233,306
Average revenue per therm (cents):

' Residential 56.9¢ 56.8¢ 56.6¢ 58.0¢ 55.6¢
Commercial firm 49.6 49.8 50.0 54.2 52.5
Industrial firm 43.4 43.8 42.9 467 46.0
Interruptible 30.8 32.9 32.4 33.6 34.0

Total sales to customers 51.8 52.2 51.6 52.1 49.8
Transportation 5.6 5.3 5.3 6.9 7.0
Weather - degree days 4,498 4,599 4,953 3,994 4,341
% of normal (30-year average) 91.6% 93.7% 100.9% 81.4% 88.4%

Note: Data prior to January 1,1997, is for the period ending September 30.

ENERGY CONSERVATION

The Company offers programs designed to help new and
existing customers use energy efficiently. The primary
emphasis is to provide information and technical services
to enable customers to make energy-efficient choices with
respect to building design, equipment and building sys-
tems, appliance purchases and operating practices.

Since May 1997, the Company has recovered electric
energy conservation expenditures through a tariff rider
mechanism. The rider mechanism allows the Company
to defer the conservation expenditures and amortize
them to expense as the Company concurrently collects
the conservation expenditures in rates over a one year
period. As a result of the rider, there is no effect on earn-
ings per share.

Since 1995, the Company has been authorized by the
Washington Commission to defer gas energy conservation
expenditures and recover them through a tariff tracker
mechanism. The tracker mechanism allows the Company

to defer conservation expenditures and recover them in
rates over the subsequent year. The tracker mechanism
also allows the Company to recover an Allowance for
Funds Used to Conserve Energy (AFUCE) on any outstand-
ing balance that is not being recovered in rates.

ENVIRONMENT

The Company’s operations are subject to environmental
regulation by federal, state and local authorities. Due to the
inherent uncertainties surrounding the development of
federal and state environmental and energy laws and reg-
ulations, the Company cannot determine the impact such
laws may have on its existing and future facilities. (See
Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for fur-
ther discussion of environmental sites.)

Federal Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 The Company has
an ownership interest in coal-fired, steam-electric generat-
ing plants at Centralia, Washington and Colstrip, Montana,
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which are subject to the federal Clean Air Act Amendments
of 1990 (“CAAA”) and other regulatory requirements.

The Centralia Project and the Colstrip Projects met the
sulfur dioxide limits of the CAAA in Phase I (1995). The
Company and other joint owners of the Centralia Project
are exploring alternative emission compliance options and
project economics in light of compliance costs to meet the
Phase II limits in the year 2000. All four units at the
Colstrip Project, operated by Montana Power, meet Phase II
emission limits.

The Company owns combustion turbine units, most of
which are capable of being fueled by either natural gas or
oil. The nature of these units provides operational flexibili-
ty in meeting air emission standards. There is no assurance
that in the future environmental regulations affecting sul-
fur dioxide or nitrogen oxide emissions may not be further
restricted, or that restrictions on emissions of carbon diox-
ide or other combustion by-products may not be imposed.

Federal Endangered Species Act In November 1991, the
National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) listed the Snake
River Sockeye as an endangered species pursuant to the fed-
eral Endangered Species Act (“ESA”). Since the Sockeye list-
ing, the Snake River fall and spring/summer Chinook have
also been listed as threatened. In response to the listings,
a team of experts was formed to develop a plan for the
recovery needs of these species. In 1995, the NMFS issued a
biological opinion which has significantly changed the
operation of the Federal Columbia River Power System.

The plans developed by NMFS affect the Mid-Columbia
projects from which the Company purchases power on a
long-term basis, and will further reduce the flexibility of
the regional hydro-electric system. Although the full
impacts are unknown at this time, the plan developed by
NMFS shifts an amount of the Corpany’s generation from
the Mid-Columbia projects from winter periods into the
spring when it is not needed for system loads, and will
increase the potential for spill and loss of generation at the
Mid-Columbia projects.

Since the 1991 listings, one more species of salmon
has been listed and two more have been proposed which
may further influence operations. Upper Columbia River
Steelhead were listed by NMFS in August 1997.

Anticipating the Steelhead listing, the Mid-Columbia PUDs
initiated consultation with the federal and state agencies,
Native American tribes and non-governmental organiza-
tions to secure operational protection through a long-term
settlement and habitat conservation plan which includes
fish protection and enhancement measurement for the
next 5o years. The negotiations have concluded among the
Chelan and Douglas County PUDs and various fishery
agencies, and final agreement is subject to a National
Environmental Policy Act review and power purchaser
approval. Generally, the agreement obligates the PUDs to
achieve certain levels of passage efficiency for downstream
migrants at their hydroelectric facilities and to fund certain
habitat conservation measures. Grant County PUD has yet
to reach agreement on these issues.

The proposed listings of Puget Sound Chinook salmon
and spring Chinook for the upper Columbia will be final, if
approved, in March 1999. The listing of spring Chinook for
the upper Columbia should not result in markedly differing
conditions for operations from previous listings in the area.
However, Puget Sound has not experienced ESA listing to
date and listing of Puget Sound Chinook could cause a
number of changes to operations of government agencies
and private entities in the region including the Company.
These may adversely affect hydro plant operations, permit
issuance for facilities construction and increased costs for
process and facilities. Because the Company relies substan-
tially less on hydro-electric energy from the Puget Sound area
than from the Mid-Columbia and because the impact on the
Company operations in the Puget Sound area is not likely to
impair significant generating resources, the impact of listing
for Puget Sound Chinook salmon should be proportionately
less than the Columbia River listings.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AT DECEMBER 31, 1998

NAME

AGE

OFFICES

W. S.'Weaver"
R.R. Sonstelie
1. W. Eldredge
D.E. Gaines
W. A. Gaines
D.A. Graham
R.L.Hawley
T.]. Hogan
S.A. McKeon
S. McLain

J. Quintana

G. B. Swofford

54

53

48

41

43

58

49

47

52

42

50

57

President & Chief Executive Officer since January 1998; President May 1997 - January 1998;
Vice Chairman and Chairman of Unregulated Subsidiaries, February 1997 - May 1997;
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 1991-1997; Director since 1991.
Chairman of the Board since February 1997; President and Chief Executive Officer 1992-1997;
President and Chief Operating Officer 1991-1992; President and Chief Financial Officer 1987-
1991; Executive Vice President 1985-1987; Senior Vice President Finance 1983-1985; Vice
President Engineering and Operations 1980-1983; Director since 1987.

Chief Accounting Officer since 1994; Corporate Secretary and Controller since 1993;
Controller since 1988.

Treasurer since 1994; Director Strategic Planning 1992-1994; Manager Financial Planning
1986 - 1992. -

Vice President Energy Supply since February 1997; Manager Power Management 1996-1997;
Manager Operations Planning 1986-1996.

Vice President Human Resources since April 1998; Director Hurman Resources 1989-1998.
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since March 1998. For more than five

years prior to that time, he was a partner with Coopers & Lybrand LLP.

(now PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP).

Vice President Systems Operations since February 1997; Washington Energy Company posi-
tions held: Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 1995-1997; Vice President
Supply, Administration and Corporate Secretary 1994-1995; Vice President Legal and
Corporate Secretary 1991-1994.

Vice President and General Counsel since June 1997. For more than five years prior to that
time he was a partner at Perkins Coie LLP.

Vice President Corporate Performance since December 1997; Director Planning and Work
Practices 1997; various positions in Human Resources, Operations, Customer Service

and Strategic Planning 1988-1997.

Vice President External Affairs since April 1998. For more than five years prior to that

time, he was Sr. Vice President Public Affairs for the Rockey Company, a public relations
consulting firm.

Vice President Custormer Operations since February 1997; Senior Vice President Customer
Operations 1994-1997; Vice President Divisions and Customer Services 1991-1994; Vice
President Rates and Customer Programs 1986-1991.

Officers are elected for one-year terms.
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Item 2.

PROPERTIES

The principal electric generating plants and underground
gas storage facilities owned by the Company are described
under Item 1 - “Business - Electric Utility Operations and
Gas Utility Operations.” The Company owns its transmission

and distribution facilities and various other properties. !
Substantially all properties of the Company are subject to !

the liens of the Company’s Mortgage Indentures.

Item 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4.

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS
TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None

“Partll

Item s.
MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S
COMMON EQUITY

and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company's common stock is traded on the New York
Stock Exchange (symbol PSD). The number of stockholders
of record of the Company’s common stock at December 31,
1998, was 58,650.

The Company has paid dividends on its commmon stock

i each year since 1943 when such stock first became publicly

held. Future dividends will be dependent upon earnings,
the financial condition of the Company and other factors.
The payment of dividends on common stock is restrict-
ed by provisions of certain covenants applicable to pre-
ferred stock and long-term debt contained in the

: Company's Articles of Incorporation and electric and gas

mortgage indentures. Under the most restrictive

covenants, earnings reinvested in the business unrestrict-

' ed as to payment of cash dividends were approximately

$183 million at December 31, 1998. (See Note 7 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Dividends paid and high and low stock prices for each quarter over the last two years were:

1998 1997'
PRICE RANGE DIVIDENDS PRICE RANGE DIVIDENDS
QUARTER ENDED HiGH Low PAID HiGH Low PaD
March 31 30-1/4 26-5/8 $.46 26 23-1/2 $.46
June 30 28-5/8 25 $.46 26-1/2 23-3/4 $.46
September 30 28 24-1/16 $.46 26-15/16 25-1/8 $.46
December 31 29 25-7/8 $.46 30-3/16 25-1/2 $.46

1 Data for Puget Sound Power & Light Company prior to February 10, 1997

PG 42

PUGET
SOUND
ENERGY



Item 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 1998 1997 1996 1996 1994
Operating revenue $ 1,907,340 $ 1,676,902 $ 1,649,279 $ 1,631,118 $ 1,632,485
Operating income 298,980 215,866 284,474 270,344 224,772
Income from continuing

operations 169,612 125,698 167,351 128,381 79,312
Income for common stock from

| continuing operations 156,609 107,421 145,170 105,727 58,929

Basic and diluted earnings

per common share from

continuing operations

(Note 1 to the financial statements) 1.85 1.28 172 1.26 0.0
Dividends per common share 1.84 178 1.67 1.67 1.67
Book value per common share 16.00 16.06 16.31 16.27 17.01
Total assets at year-end $ 4,720,689 $ 4,493,370 $ 4,227470 $ 4244568  $ 4,496,770
Long-term obligations 1,474,748 1,411,707 1,165,584 1,230,499 1,253,498
Redeemable preferred stock 73,162 78,134 87,839 89,039 91,242
Corporation obligated,

mandatorily redeemable

preferred securities of

subsidiary trust holding

solely junior subordinated

debentures of the corporation 100,000 100,000 — — —
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Itemy. -
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s business
includes some forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Words such as “estimates,”
“expects,” “anticipates,” “plans,” and similar expressions
identify forward-looking statements involving risks and
uncertainty. Those risks and uncertainties include, but are
not limited to, the ongoing restructuring of the electric and
gas industries and the outcome of regulatory proceedings
related to that restructuring. The ultimate impacts of both
increased competition and the changing regulatory envi-
ronment on future results are uncertain, but are expected
to fundamentally change how the Company conducts its
business. The outcome of these changes and other matters
discussed below may cause future results to differ materi-
ally from historic results, or from results or outcomes cur-
rently expected or sought by the Company.

»

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Financial condition and results of operations for 1998 and
1997 reflect the results of Puget Sound Energy, Inc., former-
ly Puget Sound Power & Light Company (“Puget”). Financial
condition and results of operations for 1996 reflect com-
bined results for the fiscal years ended December 31 for
Puget and September 30 for Washington Energy Company
(“WECQ”). On February 10, 1997, WECO and its subsidiary,
Washington Natural Gas Company, merged into Puget,
which then changed its name to Puget Sound Energy, Inc.
Net income in 1998 was $169.6 million on operating
revenues of $1.907 billion, compared to $123.1 million on
operating revenues of $1.677 billion in 1997 and $165.5 mil-
lion on operating revenues of $1.649 billion in 1996.
Income for common stock was $156.6 million in 1998, com-
pared to $105.7 million in 1997 and $143.3 million in 1996.
Basic and diluted earnings per share in 1998 were $1.85
on 84.6 million weighted average common shares out-
standing compared to $1.25 on 84.6 million weighted aver-
age common shares outstanding in 1997 including a $.03

loss per share from discontinued operations and $1.70 on
84.4 million weighted average common shares outstand-
ing in 1996 including a $.02 loss per share from discontin-
ued operations.

Contributing to the increase in net income and basic
and diluted earnings per share in 1998 compared to 1997
were continued growth in retail electric and gas customers
and a reduction in utility operations and maintenance
expense of approximately $13.6 million or 5% in 1998 com-
pared to 1997. Net income for 1997 included an after-tax
charge of $36.3 million ($0.43 cents per share) for costs
related to the merger including transaction expenses,
employee separation and system and facilities integration.
Net income in 1997 also included an after-tax charge of $2.6
million ($0.03 per share), to write off the Company's
remaining investment in undeveloped coal reserves and
related activities in southeastern Montana (See Note 18 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements). These charges in
1997 were partially offset by $13.6 million ($0.16 cents per
share) related to an income tax refund received in 1997.
Excluding the impact of these charges and credits to
income, continuing operations for 1997 produced earnings
of $1.55 per share. Total kilowatt-hour sales to ultimate con-
sumers in 1998 were 20.9 billion, compared with 20.5 bil-
lion in 1997 and 20.4 billion in 1996. Kilowatt-hour sales to
other utilities were 9.9 billion in 1998, 7.4 billion in 1997 and
4.6 billion in 1996.

Total gas volumes sold, including transported gas, were
1,008 million therms in 1998, 1,011 million therms in 1997
and 971 million therms in 1996.
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Increase (Decrease) Over Preceding Year

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 {DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 1998 1997 1996
Operating revenues:
General rate increases $ 185 $ 1649 $§ —
PRAM electric revenue surcharges/refunds 44.8 (22.6) (37.)
BPA Residential Purchase and
Sale Agreement (1.2) 2.7 (15.8)
Electric sales to other utilities 141.2 66.0 15.1
Electric revenue sold to conservation trust (6.2) 0.5 {15.9)
Electric load and other changes 467 (30.8) 73.1
Gas revenue change 71 9.3 (19.9)
Other revenues (20.5) (14.4) 18.7
Total operating revenue changes 230.4 27.6 18.2
Operating expenses:
Energy costs:
Purchased electricity 137.2 52.6 38.8
Residential exchange 16.4 31.2 (15.)
Purchased gas (3.5) 1.6 (41.3)
Electric generation fuel 15.1 0.8 5.0
Utility operations and maintenance (13.6) 8.3 (16.6)
Other operations and maintenance {13.6) (11.0) 2.7
Depreciation and amortization 3.7 17.6 3.2
Merger and related costs (55.8) 51.0 4.8
Taxes other than federal income taxes 12 41 6.3
Federal income taxes 60.2 (60.0) 16.2
Total operating expense changes 147.3 96.2 4.0
Other income (18.9) 26.5 16.4
Interest charges 20.3 (0.5) (83)
Discontinued operations 2.6 (0.8) 24.8
Net income changes $ 465 $ (42.4) $ 637
T 25 25



The following information pertains to the changes out-
lined on the table on the preceding page:

Operating Revenues - Electric Electric operating revenues
increased $18.5 million in 1998 and $16.9 million in 1997
when compared to the prior years due to an overall aver-
age 1.8% general rate increase effective February 8, 1997
and an overall average 1.2% general rate increase effective
January 1,1998.

Electric operating revenues in 1998 increased $44.8
million compared to 1997 as a result of a $48.6 million
Periodic Rate Adjustment Mechanism (“PRAM”) revenue
reduction in 1997 associated with an IRS 1991-1994
Conservation tax refund and related interest income.
Based on the Company’s agreement with the Washington
Commission, the benefit of the tax refund was passed on to
retail customers as a reduction of the PRAM accrued rev-
enue balance. The $48.6 million reduction in revenues in
1997 was offset by a decrease in federal, state and local
taxes as well as a decrease in interest expense and a recog-
nition of interest income.

On September 30, 1996, the PRAM was discontinued
pursuant to a negotiated settlement and the Washington
Commission issued an order granting a joint motion by the
Company and the Washington Commission staff to trans-
fer annual revenues of $165.5 million which were being col-
lected in PRAM rates to the Company’s permanent rate
schedules. A $17.0 million overcollection of the PRAM,
which resulted from the pass-through of conservation tax
refunds, was refunded to customers in 1997.

Electric revenues in 1998, 1997 and 1996 were reduced
because of the credit that the Company received through
the Residential Purchase and Sale Agreement with the
Bonneville Power Administration (“BPA”). This agreement
enables the Company's residential and small farm cus-
tomers to receive the benefits of lower-cost federal power. A
related reduction is included in purchased and inter-
changed power expenses. On January 29,1997, the Company
and the BPA signed a Residential Exchange Termination
Agreement. The Agreement ends the Company’s participa-
tion in the Residential Purchase and Sale Agreement with
BPA. As part of the Termination Agreement, the Company
will receive payments by the BPA of approximately $235

million over an approximately s-year period ending June
2001. Under the rate plan approved by the Washington
Commission in its merger order, the Company will continue
to reflect through the rate stability period in customers’
bills, the current level of Residential Exchange benefits. Over
the remainder of the Residential Exchange Termination
Agreement from January 1999 through June 2001, it is pro-
jected that the Company will credit custorners approxi-
mately $172.3 million more than it will receive from BPA dur-
ing the following periods:

DOLLARS IN

PerIOD MILLIONS
January — December 1999 $68.0
January - December 2000 67.4
January —June 2001 36.9
$172.3

The Company and other investor owned utilities in the
northwest region are participating in the BPAs subscription
process pursuant to which allocations of federal power in the
northwest beginning in 2001 will be determined. Through
this process the Company may receive a combination of low
cost energy from the federal power system in the northwest
or financial exchange agreements for the benefit of their res-
idential and small farm customers, which would be in lieu of
the residential and small farm customer benefits required by
the Regional Power Act of 1980. The amount of such BPA
power purchases and financial exchange arrangements that
may be available for the Company’s residential and small
farm customers, and the BPA rates and contractual terms and
conditions applicable therto, are generally not established at
this time. Subsequent to the rate stability period, the
Company intends to seek regulatory approval to pass
through benefits equal to amounts received from the BPA to
its residential and small farm customers.

Electric revenues in 1998, 1997 and 1996 were reduced
by $46.7 million, $40.5 million and $41.0 million, respective-
ly, as a result of the Company’s sale of revenues associated
with $237.7 million of its investment in conservation assets
to a grantor trust. The revenue decrease represents the por-
tion of rate revenues that were sold and forwarded to the
trust. The impact of this revenue decrease, however, was
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offset by related reductions in other utility operations and
maintenance and interest expenses.

To meet customer demand, the Company’s power sup-
ply portfolio includes net purchases of power under long-
term supply contracts. However, depending principally
upon streamflow available for hydro-electric generation
and weather effects on customer demand, from time to
time the Company may have surplus power available for
sale at wholesale to other utilities. In addition, the
Company has increased its wholesale surplus power busi-
ness through short and intermediate-term purchases, sales,
arbitrage and other trading and marketing techniques.
Sales to other utilities increased $141.2 million, $66.0 mil-
lion and $15.1 million in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively,
due primarily to increased wholesale power transactions.
Wholesale sales generally have small margins. However,
there may be certain times when the market price of
power may cause margins to fluctuate.

Operating Revenues - Gas Regulated gas utility sales revenue
in 1998 increased by $7. million from the prior year on a
2.6% increase in gas volumes sold. Total gas volumes, includ-
ing transported gas, decreased 0.35% in 1998 from 1997. The
increase in sales revenue was primarily the result of a 4.4%
increase in gas customers during 1998, decreases in indus-
trial and transportation sales volumes with lower prices
and margins and an increase in residential firm and com-
mercial sales with higher prices and margins. Utility gas
margin (the difference between gas revenues and gas pur-
chases) increased by $10.6 million, or 4.6 %,in 1998 over 1997.
Regulated gas utility sales revenue in 1997 increased by
$9.3 million, or 2.3%, from the prior year on a 0.7% decrease
in gas volumes sold. Total gas volumes, including transport-
ed gas, increased 4.1% in 1997 from 1996. Regulated gas util-
ity sales revenue in 1996 decreased by $19.9 miillion, or 4.7%,
from the prior year on a 4.8% decrease in gas volumes sold.
Total gas volumes, including transported gas, increased 5.3%
in 1996. Other revenues decreased $20.5 million in 1998
compared to 1997 and $14.4 million in 1997 from 1996 due
primarily to the sale of an unregulated subsidiary
(Washington Energy Services Company) in October 1997.

Operating Expenses Purchased electricity expenses increased
$137.2 million in 1998 when compared to 1997 and $52.6 million
in 1997 when compared to 1996. The increase in 1998 was due
primarily to a $112.3 million increase in secondary power pur-
chases from other utilities to support wholesale sales and
Increased payments of $18.8 million for firm power purchases
from non-utility generators. The increase in 1997 was the
result of increased secondary power purchases from other util-
ities of $47.5 million and a $5.4 million increase in transmission
wheeling and associated costs compared to 1996. The increase
in 1996 of $3.8 million over 1995 was the result of higher pay-
ments for firm power purchases from non-utility generators
and increased secondary power purchases from other utilities.

Residential exchange credits associated with the
Residential Purchase and Sale Agreement with BPA decreased
$16.4 million in 1998 when compared to 1997. The primary
reason for the decrease was the Residential Exchange
Termination Agreement between the Company and BPA in
January 1997. Residential exchange credits decreased $31.2
million in 1997 as compared to 1996 and increased $15.1 mil-
lion in 1996 as compared to 1995. Residential exchange cred-
its received in 1998 were $55.6 million and are estimated to be
$39.0 million, $41.0 million and $27.0 million in the years 1999
through 2001. (See discussion of the Residential Purchase and
Sale Agreement under Operating Revenues.)

Purchased gas expenses decreased $3.5 million in 1998
compared to 1997 despite the 2.6% increase in gas volumes
sold. This was primarily the result of a $5.4 million credit to
purchased gas costs in the fourth quarter of 1998 due to a
true-up of gas costs through the PGA mechanism.

Purchased gas expenses increased $1.6 million in 1997 com-
pared t0 1996 as a result of a 0.7% increase in gas volumes sold.

Purchased gas expenses decreased $41.3 million in
1996 compared to 1995. The decrease resulted from the
lower average per-therm cost of gas established in the May
1995 PGA and the 5% reduction in gas volumes sold.

Electric generation fuel expense increased $15.1 million
in 1998 primarily due to the Company generating more elec-
tricity at Company-owned gas-fired combustion turbine
plants. These increases were partially offset by reductions to
Colstrip fuel expense. In September 1998, the Company
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recorded a reduction of $4.9 million in fuel expense and $3.5
million of interest income related to the resolution of out-
standing issues with the Colstrip fuel supplier.

Electric generation fuel expense increased $5.0 million
in 1996 compared to 1995. The increase was due in part toan
arbitration panel’s decision in 1995 of a dispute involving
the coal supply agreement at the Company’s 50% owned
Colstrip 1 and 2 plants that resulted in a $4.6 million
decrease to fuel expense recorded in the first quarter of
1995, In addition, the Company recorded a one-time charge
of $1.8 million in the second quarter of 1996 relating to aloss
on the sale of oil stocks at a combustion turbine site.

Utility operations and maintenance expenses decreased
$13.6 million in 1998 compared to 1997. The decrease is pri-
marily the result of improved operating efficiencies.

Utility operations and maintenance expenses increased
$8.3 million in 1997 compared to 1996 and decreased $16.6
million in 1996 compared to 1995. The changes were largely
the result of an $11.6 million decrease in amortization
expense in 1995 associated with the Company’s conserva-
tion program. In June 1995, the Company sold, to a grantor
trust, approximately $202.5 million of its investment in cus-
tomer-owned energy conservation measures.

Other operations and maintenance expenses decreased
$13.6 million in 1998 compared to 1997 and $11.0 million in
1997 compared to 1996. The decreases resulted primarily
from the sale of the Company’s unregulated subsidiary,
Washington Energy Services Company, in October 1997.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $3.7
million in 1998 compared to 1997. Depreciation and amor-
tization expense due to capital spending related to adding
customers, distribution and transmission system iraprove-
ments and computer software amortization increased $12.3
million in 1998. Partially offsetting these increases in 1998
were decreases from 1997 as a result of an August 1997
Washington Commission Order which authorized the
Company to record interest income of $8.3 million related
to a conservation tax refund, but required the Company to
expense deferred storm damage costs in the amount of
$7.4 million and establish a $1.0 million reserve to cover the
costs of a Company retail pilot program.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $17.6
million in 1997 compared to 1996 due primarily to capital

spending related to adding customers and transmission
and distribution system improvements. In addition, the
aforementioned Washington Commission Order resulted in
a write-off of deferred storm damage costs in the amount of
$7.4 million and the establishment of a $1.0 million reserve
to cover the costs of a Company retail pilot program.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $3.2
niillion in 1996 compared to 1995 due primarily to new
plant placed in service.

Taxes other than federal income taxes increased $4.1
million in 1997 compared to 1996 and $6.3 million in 1996
compared to 1995. The increases were primarily due to high-
er state property tax payments and higher revenue-based
municipal and state excise tax payments.

Federal income taxes in 1997 were $60.2 million less than
in 1998 and $60.0 million less than in 1996 as a result of the
following factors. An IRS tax refund related to the method of
accounting for taxes on conservation expenditures during
the first quarter of 1997 decreased federal income taxes by
$26.5 million. In addition, there was a $17.0 million reduction
associated with a decrease in PRAM revenues of $48.6 million.
Merger costs expensed in the first quarter of 1997 further
reduced federal income taxes by $19.3 million.

Federal income taxes increased by $16.2 million in 1996
over 1995. The increase was primarily due to higher pre-tax
utility earnings. Also, there was a decrease in energy con-
servation expenditures in 1996 which are deducted for fed-
eral income taxes.

other Income Other income, net of federal income tax,
decreased $18.9 million in 1998 from 1997. The decrease was
due primarily to the receipt of interest income in1997 of $13.6
million from the IRS on tax refunds for prior years in con-
nection with a plant abandonment loss, conservation tax
refunds and certain additional research and experimental
credits claimed for tax purposes.

Other income, net of federal income tax, increased
$26.5 million in 1997 from 1996. The increase was due pri-
marily to interest income received from the IRS on tax
refunds for prior years as explained in the preceding para-
graph. Other income for 1997 includes after-tax losses of
$1.0 million and $5.3 million related to the sale of an unreg-
ulated subsidiary (Washington Energy Services Company)
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and operations of a subsidiary, ConneXt, respectively.

Total other income increased $16.4 million in 1996 as com-
pared to 1995. The increase is due primarily to pre-tax charges
in 1995 related to Cabot totaling $24.8 million, partially offset
by a $8.7 million deferred tax benefit of write-downs.

interest Charges Interest charges, which consist of interest
and amortization on long-term debt and other interest,
increased $20.3 million in 1998 compared to 1997 primarily
as a result of the issuance of $300 million 7.02% Senior
Meélium-Term Notes, Series A, in December 1997, the
issuance of $100 million 8.231% Capital Trust Debentures in
June 1997 and the issuance of $200 million 6.74% Senior

- Medium-Term Notes, Series A, in June 1998. These increases

were partially offset by the maturity of $151 million Secured
Medium-Term Notes during the 15 months ended December
31, 1998 and the redemption of $30 million 9.14% Secured
Medium-Term Notes, Series A, in June 1998.

Interest charges decreased $0.5 million in 1997 compared
t01996. Interest and amortization on long-term debt increased
$2.4 million which included dividend payments on the
Company-obligated, mandatorily redeemable preferred securi-
ties of $4.7 million. Interest on short-term debt decreased $1.5
million and capitalized interest (AFUDC) increased $1.3 million.

Interest charges decreased $8.3 million in 1996 com-
pared to 199s. Interest and amortization on long-term debt
decreased $8.8 million. Contributing to the reduced inter-
est expense were five First Mortgage Bond retirements or
redemptions totaling $151 million over the previous 17
months. Other interest expense increased in 1996 over 1995
due primarily to increased interest on PGA balances.

CONSTRUCTION, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Current construction expenditures, primarily transmission
and distribution-related, are designed to meet continuing
customer growth. Construction expenditures in 1998 and
1999 also include costs of new accounting and customer
information systems. Construction expenditures, which
include energy conservation expenditures and exclude
AFUDC, were $333.3 million in 1998. The Company expects
construction expenditures for the period 1999 through
2001 will be approximately $303 million, $259 million and

$252 million, respectively. Construction expenditure esti-
mates are subject to periodic review and adjustment.

The Company expects cash from operations {net of divi-
dends and AFUDC) during the period 1999 through 2001 will, on
average, be approximately 68.4% of average estimated construc-
tion expenditures (excluding AFUDC) during the same period.

In June 1998, the Company issued $200 million 6.74%
Senior Medium-Term Notes, Series A, and redeemed $30
million 9.14% Secured Medium-Term Notes, Series A, due
June 2001 at a redemption price of 100%.

In September 1998, the Company filed a shelf-registra-
tion statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission for the offering, on a delayed or continuous
basis, of up to $500 million principal amount of Senior
Notes secured by a pledge of First Mortgage Bonds. On
March 9, 1999, the Company issued $250 million principal
amount of Senior Medium-Term Notes, Series B, which con-
sisted of $150 million principal amount due March 9, 2009
at an interest rate of 6.46% and $100 million principal
amount due March g, 2029 at an interest rate of 7.0%

The Company's ability to finance its future construction
program is dependent upon market conditions and main-
taining a level of earnings sufficient to permit the sale of
additional securities. In determining the type and amount of
future financings, the Company may be limited by restric-
tions contained in its electric and gas mortgage indentures,
Articles of Incorporation and certain loan agreements.

Under the most restrictive tests, at December 31,1998,
the Company could issue either (i) approximately $731
million of additional first mortgage bonds, (ii) approxi-
mately $853 million of additional preferred stock at an
assumed dividend rate of 5.5%, or (iii) a combination thereof.

Short-term borrowings from banks and the sale of com-
mercial paper are used to provide working capital for the
construction program. At December 31, 1998, the Company
had available $375 million in lines of credit with various
banks, which provide credit support for outstanding com-
mercial paper and bank borrowing of $142 million and $25
million, respectively, effectively reducing the available bor-
rowing capacity under these lines of credit to $208 million.
(See Note g to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Under the most restrictive covenants in the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation and electric and gas mortgage
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indentures, earnings reinvested in the business unrestrict-
ed as to payment of cash dividends were approximately
$183 million at December 31, 1998.

RATE MATTERS ~ ELECTRIC

The order approving the Merger, issued by the Washington
Commission on February 5,1997, contains a rate plan designed
to provide a five-year period of rate certainty for customers
and to provide the Company with an opportunity to achieve a
reasonable return on investment. General electric tariff rates
were stipulated to increase between 1.0% to 1.5% depending
on rate class on January 1 of 1999 through 2001, while those
for certain customers will increase by 1.5% in 2002.

On September 22, 1995, the Washington Commission
issued a rate order relating to the Company's fifth annual
rate adjustment under the PRAM. In addition, on
September 30, 1996, the Washington Commission issued
an order granting a joint motion by the Company and the
Washington Commission Staff to transfer annual revenues
of $165.5 million which were being collected in PRAM rates
to the Company’s permanent rate schedules. As a result of
the order, the Company also wrote off $4.5 million in previ-
ously accrued revenues related to special industrial cus-
tomer service contracts. PRAM accrued revenues of $40.5
million, recorded at December 31, 1996, were recovered in
the first quarter of 1997. Over-collection of PRAM revenues
were refunded to customers in the second quarter of 1997.

With the discontinuance of the PRAM, the Company no
longer has a rate adjustment mechanism to adjust for changesin
energy or fuel costs or variances in hydro and weather condi-
tions. These variances may now significantly influence earnings.

On July 8,1998, the Washington Commission approved
the Company’s requested accounting treatment for its pro-
gram to reduce costly tree-caused power outages. The Tree
Watch program, which focuses on controlling vegetation
outside the Company’s rights-of-way, should improve serv-
ice reliability for its customers and result in future savings
in outage recovery costs. The five-year, $43 million program
will be treated as an investment that will be amortized
over ten years. The Company expects the Tree Watch
investment to be offset by savings from lower outage
restoration and storm damage costs over the same period.

RATE MATTERS - GAS

The order approving the Merger, issued by the Washington
Commission on February s, 1997, contains a rate plan
which provided unchanged rates for all classes of natural
gas customers until January 1, 1999, when rates decreased
by 1% on gas utility margins. (See Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the
Company’s PGA mechanism.)

YEAR 2000 CONVERSION

Background The Year 2000 issue results from the use of two
digits rather than four digits in computer hardware and soft-
ware to define the applicable year. If not corrected on com-
puter systems that must process dates both before and after
January 1, 2000, two-digit year fields may create processing
errors or system failures. The Company expects to be Year
2000 ready which means that all mission-critical systems,
devices, applications and business relationships have been
evaluated and are suitable for continued use into and
beyond the Year 2000, or contingency plans are in place.

Project Approach and Progress The Company has established
a central project team to coordinate all Year 2000 activities
and identified exposure in three categories: information tech-
nology; embedded chip technology; and external non-corn-
pliance by customers and suppliers. The project team is tak-
ing a phased approach in conducting the Year 2000 project
for its internal systems. The phases include inventory, assess-
ment, planning/prioritizing, remediation, testing, implemen-
tation and contingency planning. In addition, the Company
has engaged outside consultants and technicians to aid in
formulating and implementing its plan. All business units
have completed the inventory phase, and with the exception
of the Company’s customer information system (“CIS”), dis-
cussed below, assessment is 95% complete for all business
units, with remediation, testing and implementation sched-
uled to be completed during the second quarter of 1999.

The Company has been upgrading mainframe and
client server financial and business applications since 1997
and replacing many of its business systems as part of its
business plans following its merger in 1997. In September,
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1998, the Company implemented a Systems, Applications,
Products in Data Processing (“SAP”) business system which
includes essentially all of the Company’s business applica-
tions with the exception of its CIS. This SAP system is Year
2000 compliant. The remainder of applications and operat-
ing environments, excluding the CIS, are in the remedia-
tion/testing phase. Full implementation of .those applica-
tions and components of the Company’s internal systems
are scheduled for completion by mid-year 1999.

A new CIS which is designed to be Year 2000 compliant is
cu'!rrently being developed by the Company. Development is
expected to be completed in 1999. The Company has also begun
implementation activities with respect to the new system
which will continue during 1999. The Company has also elect-
ed to remediate critical elements of its existing CIS for Year
2000 compliance purposes. The Cormpany has formed a spe-
cialized team which has completed the inventory phase and
currently is conducting assessment and remediation activities
for the existing system. The Company expects to complete the
assessment phase of this project early in May of 1999 followed
immediately by remediation and testing activities which are
expected to be completed in the third quarter of 1999.

A specialized embedded systems team has been formed
by the Company to inventory, assess and remediate micro-
processor technology in its generation, transmission and distri-
bution systems for both gas and electric operations. The inven-
tory and assessment phases of the project are complete.
Although some remediation planning is still in process, signifi-
cant remediation efforts are underway and proceeding accord-
ing to schedule. Testing and implementation are scheduled to
be completed by the end of the second quarter of 1999.
Contingency planning specific to the Year 2000 issue began in
November 1998, and initial reports were submitted to the
Washington Commission and the North American Electric
Reliability Council (“NERC"). These plans will be refined and
updated as remediation and test results are analyzed, and are
scheduled for finalization in the third quarter of 1999.

The Company is also communicating with suppliers,
financial institutions and other business partners to coor-
dinate Year 2000 conversion and determine the extent to
which the Company is exposed to third-party compliance
failures. Approximately 85% of vendors and suppliers have
been contacted to date. All third-party assessment is

scheduled to be completed in March 1999.

In addition, the Company is working with various
industry groups including the NERC and the regional relia-
bility council, the Western Systems Coordinating Council
(“WSCC”) during the millennium transition. The United
States Department of Energy has asked NERC to assume a
leadership role in preparing the U.S. electric industry for
the transition to the Year 2000.

costs While the replacement of business systems under
business plans developed as a result of the Merger are not
included in the Company’s Year 2000 project, those replace-
ments substantially reduce the number of internal business
applications that require remediation. In addition to the
costs of replacing new business systems, the Company has
expended approximately $3.6 million through December 31,
1998, on Year 2000 remediation efforts, exclusive of internal
labor costs. Although it is difficult to determine the total
remaining costs of implementing the Year 2000 plan, the
Company’s current estimate is approximately $14 million, of
which approximately $3 million will be capitalized.

Risk Assessment The electric power supply systems of North
America are connected into three major interconnections
called grids. The western grid covers the western third of the
US, western Canada and parts of Mexico. The BPA is the
largest supplier of transmission services in the Pacific
Northwest. Operational component failures of any entity con-
nected to the grid could cause other failures in that grid. The
Company will need to continue to assess this risk as the mil-
lennium approaches to evaluate the likelihood of power fail-
ures and develop approaches for mitigating the risk of failures.

Much of the natural gas and electric distribution sys-
tems are comprised of wires, poles and pipes containing no
embedded chips. However, these systems do employ some
computer components that could be affected by the Year
2000 transition. Since many of the components used by the
Company exist in multiple sub-station locations, there is a
risk that a component could be missed, a component
manufacturer could provide erroneous information, or the
component (while deemed and tested compliant) could fail
in a specific configuration found at the Company. The
Company has formed a special team to handle these types of
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components (embedded systems), and has retained an inde-
pendent engineering firm with specific utility experience to
assist in the effort. Results of assessment to date reveal that
there are fewer components that are not Year 2000 ready
than initially thought. This is consistent with industry find-
ings published in the NERC report to the Department of
Energy dated January 11,1999.

The failure to correct a material Year 2000 problem could
result in an interruption in, or a failure of, Company business
activities or operations. Such failures could materially and
adversely affect the Company's results of operations, liquidity
and financial condition. Due to the general uncertainty inher-
ent in the Year 2000 problem, resulting in part from the
uncertainty of the Year 2000 readiness of third-party suppli-
ers and customers, the Company is unable to determine at
this time whether the consequences of Year 2000 failures will
have a material impact on the Company’s results of opera-
tions, liquidity or financial condition. The Year 2000 project is
expected to significantly reduce the Company's level of uncer-
tainty about the Year 2000 problem and the Year 2000 readi-
ness of its material vendors. The Company believes that, with
the implementation of new business systems and comple-
tion of the project as scheduled, the possibility of significant
interruptions of normal operations should be reduced.

As discussed above, elements of the Company's current
CIS are not Year 2000 compliant. If the current CIS remedi-
ation activities are not succesful by the year 2000, certain
normal business activities such as customer billing and col-
lections could be adversely affected by interruptions.

Contingency Plans The Company is identifying various sce-
narios that could occur in the event that Year 2000 issues are
not resolved in a timely manner. These efforts will build upon
the work in scenario development and contingency planning
that is being done by the WSCC contingency planning task
force. A specialized team is being formed that will develop
contingency plans and update existing emergency prepared-
ness plans to identify and address risk scenarios for the
Company. Contingency planning is scheduled to continue
through the third quarter of 1999.

Forward-Looking Statements Readers are cautioned that for-
ward-looking statements contained in the Year 2000
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update are based on management’s best estimates and may
be influenced by factors that could cause actual outcomes
and results to be materially different than projected.
Specific factors that might cause differences between the
estimates and actual results include, but are not limited to,
the availability and cost of personnel trained in these areas,
the ability to locate and correct all relevant computer code,
timely responses to and corrections by third-parties and
suppliers, the ability to implement new systems in a timely
manner, the ability to implement interfaces between the
new systems and the systems not being replaced, and sim-
ilar uncertainties. Due to the general uncertainty inherent
in the Year 2000 problem, resulting in part from the uncer-
tainty of the Year 2000 readiness of third-parties and the
interconnection of global businesses, the Company cannot
ensure its ability to timely and cost-effectively resolve prob-
lems associated with Year 2000 issues that may affect its
operations and business, or expose it to third-party liability.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The electric and gas industries in the United States are
undergoing significant changes. The focus of these
changes is to promote competition among suppliers of
electricity and gas and associated services. In 1996 and
1997, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”)
issued orders that require utilities, including the Company,
to file open access transmission tariffs that will make the
utilities’ electric transmission systems available to whole-
sale sellers and buyers on a non-discriminatory basis. A
number of states, including California, have restructured
their electric industries to séparate or “unbundle” power
generation, transmission and distribution in order to per-
mit new competitors to enter the marketplace. In part
because electric rates in the Pacific Northwest have been
among the lowest in the nation, certain of the legislatures
in this region, including Washington, have not yet enacted
laws to provide for competition at the retail level. The
Washington Commission has initiated a pilot program, in
which the Company participates, that permits consumers
limited direct access to competitive energy suppliers. The
Cornpany is actively monitoring developments in this area
and has indicated its support for the enactment of legisla-

SOUNW
ENERGY



tion that would provide increased choice for all electric
service customers in the State of Washington.

In order to better position itself to respond to customer
needs and future restructuring of the utility industry, and
in anticipation of a competitive environment for electric
energy sales, the Company in 1997 organized its utility
operations into separate business units: energy delivery;
energy supply; and customer solutions.

The Company has an Optional Large Power Sales Rate
angd certain “special contracts” for its largest customers.
Customers who elect the Optional Large Power Sales Rate
are no longer considered “core” customers, and the
Company no longer has an obligation to plan for future
resources to serve their needs. The non-core custorners
receive access to electric energy that is priced at current
market cost and pay a charge for energy delivery (including
a charge for conservation programs) and a transition
charge (representing the difference between the
Company’s present cost and the current market cost of
electric energy and capacity). The transition charge will be
phased out before the end of the year 2000. Non-core cus-
tomers also take on the risk that market costs could
become volatile and that electricity could be unavailable
on the open market. In November 1998, a number of indus-
trial customers filed a complaint with the Washington
Comrission that the Company was incorrectly billing for
energy under the Optional Large Power Sales Rate. If the
Washington Commission finds that the Company used an
incorrect index, the Company would owe approximately
$2.6 million in refunds. However, management believes
the proper index has been used and expects the Company
will prevail on this issue.

Since 1986 the Company has been offering gas trans-
portation as a separate service to industrial and commercial
customers who choose to purchase their gas supply directly
from producers and gas marketers. The continued evolution
of the natural gas industry, resulting primarily from FERC
Orders 436,500 and 636, has served to increase the ability of
large gas end-users to bypass the Company in obtaining gas
supply and transportation services. Though the Company
has not lost any substantial industrial or commercial load
as a result of such bypass, in certain years up to 160
customers annually have taken advantage of unbundled

transportation service. During 1998, an average of 123 com-
mercial and industrial customers chose to use such service.

OTHER

On March 20,1991, the Company executed a 20-year contract
to purchase 216 average MW of energy and 245 MW of capac-
ity, beginning in April 1994, from Tenaska Washington
Partners, LP, which owns and operates a natural-gas fired
cogeneration project located near Ferndale, Washington. In
December 1997 and January 1998, the Company and Tenaska
Washington Partners entered into revised agreements which
will lower purchased power costs from the Tenaska project by
restructuring its natural gas supply. The Company paid $215
million to buy out the project’s existing long-term gas supply
contracts, which contained fixed and escalating gas prices
that were well above current and projected future market
prices for natural gas. The Company became the principal
natural gas supplier to the project and power purchase prices
under the Tenaska contract were revised to reflect market-
based prices for the natural gas supply. The Company
obtained an order from the Washington Cormmission creat-
ing a regulatory asset related to the $215 million restructuring
payment. Under terms of the order, the Company is allowed
to accrue as an additional regulatory asset one-half the carry-
ing costs of the deferred balance over the first five years.
These revised arrangements are expected to reduce the
Company’s power supply costs from the Tenaska project
between 15 and 20 percent annually over the remaining 14-
year life of the contract, net of the costs of the restructuring
payment. The Company’s purchased electric energy cost asso-
ciated with the Tenaska contract was $80.1 million in 1998.
On April 1,1998, the Company and Duke Energy Trading
and Marketing (“DETM”) of Houston, a unit of Duke Energy
Corp., signed an agreement relating to energy-marketing
and trading activities in 14 western States and British
Columbia. The purpose of this agreement is to coordinate
the two companies’ activities in serving Puget Sound
Energy’s native power load with DETM’s Western power and
natural gas marketing and trading operations. The compa-
nies share the benefits of this coordination proportionally
up to certain stipulated amounts intended to be reflective of
the value the companies would have realized from their
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respective operations in the absence of the agreement. The
companies share equally any benefits created above the
stipulated amounts.

Under the terms of the agreement, DETM performs the
forward electric energy trading function. As a result, the
Company’s future wholesale “sales to other utilities” rev-
enues and related “secondary purchase” power expenses,
which previously have reflected trading activity by the
Company, will be lower than amounts which the Company
would report absent this agreement. During 1998 the
Company continued to execute in its own name transac-
tions in which electric energy is delivered within the next
30 days. Therefore, the Company’s results include those
transactions. The Company recorded its share of the benefits
that resulted from the agreement as a credit to Purchased
Power Expense. The agreement provides that forward trad-
ing activities will be conducted according to DETM’s energy
price risk and credit policies, and that the Company is not
responsible for any losses caused by deviation from these
policies. The Company and DETM are presently considering
modifications to the agreement.

On November 2, 1998, the Company announced it
signed an agreement to sell the Company’s 735-megawatt
interest in the four-unit, coal-fired Colstrip generation plant
in eastern Montana, as well as associated transmission
facilities. The Company signed the agreement with PP&L
Global, Inc,, of Fairfax, Virginia, a subsidiary of PP&L
Resources, Inc. Included in the sale are the Company’s 50%
interest in Colstrip Units 1 and 2; 25% interest in Units 3and 4;
and associated Colstrip transmission capacity across
Montana. The sales price is expected to be $549 million
before taxes and expenses. The net book value of these
assets and related regulatory assets is approximately $464
million. After consideration of taxes and other costs, the gain
on the sale is expected to be approximately $37.6 million. The
Company expects the Colstrip sale to close in the second
half of 1999. Completion of the sale is contingent on receipt
of acceptable regulatory treatment from the Washington
Commission and the FERC.

The Company has also agreed to join with the other
owners of the coal-fired generating plant at Centralia,
Washington, by offering for sale its 92 megawatt ownership
interest in the facility. As part of the sale process, the
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Centralia owners are reviewing the projected reclamation
liability related to the coal mining operations.

In the fourth quarter of 1998, the Company incurred
$4.7 million of transmission and distribution repair costs in
connection with restoring electric service following a
severe wind storm that occurred on November 23, 1998.
Under an order established by the Washington
Commission, these costs were deferred for collection in
future rates.

For a discussion of Issue 98-10, “Accounting For
Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management
Activities” issued by the Emerging Issues Task Force of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) in 1998, see
Note 1to the Consolidated Financial Staternents.

For a discussion of Statement of Position 98-, “Reporting
on the Costs of Start-up Activities” (“SOP 98-5”) issued by the
Accounting Standards Executive Committee in April 1998,
see Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For a discussion of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“Statement No.133") issued by the FASBin
June 1998, see Note 1to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MARKET RISKS

The Company is exposed to market risks, including changes
in commodity prices and interest rates.

Commodity Price Risk The prices of energy commodities and
transportation services are subject to fluctuations due to
unpredictable factors including weather, transportation
cohgestion and other factors which impact supply and
demand. This commodity price risk is a consequence of
purchasing energy at fixed and variable prices and provid-
ing deliveries at different tariff and variable prices. Costs
associated with ownership and operation of production
facilities are another component of this risk. The Company
may use forward delivery agreements and option contracts
for the purpose of hedging commodity price risk.
Unrealized changes in the market value of these deriva-
tives are deferred and recognized upon settlement along
with the underlying hedged transaction. In addition, the
Company believes its current rate design, including its
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Optional Large Power Sales Rate, various special contracts
and the PGA mechanism mitigate a portion of this risk.

Four option contracts entered into directly by the
Company were outstanding at Decermber 31,1998, and had
a market value at that date which approximated the option
premiums paid by the Company.

Operating results are also influenced by the impact of
market prices on the value of physical and derivative com-
modity contracts entered into by DETM as part of their
agreement with the Company. Changes in the market
value of all of these derivatives are recorded on a mark-to-
market basis into income by DETM and can affect the
Company’s revenues from the DETM agreement.

DETM measures the market risk of physical and finan-
cial contracts entered into under the DETM Agreement using
a value at risk model. The Company’s proportionate share of
the value at risk at December 31,1998 was not material.

Market risk is managed subject to parameters estab-
lished by the Board of Directors. A Risk Mandgement
Committee separate from the units that create these risks
monitors compliance with the Company’s policies and pro-
cedures. In addition, the Audit Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors has oversight of the Risk
Management Committee.

Interest rate risk The Company believes interest rate risks of
the Company primarily relate to the use of short-term debt
instruments and new long-term debt financing needed to
fund capital requirements. The Company manages its inter-
est rate risk through the issuance of mostly fixed-rate debt
of various maturities. The Company does utilize bank bor-
rowings, commercial paper and line of credit facilities to
meet short-term cash requirements. These short-term obli-
gations are commonly refinanced with fixed rate bonds or
notes when needed and when interest rates are considered
favorable. The Company may enter into swap instruments
to manage the interest rate risk associated with these debts,
and one interest rate swap was outstanding as of December
31, 1998. The carrying amounts and fair values of the
Company’s fixed rate debt instruments are described in

* Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 8.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

See index on page 60.

Item 9.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS
WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
Part Il

Part III is incorporated by reference from the Company’s
definitive proxy statement issued in connection with the
1999 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Certain information regarding executive officers is set
forth in Part L.

Part IV Item 14.
EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL

STATEMENT SCHEDULE AND
REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
1) Financial statement schedule - see index on page 60.
2) Exhibits - see index on page 92.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K:
1) Form 8K filed November 13, 1998 - Item 5 — Other
Events, and Item 7 — Exhibits, related to an Asset

Purchase Agreement for the sale of the Company’s
interest in the Colstrip coal-fired generating plant.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PUGET SOUND ENERGY, INC.

/s/ William S. Weaver

William S. Weaver

President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: March 4,1999

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

Title

Date

/s/ William S. Weaver

(William S. Weaver)

/s/ R.R. Sonstelie

(R.R. Sonstelie)

/s/ James W. Eldredge

(James W. Eldredge)

/s/ Douglas P. Beighle

(Douglas P. Beighle)

/s/ Charles W. Bingham

(Charles W. Bingham)

/s/ Phyllis J. Campbell

(Phyllis 3. Campbell)

/s/ Donald J. Covey

(Donald J. Covey)

/s/ Robert Dryden

(Robert Dryden)

/s/ John D. Durbin

(John D. Durbin)

(John W. Ellis)

/s/ Daniel J. Evans

{Daniel J. Evans)

/s/ Tomio Moriguchi

(Tomio Moriguchi)

/s/ Sally G. Narodick

(Sally G. Narodick)

President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

Chairman of the Board

Corporate Secretary and Controller
and Chief Accounting Officer

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Piredor
Director
Director
Director

Director

——  March 4,1999
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PUGET SOUND ENERGY

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Puget Sound Energy, Inc. have been prepared under the direc-
tion of management, which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The statements have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and include amounts based on judgments and estimates by
management where necessary. Management also prepared the other information in the Annual Report on Form 10-K
and is responsible for its accuracy and consistency with the financial statements. f
'The Company maintains a system of internal control which, in management’s opinion, provides reasonable assur- .
ance that assets are properly safeguarded and transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authoriza- |
tion and properly recorded to produce reliable financial records and reports. The system of internal control provides for i
appropriate division of responsibility and is documented by written policy and updated as necessary. The Company’s
internal audit staff assesses the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal controls on a regular basis and recommends
improvements when appropriate. Management considers the internal auditor’s and independent auditor's recommen- I
dations concerning the Company’s internal controls and takes steps to implement those that they believe are appropri-
ate in the circumstances.
In addition, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent auditors, have performed audit procedures deemed:
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. :
The Board of Directors pursues its oversight role for the financial statements through the audit committee, which :
is composed solely of outside Directors. The audit committee meets regularly with management, the internal auditors |
and the independent auditors, jointly and separately, to review management’s process of implementation and mainte- .
nance of internal accounting controls and auditing and financial reporting matters. The internal and independent |
auditors have unrestricted access to the audit committee. :

/s/ William S. Weaver /s/ Richard L. Hawley /s/ James W. Eldredge

William S. Weaver Richard L. Hawley James W. Eldredge

President and Chief Executive Officer Vice President and Chief Corporate Secretary and Controller
' Financial Officer (Chief Accounting Officer)

PG 57
PUGET

SOUND

ENERGY



PG 58

i
|
i
|

: Report of

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders of Puget Sound Energy, Inc.

In our opinion, based upon our audits and the report of other auditors, the consolidated financial statements listed
on page 60 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Puget
Sound Energy, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of their opera-
tions and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,1998, in conformity with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed on page 60 of
this document presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with
the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
and the financial statement schedule based on our audits. The consolidated financial statements give retroactive effect
to the February 10, 1997 merger of Washington Energy Company (“WECo") and its principal subsidiary, Washington
Natural Gas (“WNG"), in a transaction accounted for as a pooling of interests which is discussed in Note 1 to the consol-
idated financial statements. We did not audit the consolidated financial statements and the financial statement sched-
ule of WECo and its principal subsidiary, WNG, which statements reflect total revenues of $426 million for the year
ended December 31,1996. Those financial statements and the financial statement schedule were audited by other audi-
tors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included in the year ended December 31,1996 for WECo and WNG, is based solely on the report of the other
auditors. We conducted our audits of these financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing stan-
dards which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Seattle, Washington
February 11,1999

|
|
|
|
|
i
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Report of
INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of Washington Energy Company:

We have audited the consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ earnings (deficit) reinvested in the business, pre-
mium on common stock and cash flows of Washington Energy Company (a Washington corporation) and subsidiaries
for the year ended September 30,1996, and the consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ earnings reinvested in
the business, premium on common stock and cash flows of Washington Natural Gas Company (a Washington corpora-
tion) and subsidiaries for the year ended September 30,1996. These financial statements, which are not included in this
Form 10K, are the responsibility of the companies’ management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of mate-
rial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

On February 10,1997, Washington Energy Company and its principal subsidiary Washington Natural Gas Company, in a
transaction accounted for as a pooling-of-interests, merged with Puget Sound Power and Light to form Puget Sound Energy.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the results of opera-
tions of Washington Energy Company and subsidiaries and of Washington Natural Gas Company and subsidiaries and
their cash flows for the year ended September 30,1996, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Arthur Andersen LLP

Seattle, Washington, .
October 31,1996 (except with respect to the matter discussed
in the third paragraph above, for which the date is February 10,1997)
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' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
'FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE AND EXHIBITS

 Covered by the Foregoing Report of Independent Accountants

iCONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: PAGE

‘ Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31,1998, 1997 and 1996 61
9 Consolidated Balance Sheets, December 31,1998 and 1997 62
5 Consolidated Statements of Capitalization, December 31,1998 and 1997 64

Consolidated Statements of Earnings Reinvested in the Business
for the years ended December 31,1998, 1997 and 1996 65

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years
' ended December 31,1998, 1997 and 1996 65

i Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended December 31,1998, 1997 and 1996 66

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 67
' SCHEDULE:

II. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves for the
years ended December 31,1998, 1997 and 1996 91

All other schedules have been omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they
are required, or because the information required is included in the financial statements or the
notes thereto.

Financial statements of the Company'’s subsidiaries are not filed herewith inasmuch as the assets,
revenues, earnings and earnings reinvested in the business of the subsidiaries are not material in
relation to those of the Company.

EXHIBITS:

Exhibit Index 92
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Consolidated Statements of

INCOME
(For YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 1998 1997 1996
Operating Revenues: .
Electric $ 1,475,208 $ 1,231,424 $ 1,198,769
Gas 416,551 409,447 400,108
Other 15,581 36,031 50,402
Total operating revenues 1,907,340 1,676,902 1,649,279
Operating Expenses:
‘Energy Costs:
Purchased electricity 752,148 614,929 562,314
Residential Exchange {55.562) {71,970) (103,154)
Purchased gas 175,805 179,287 177,719
Fuel 56,557 41,455 40,645
Utility operations and maintenance 237,835 251,390 243,085
Other operations and maintenance 7,614 21,256 32,234
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 165,587 161,865 144,206
Merger and related costs — 55,789 4,835
Taxes other than federal income taxes 160,472 159,310 155,174
Federal income taxes 107,904 47,725 107,747
Total operating expenses 1608360  1461,036 1,364,805
Operating Income 298,980 215,866 284,474
Other Income 9,192 28,066 1,593
Income Before Interest Charges 308,172 243,932 286,067
Interest Charges:
AFUDC (7.580) (5.205) (3.919)
Interest expense 146,140 123,439 122,635
Total interest charges 138,560 118,234 118,716
Income from Continuing Operations 169,612 125,698 167,351
Discontinued Operations:
Loss from operations, net of tax — — {1,386)
Loss on disposal, net of tax — (2,622) (446)
Net Income 169,612 123,076 165,519
Less Preferred Stock Dividends Accrual 13,003 17,806 22,181
Preferred Stock Redemptions — 4N —
Income for Commeon Stock $ 156,609 $ 105741 $ 143,338
Cormmon Shares Outstanding Weighted Average 84,561 84,560 84,418
Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share:
From continuing operations $ 185 S 1.28 S 172
From discontinued operations — (0.03) (0.02)
Basic and diluted earnings per common share $ 1.85 $ 1.25 $ 170
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
HERN-
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS
(AT DECEMBER 31; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997
Utility Plant: o B
Electric plant $ 3,827,685 S 3,632,652
Gas plant 1,324,323 1,231,109
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,721,096 1,613,300
Net utility plant 3,430,912 3,250,461
Other Property and Investments:
Investment in Bonneville Exchange Power Contract 70,537 78,880
Other 192,863 200,764
Total other property and investments 263,400 279,644
Current Assets:
Cash 25,278 7759
Accounts receivable 201,980 158,927
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,021) (971)
Total accounts receivable 200,959 157,956
Unbilled revenues 126,740 122,831
Purchased gas receivable 5,492 —
Materials and supplies, at average cost 58,534 54,423
Prepayments and other 7,296 5,420
Total current assets 424,299 348,389
Long-Term Assets:
Regulatory asset for deferred income taxes 241,406 258,430
PURPA buyout costs 221,802 215,000
Other 138,870 141,446
Total long-term assets 602,078 614,876
Total Assets $ 4,720,689 $ 4,493,370

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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i Consolidated Balance Sheets

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

(AT DECEMBER 31; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997
Capitalization:
(See “Consolidated Statements of Capitalization”):
Common equity $ 1,352,680 $ 1,358,077
! Preferred stock not subject to mandatory redemption 95,075 95,488
e Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption 73,162 78,134
; Corporation obligated, mandatorily redeemable preferred
I securities of subsidiary trust holding solely junior
subordinated debentures of the corporation 100,000 100,000
Long-term debt 1,474,748 1,411,707
Total capitalization 3,095,665 3,043,406
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 167,691 124,899
Short-term debt 450,905 372,538
Current maturities of long-term debt 107,000 51,000
Purchased gas liability - 876
Accrued expenses:
7 Taxes 72,883 73,636
; Salaries and wages 16,053 15,326
i Interest 39,062 27,704
Other 23,008 24,847
) Total current liabilities 876,602 690,826
g Deferred Income Taxes 628,554 629,018
g Other Deferred Credits 119,868 130,120
Commitments and Contingencies — —
‘ Total Capitalization and Liabilities $ 4,720,689 $ 4,493.370
‘ The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
. — o
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Consolidated Statements of

CAPITALIZATION

AT DECEMBER 31; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997
Commuon Equity:
Common stock ($10 stated value) - 150,000,000 shares authorized,

84,560,561 and 84,560,645 shares outstanding $ 845,606 $ 845,606
Additional paid-in capital 450,724 450,845
Earnings reinvested in the business 47,548 46,672
Accumulated other comprehensive income - net 8,802 14,954

Total common equity 1,352,680 1,358,077

Preferred Stock Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption - cumulative, $25 par value:*
Adjustable Rate, Series B - 2,000,000 shares authorized,

203,006 and 219,506 shares outstanding 5,075 5,488
7.45% series II - 2,400,000 shares authorized and outstanding 60,000 60,000
8.50% series Il - 1,200,000 shares authorized and outstanding 30,000 30,000

Total preferred stock not subject to mandatory redemption 95,075 95,488

Preferred Stock Subject To Mandatory Redemption - cumulative, $100 par value:*
4.84% series - 150,000 shares authorized, 14,808 shares outstanding 1,481 1,481
4.70% series - 150,000 shares authorized, 4,311 shares outstanding 431 431
8% series - 150,000 shares authorized, -o- and 12,224 shares outstanding — 1,222
7:75% series — 750,000 shares authorized, 712,500 and 750,000 shares outstanding 71,250 75,000
Total preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption 73,162 78,134
Corporation obligated, mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary
trust holding solely junior subordinated debentures of the corporation 100,000 100,000
Long-Term Debt:
First mortgage bonds and senior notes 1,420,000 1,301,000
Pollution control revenue bonds:

. Revenue refunding 1991 series, due 2021 50,900 50,900
Revenue refunding 1992 series, due 2022 87,500 87,500
Revenue refunding 1993 series, due 2020 23,460 23,460

Other notes 12 17
Unamortized discount - net of premium (124) (170)
Long-term debt due within one year {107,000) (51,000)
Total long-term debt excluding current maturities 1,474.748 1,411,707

Total Capitalization $ 3,095,665 $ 3,043,406

[The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

13,000,000 shares authorized for $25 par value preferred stock and 3,000,000 shares authorized for $100 par value preferred stock.
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Consolidated Statements of
EARNINGS REINVESTED
(For YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 1998 997 3 1996
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 46,672 $ 86,355 $_- ' _8:125
Net Income 169,612 123,076 165,519
Adjustment to conform fiscal year of WECo — 10,835 ) o —
Total ’ 216,284 220266 2_457—713
Deductions:
Dividends declared:
I Preferred stock:
Adjustable Rate Series B 272 2,010 2,716
$1.86 per share on 7.45% series Il 4,470 4,470 4,470
$2.13 per share on 8.50% series III 2,550 2,550 2,550
$4.84 per share on 4.84% series 72 192 232
$4.70 per share on 4.70% series 20 203 265
$8.00 per share on 8% series 25 122 218
$7.75 per share on 7.75% series 5,667 5,813 5,813
$1.97 per share on 7.875% series — 3,940 5,906
Common Stock 155,591 150,591 141,248
Preferred stock redemptions 69 3703 -
Total deductions 168,736 - 173,594 - 163418
Balance at End of Year $ 47548 $ 46672  § 86355
Dividends Declared Per Cornmon Share $ 184 $ 1.78 $ 1.67
Consolidated Statements of
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
: (For YEARs ENDED DECEMBER 31; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 o 997 7__;9_9‘67 |
‘Net Incorme $ 169,612 $ 123,076 $ 165,519
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on available
for sale securities (6,152) 14,954 —
Comprehensive Income $ 163,460 $ 138,030 $ 165519
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
s
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Consolidated Statements of

CASH FLOW
FORr YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1996
Operating Activities:
Income from continuing operations $ 169,612 $ 125698 $ 1673%1
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing
operations to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 165,587 161,865 144,206
Deferred income taxes and tax credits - net 16,560 27,422 6,842
PRAM accrued revenues - net — 40,777 74,326
Pretax write-down and equity in undistributed
losses of unconsolidated affiliate — 4,044 961
PURPA buyout costs — (215,000) —
Other (14.792) 43,286 (21,918)
Change in certain current assets and liabilities (22,692) (58,394) 27,809
Net cash provided by operating activities 314,275 129,698 399,577
[nvesting Activities:
Construction expenditures - excluding equity AFUDC (335,471) (257,900) (205,050)
Energy conservation expenditures (6,745) (4.864) (6,683)
Cash received from sale of conservation assets - net — 34,372 —
Proceeds from property sales 6,877 7,013 34,000
Other 1,967 17,703 (7.384)
Net cash used by investing activities (333,372) (203,676) (185,117)
Financing Activities:
Increase (decrease) in short-term debt 78,367 85,975 (30,921)
Dividends paid (168,667) (169,892) (163,418)
Issuance of common and preferred stock — 65 3,686
Issuance of company obligated, mandatorily
redeemable preferred securities —_ 100,000 —
Redemption of preferred stock (5.454) (128,747) (1,200)
Issuance of bonds 200,000 300,000 34,470
Redemption of bonds and notes (81,004) (102,844) (72,612)
Other 13,374 (4.572) (558)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 36,616 79,985 (230,553)
Increase (Decrease) in cash from continuing operations 17,519 6,007 (16,093)
Decrease in cash from discontinued operations:
Operating activities — — (1,386)
Investing activities — (2,622) —
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 17,519 3,385 (17.479)
Cash at Beginning of Year 7.759 4,335 21,814
Adjustment to conform fiscal year of WECo — 39 -
Cash at End of Year $ 25278 $ 7.759 $ 4,335
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES

To Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation Puget Sound Energy, Inc, formerly Puget
Sound Power & Light Company (“the Company”),is an investor-
owned public utility incorporated in the State of Washington
furnjishing electric, and since February 10,1997, gas service in a
territory covering approximately 6,000 square miles, princi-
pally in the Puget Sound region of Washington state. On
February 10, 1997, the Company completed a merger (“the
Merger”) with Washington Energy Company (“WECo”) and its
principal subsidiary, Washington Natural Gas Company
(“WNG"). The change of the Company’s name was effective
with the merger. Herein, the Company refers to the combined
entity; Puget Power and WECo refer to the individual entities.

The merger has been structured as a tax-free exchange of
shares, and is accounted for as a pooling of interests for finan-
cial statement purposes. Accordingly, the consolidated finan-
cial statements have been retroactively restated to include
the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of
WECo and WNG for all periods prior to consummation of the
merger. Financial information prior to January 1, 1997, con-
tained herein reflects fiscal years ended December 31 for
Puget Power and Septernber 30 for WECo. Certain reclassifica-
tions have been made to the 1997 and 1996 financial state-
ments to conform to the 1998 presentation with no effect on
consolidated net income, total assets or common equity.

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and all its significant wholly-
owned subsidiaries, after elimination of all significant
intercompany items and transactions. One immaterial
subsidiary is stated on an equity basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and dis-
closure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Utility Plant The costs of additions to utility plant, including
renewals and betterments, are capitalized at original cost.
Costs include indirect costs such as engineering, supervision,
certain taxes and pension and other employee benefits,and an
allowance for funds used during construction. Replacements
of minor items of property are included in maintenance
expense. The original cost of operating property together with
removal cost, less salvage, is charged to accumulated deprecia-
tion when the property is retired and removed from service.

Regulatory Assets & Agreements The Company prepares its
financial statements in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, “Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (“Statement No. 71").
Statement No. 71 requires the Company to defer certain costs
that would otherwise be charged to expense, if it is probable
that future rates will permit recovery of such costs.
Accounting under Statement No. 71 is appropriate as long as:
rates are established by or subject to approval by independ-
ent, third-party regulators; rates are designed to recover the
specific enterprise’s cost-of-service; and in view of demand
for service, it is reasonable to assume that rates set at levels
that will recover costs can be charged to and collected from
customers. In applying Statement No. 71, the Company must
give consideration to changes in the level of demand or com-
petition during the cost recovery period. In accordance with
Statement No. 71, the Company capitalizes certain costs in
accordance with regulatory authority whereby those costs
will be expensed and recovered in future periods.

Net regulatory assets and liabilities at December 31,1998
and 1997, included the following:
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(DoLLARS IN MILLIONS) 1998 1997
Deferred income taxes $2414 $258.4
PURPA buyout costs 221.8 215.0
Investment in BEP Exchange Contract 70.5 78.9
Unamortized energy

conservation charges 71 6.9
Storm damage costs 34.6 33.4
Various other costs 63.0 68.2
Deferred gains on property sales (17.2) (17.5)
Total $621.2 $643.3
535



If the Company, at some point in the future, deter-
mines that all or a portion of the utility operations no
longer meets the criteria for continued application of
Statement No. 71, the Company would be required to adopt
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 101, “Regulated Enterprises - Accounting for
the Discontinuation of Application of FASB Statement No.
71" (“Statement No. 101”). Adoption of Statement No. 101
would require the Company to write off the regulatory
assets and liabilities related to those operations not meet-
ing Statement No. 71 requirements. Discontinuation of
Statement No. 71 could have a material impact on the
Company'’s financial statements.

The Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITE”) of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) met in May
and July of 1997 to address the issues of when an entity
should discontinue the application of Statement No. 71, and
how Statement No. 101 should be applied to a portion of an
entity subject to a transition-to-competition plan. As a
result of these meetings, a consensus was reached that
Statement No. 71 should be discontinued at a date no later
than when the details of the transition-to-competition
plan for all or a portion of the entity subject to such plan
are known. Additionally, the EITF reached a consensus that
stranded costs which are to be recovered through cash
flows derived from another portion of the entity which
continues to apply Statement No. 71 should not be written
off; rather, they should be considered regulatory assets of
the segment which will continue to apply Statement No. 71.

The Company'’s financial statements continue to apply
Statement No. 71 for regulated operations. Although dis-
cussions with regulatory authorities regarding retail com-
petition have occurred and are expected to continue, no
final transition to competition plans for the Company’s
regulated operations have yet been adopted or proposed.

The Company, in prior years, incurred costs associated
with its §% interest in a now-terminated nuclear generat-
ing project (identified herein as “Investment in Bonneville
Exchange‘ Power (“BEP”)"). Under terms of a settlement
agreement with the Bonneville Power Administration
(“BPA"), which settled claims of the Company relating to
construction delays associated with that project, the
Company is receiving, over 30.5 years, power from the

federal power system resources marketed by BPA.
Approximately two-thirds of the Company’s investment in
BEP is included in rate base and amortized on a straight-line
basis over the life of the contract (amortization is included
in “Purchased and interchanged power”). The remainder of
the Company’s investment is being recovered in rates over
ten years, without a return during the recovery period (the
related amortization is included in “Depreciation and
Amortization”, pursuant to a FERC accounting order).

The Company has recorded a regulatory asset for $21i5
raillion related to the buyout of a gas sales contract of a
non-utility generator. A Washington Commission account-
ing order approved the payment for deferral and collection
in rates over the remaining life of the energy supply con-
tract. Under terms of the order, the Company is allowed to
accrue as an additional regulatory asset one-half the carry-
ing costs of the deferred balance over the first five years.

The Company also has agreements under which
ConneXt, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company per-
forms certain billing and customer information technology
functions. Under an accounting order approved by the
Washington Commission, the Company records payments to
ConneXt as if such costs were paid to third-party providers
and these costs will be reviewed in a future rate filing.

Operating Revenues Operating revenues are recorded on the
basis of service rendered, which includes estimated unbilled
revenue and, prior to October 1, 1996, revenue accrued
under the Periodic Rate Adjustment Mechanism (‘PRAM").

Energy Conservation The Company accumulates energy con-
servation expenditures which are included in rate base and
amortized to expense as prescribed by the Washington
Commission.

In June 1995, the Company sold approximately $202.5 mil-
lion of its investment in customer-owned energy conservation
measures to a grantor trust which, in turn, issued securities
backed by a Washington state statute enacted in 1994. The
Company sold an additional investment of $35.2 million in cus-
tomer-owned energy conservation measures in August 1997.
The proceeds of the sales were used to pay down short-term
debt. The Company recognized no gain or loss on the sales.
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Self-Insurance The Company currently has no insurance
coverage for storm damage and is self-insured for a portion
of the risk associated with comprehensive liability, industri-
al accidents and catastrophic property losses. With approval
of the Washington Commission, the Company is able to
defer for collection in future rates certain uninsured storm
damage costs associated with major storms.

Depreciation and Amortization For financial statement pur-
pgses, the Company provides for depreciation on a
str'aight—line basis. The depreciation of automobiles, trucks,
power operated equipment and tools is allocated to asset
and expense accounts based on usage. The annual depreci-
ation provision stated as a percent of average original cost
of depreciable electric utility plant was 3.0% in 1998, 1997
and 1996 and for depreciable gas utility plant was 3.4% in
1998 and 1997 and 3.6% in 1996.

Federal Income Taxes The Company normalizes, with the
approval of the Washington Commission, certain items.
Deferred taxes have been determined under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 109. Investment tax
credits are deferred and amortized based on the average
useful life of the related property in accordance with regu-
latory and income tax requirements. (See Note 13.)

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction The Allowance
for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC") represents
the cost of both the debt and equity funds used to finance
utility plant additions during the construction period. The
amount of AFUDC recorded in each accounting period
varies depending principally upon the level of construction
work in progress and the AFUDC rate used. AFUDC is capi-
talized as a part of the cost of utility plant and is credited as
a non-cash item to other income and interest charges cur-
rently. Cash inflow related to AFUDC does not occur until
these charges are reflected in rates.

The AFUDC rate allowed by the Washington
Commission for gas utility plant additions was g.15% in
1998 and 1997 and 9.03% in 1996. The allowed AFUDC rate
on electric utility plant was 8.94% during the same period.
To the extent amounts calculated using this rate exceed
the AFUDC calculated using the Federal Energy Regulatory

Commission (“FERC") formula, the Company capitalizes the
excess as a deferred asset, crediting miscellaneous income.
The amounts included in income were: $3,409,000 for
1998, $2,704,000 for 1997 and $2,112,000 for 1996. The
deferred asset is being amortized over the average useful
life of the Company’s non-project utility plant.

Periodic Rate Adjustment Mechanism In April 1991, the
Washington Commission issued an order establishing a
PRAM designed to operate as an interim rate adjustment
mechanism between electric general rate cases. Under the
PRAM, Puget Power was allowed to request annual rate
adjustments, on a prospective basis, to reflect changes in
certain costs as set forth in the PRAM order. Also, under
terms of the order, recovery of certain costs was decoupled
from levels of electricity sales.

Rates established for the PRAM period were subject to
future adjustment based on actual customer growth and
variations in certain costs, principally those affected by hydro
and weather conditions. To the extent revenue billed to cus-
tomers varied from amounts ailowed under the methodology
established in the PRAM order, the difference was accumulat-
ed, without interest, for rate recovery which was then estab-
lished in the next PRAM hearing. In its September 22, 1995,
order, the Washington Coramission approved Puget Power's
last PRAM filing and the recovery of $71.2 million over the
period October 1, 1995, through September 30, 1996. In addi-
tion to approval of the rate adjustment, the Commission also
agreed, pursuant to a negotiated settlement, to discontinue
the PRAM on September 30, 1996, the end of the last PRAM
period. PRAM accrued revenues of $40.5 million, recorded at
December 31,1996, were recovered in the first quarter of 1997.
Over-collection of PRAM revenues was refunded to customers
in the second quarter of 1997.

With the discontinuance of the PRAM, the Company
no longer has a rate adjustment mechanism to adjust for
changes in energy or fuel costs or variances in hydro and
weather conditions. These variances may now significantly
influence earnings.
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PGA Mechanism Differences between the actual cost of the
Company's gas supplies and that currently allowed by the
Washington Commission are deferred and recovered or repaid
through the purchased gas adjustrment (“PGA”) mechanism.
On June 25,1998, the Company received approval from
the Washington Commission to begin a new performance-
based mechanism for strengthening its gas-supply pur-
chasing and gas-storage practices. The PGA Incentive
Mechanism, which encourages competitive gas purchasing
and management of pipeline and storage-capacity, became
effective July 1, 1998. Incentive gains and losses from the
three-year program are shared between customers and
shareholders. After the first $0.5 million, which is allocated
to customers, gains and losses are shared 40%/60%
between the Company and custorers up to $26.5 million
and 33%/67% thereafter. Gains or losses are determined rel-
ative to a weighted average index which is reflective of the
Company’s gas supply and transportation contract costs.
The Company’s share of incentive gains under the PGA
Incentive Mechanism in 1998 were approximately $1.1 mil-
lion while customers received approximately $2.0 million.

Off-System Sales and Capacity Release The Company has
been selling excess gas supplies and entering into gas sup-
ply exchanges with third parties outside of its distribution
area since 1992. The Company began releasing to third par-
ties excess interstate gas pipeline capacity and gas storage
rights on a short-term basis in 1993 and 1994, respectively.
The Company contracts for firm gas supplies and holds
firm transportation and storage capacity sufficient to meet
the expected peak winter demand for gas for space heating
by its firm customers. Due to the variability in weather and
other factors, however, the Company holds contractual
rights to gas supplies and transportation and storage
capacity in excess of its immediate requirements to serve
firm customers on its distribution system for much of the
year which, therefore, are available for third-party gas
sales, exchanges and capacity releases. The net proceeds
from such activities are accounted for as reductions in the
cost of purchased gas and passed on to customers through
the PGA mechanism, with no direct impact on net income.
As a result, the Company does not reflect sales revenue or
associated cost of sales for these transactions in its income

statement. The net proceeds from these activities were
$22,071,881, $16,759,000 and $10,711,000 for 1998, 1997 and
1996, respectively.

Risk Management and Energy Trading The Company’s energy
related businesses are exposed to risks related to changes in
commodity prices. As part of its business, the Company mar-
kets power to other utilities and power marketers by entering
into contracts to purchase or supply electric energy or natural
gas at specified delivery points and at specified future deliv-
ery dates. The Company’s energy trading function manages
the Company’s core electric and gas supply portfolios as well
as non-core incremental energy supply trading activities.
The Company enters into futures and options for the
purpose of hedging commodity price picks. Gains or losses
on these derivatives are deferred and recognized upon set-
tlement along with the underlying sales or purchase con-
tract. The Company has established policies and procedures
to manage these risks. A Risk Management Committee sep-
arate from the units that create these risks monitors compli-
ance with the Company’s policies and procedures. In addi-
tion, the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of
Directors has oversight of the Risk Managernent Committee.

other Debt premium, discount and expenses are amortized
over the life of the related debt. The premiums and costs
associated with reacquired debt are being amortized over
the life of the related new issuances, in accordance with
ratermaking treatment.

In June 1997, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive
Income” (“Statement No. 130"), which establishes rules for
reporting and displaying comprehensive income and its com-
ponents. In June 1997, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“Statement No.
131"), which established requirements that companies report
certain information about operating segments. In February
1998, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions
and Other Postretirement Benefits” (“Statement No. 132"),
which standardizes the disclosure requirements for pen-
sions and other postretirement benefits. The Company
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adopted these statements in 1998 which resulted in addi-
tional financial disclosures but no impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

During 1998, the EITF of the FASB released Issue 98-10,
“Accounting for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and
Risk Management Activities” (“EITF 98-10”). EITF 98-10
addresses accounting for the purchase and sale of energy
trading contracts. The conclusion reached by the EITF was
that such energy trading contracts should be recorded at
fair value with the mark-to-market gains or losses recorded
in current earnings. EITF 98-10 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15,1998. The Company does not
consider its current operations to meet the definition of
trading activities as described by EITF 98-10, other than the
activities entered into on the Company’s behalf through the
contract with DETM. These activities are currently account-
ed for using fair value and mark-to-market accounting.
Accordingly, the Company has concluded that the adoption
of EITF 98-10 will not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In April 1998, the Accounting Standards Executive
Committee issued Statement of Position 98-, “Reporting
on the Costs of Start-Up Activities” (“SOP 98-5”). SOP 98-5 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,1998.
SOP 98-5 provides guidance on the financial reporting of
start-up costs and organization costs. It requires costs of
start-up activities and organization costs to be expensed as
incurred. The Company has not yet determined the impact

~that the adoption of SOP 98-5 will have on its financial

position or results of operations.

In June 1998, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“Statement No. 133").
Statement No. 133 is effective for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2000. Statement No. 133 requires that all
derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at
their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are
recorded each period in current earnings or other compre-
hensive income, depending on whether a derivative is des-
ignated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type
of hedge transaction. The Company has not yet determined
the impact that the adoption of Statement No. 133 will have
on its financial statements or the timing of adoption.

Earnings Per Common Share During 1997, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
128, “Earnings per Share” (“Statement No. 128"). As required
under Statement No. 128, earnings per share data have
been restated for all prior periods presented.

Basic earnings per common share have been computed
based on weighted average common shares outstanding of
84,561,000, 84,560,000 and 84,418,000 for 1998, 1997 and
1996, respectively. Diluted earnings per common share have
been computed based on weighted average common shares
outstanding of 84,768,000, 84,628,000 and 84,449,000 for
1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively, which include the dilutive
effect of securities related to employee compensation plans.

NOTE 2.
Property Plant and Equipment

DECEMBER 31 (DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997
Electric and gas utility plant

classified by Prescribed accounts

at original cost:

Distribution plant $ 2,794,906 $ 2,674,234
Production plant 943,808 939,211
Transmission plant 641,526 625,779
General plant 375,612 333,140
Construction work in progress 266,242 123,690
Completed work not classified — 58,216
Intangible plant 99,776 78,491
Underground storage 16,307 16,277
Plant held for future use 9,016 10,263
Other 4,815 4,460
Total electric and gas

utility plant $ 5152,008 $ 4,863,761
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NOTE 3.
Capital Stock

PREFERRED STOCK

Nor SuBiecT TO SUBJECT TO COMMON Stock
MANDATORY MANDATORY WitHouT Pag
REDEMPTION REDEMPTION VALUE i
$25 PAR VALUE $100 Par VALUE  ($10 STATED VALUE)
Shares outstanding January 1,1996 8,600,000 890,395 84,340,755
Issued to Shareholders Under the Stock
Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan:
1996 — — 148,417
1997 — - 33,930
Issued Pursuant to Employee Compensation Plans:
1996 — — 21,886
1997 — . 17063
Issued Pursuant to Directors’ Stock Bonus Plan:
.1996 — — . 187
Acquired for Sinking Fund:
1996 — (12,000) -
1997 — (12,050) —
1998 — (49.500) —
Called for Redemption and Canceled:
1997 (4.780,494) (85.002) —
1998 (26,500) (2 =
Fractional Share Redemptions in Connection with Merger Exchange:
1997 — — (1593)
1998 — — (84)
Shares outstanding December 31,1998 3,803,006 731,619 84,560,561

See “Consolidated Statements of Capitalization” for details on specific series.

On January 15,1991, the Board of Directors declared a div-
idend of one preference share purchase right (a “Right”) on
each outstanding common share of the Company. The divi-
dend was distributed on January 25, 1991, to shareholders of
record on that date. The Rights will be exercisable only if a
person or group acquires 10 percent or more of the Company’s
common stock or announces a tender offer which, if consum-
mated, would result in ownership by a person or group of 10
percent or more of the common stock. Each Right entitles the
registered holder to purchase from the Company one one-
thousandth of a share of Preference Stock, $50 par value per
share, at an exercise price of $4s, subject to adjustments. The
description and terms of the Rights are set forth in a Rights

Agreement between the Company and The Bank of New
York, as Rights Agent. The Rights expire on January 25, 2001,
unless earlier redeermed by the Company.

The weighted average dividend rate for the Adjustable
Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock (“ARPS”), Series B ($25 par
value) was 4.83% for 1998, 5.61% for 1997 and 5.49% for
1996. The Company reacquired 16,500 shares of ARPS
Series B through open-market purchases during 1998 and
redeemed the remaining ARPS on February 2, 1999 at $25
par plus accrued dividends through February 2,199g.

The 8.50% and 7.45% Series Preferred may be redeemed
at par on or after September 1, 1999, and November 1,
2003, respectively.

PG 72

PUGET
SOUND|
ENERGY



b bia

CavevrE ke A

NOTE 4.
Preferred Stock Subject to Mandatory Redemption

The Company is required to deposit funds annually in a
sinking fund sufficient to redeem the following number
of shares of each series of preferred stock at $100 per
share plus accrued dividends: 4.84% Series and 4.70%
Series, 3,000 shares each and 7.75% Series, 37,500 shares.
All previous sinking fund requirements have been satis-
fied. At December 31, 1998, there were 36,192 shares of
the;4.84% Series and 52,689 shares of the 4.70% Series
acquired by the Company and available for future sink-
ing fund requirements. Upon involuntary liquidation, all
preferred shares are entitled to their par value plus
accrued dividends.

The preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption
may also be redeemed by the Cormpany at the following
redemption prices per share plus accrued dividends: 4.84%
Series, $102 and 4.70% Series, $101. The 7.75% Series may be
redeemed by the Company, subject to certain restrictions,
at $104.65 per share plus accrued dividends through
February 15,1999, and at per share amounts which decline
annually to a price of $100 after February 15, 2007.

NOTE 6.
Additional Paid-in Capital

On February 15,1998, the Company redeemed all out-
standing shares of the 8% Series, $100 par value Preferred
including 12,000 shares for the sinking fund at par and 224
shares at $101.00 per share.

NOTE 5.
Company-Obligated, Mandatorily Redeemable
Preferred Securities

In 1997, the Company formed Puget Sound Energy Capital
TrustI (the “Trust”) for the sole purpose of issuing and selling
common and preferred securities (“Trust Securities”). The
proceeds from the sale of Trust Securities were used to pur-
chase Junior Subordinated Debentures (“Debentures”) from
the Company. The Debentures are the sole assets of the Trust
and the Company owns all common securities of the Trust.

The Debentures have an interest rate of 8.231% and a
stated maturity date of June 1,2027. The Trust Securities are
subject to mandatory redemption at par on the stated
maturity date of the Debentures. The Trust Securities may
be redeemed earlier, under certain conditions, at the option
of the Company. Dividends relating to preferred securities
are included in interest expense.

(DoLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1996
Balance at beginning of year $ 450,845 $ 446,910 $ 444,928
Excess of proceeds over stated values of common stock issued — 428 2,022
Par value over cost of reacquired preferred stock — 47 —
Retained earnings adjustment for preferred redemption — 3,036 —
Issue costs and other expenses (121) — (40)
Balance at end of year $ 450,724 $ 450,845 $ 446,910
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NOTE 7.
Earnings Reinvested in the Business

The payment of dividends on common stock is restrict-
ed by provisions of certain covenants applicable to pre-
ferred stock and long-term debt contained in the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation and Mortgage
Indentures. Under the most restrictive covenants, earnings
reinvested in the business unrestricted as to payment of
cash dividends were approximately $183 million at
December 31,1998.

NOTE 8.
Long-Term Debt

First Mortgage Bonds and Senior Notes
{AT DECEMBER 31; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS):

The adjustments made to the carrying value of costs
associated with the terminated generating projects and
Bonneville Exchange Power as a result of Statement No. go,
adjustments made as a result of Statement No. 121 and the
disallowance of certain terminated generating project
costs by the Washington Commission do not impact the
amount of earnings reinvested in the business for purpos-
es of payment of dividends on common stock under the
terms of the Company’s Articles and Mortgage Indentures.
(See Note 1)

SERIES Due 1998 1997 SERIES Due 1998 1997
6.17% 1998 — 10,000  7.70% 2004 50,000 50,000
5.70% 1998 — 5000 7.80% 2004 30,000 30,000
8.25% 1998 — 11,000 6.92 & 6.93% 2005 31,000 31,000
8.83% 1998 — 25000 6.58% 2006 10,000 10,000
6.50% 1999 16,500 16,500 8.06% 2006 46,000 46,000
6.65% 1999 10,000 10,000 8.14% 2006 25,000 25,000
6.41% 1999 20,500 20,500 7.02 & 7.04% 2007 25,000 25,000
7.08% 1999 10,000 10,000  7.75% 2007 100,000 100,000
7.25% 1999 50,000 50,000 8.40% 2007 10,000 10,000
6.61% 2000 10,000 10,000  6.51 & 6.53% 2008 4,500 4,500
9.60% 2000 25,000 25000 6.61& 6.62% 2009 8,000 8,000
8.51-8.55% 2001 19,000 19,000 712% 2010 7,000 7,000
9.14% 2001 — 30,000 8.59% 2012 5,000 5,000
7-53 - 7.91% 2002 30,000 30,000 8.20% 2012 30,000 30,000
7.85% 2002 30,000 30,000 6.83% & 6.90% 2013 13,000 13,000
7.07% 2002 27,000 27,000 735 & 7.36% 2015 12,000 12,000
715% 2002 5,000 5,000 6.74% 2018 200,000 —
7.625% 2002 25,000 25,000 9.57% 2020 25,000 25,000
6.23 - 6.31% 2003 28,000 28,000  8.25-8.40% 2022 35,000 35,000
7.02% 2003 30,000 30,000 7.19% 2023 13,000 13,000
6.20% 2003 3,000 3,000 735% 2024 55,000 55,000
6.40% 2003 11,000 11,000 715 & 7.20% 2025 17,000 17,000
6.07 & 6.10% 2004 18,500 18,500 7.02% 2027 300,000 300,000
Total " '$1,420,000 $1,301,000
<+ & 6 >
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On June 15, 1998, the Company issued $200 million
principal amount of 6.74% Senior Medium Term Notes,
Series A. The Notes are due June 15, 2018.

On June 22,1998, the Company redeemed $30 million
principal amount of First Mortgage Bonds, 9.14% Series due
June 21, 2001, at a redemption price of 100%.

In Septermber 1998, the Company filed a shelf-registra-
tion statement for the offering on a delayed or continuous
basis of up to $500 million principal amount of Senior
Notes secured by a pledge of First Mortgage Bonds.

Substantially all utility properties owned by the
Company are subject to the lien of the Company’s electric
and gas mortgage indentures.

Pollution Control Bonds The Company has outstanding three
series of Pollution Control Bonds. Amounts outstanding
were borrowed from the City of Forsyth, Montana (“the
City”). The City obtained the funds from the sale of
Customized Pollution Control Refunding Bonds issued to
finance pollution control facilities at Colstrip Units 3 and 4.
Each series of bonds are collateralized by a pledge of
the Company's First Mortgage Bonds, the terms of which
match those of the Pollution Control Bonds. No payment is
due with respect to the related series of First Mortgage
Bonds so long as payment is made on the Pollution Control
Bonds. Interest rates for the 1992 and 1993 series are 6.80%
and 5.875%, respectively. The 1991 series consists of $27.5
million principal amount bearing interest at 7.05% and
$23.4 million principal amount bearing interest at 7.25%.

Long-Term Debt Maturities The principal amounts of long-
term debt maturities for the next five years are as follows:

{DoLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
Maturities of long-term debt

1999 $ 107,000

2000 $ 35,000

2001 $ 19,000

2002 $ 117,000

2003 $ 72,000
NOTE 9.

Short-Term Debt and Other Financing Arrangements

At December 31,1998, the Company had short-term borrow-
ing arrangements which included a $375 million line of
credit with thirteen banks. The agreement provides the
Company with the ability to borrow at different interest
rate options and includes variable fee levels. The options
are: (1) the higher of the prime rate or the Federal Funds rate
plus 1/2 of 1 percent or (2) the Eurodollar rate plus .25 per-
cent. The current availability fee is .08 percent per annum
on the unused loan commitment.

In addition, the Company has agreements with sever-
al banks to borrow on an uncommitted, as available, basis
at money-market rates quoted by the banks. There are no
costs, other than interest, for these arrangements. The
Company also uses commercial paper to fund its short-
term borrowing requirements.

ATt DECEMBER 31: (DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1996
Short-term borrowings outstanding:
Commercial paper notes $ 142,08 $ 124,538 $ 266,422
Bank line of credit borrowing $ 25000 $ 215000 —
Uncommitted bank borrowings $ 283,800 $ 33000 $ 31,700
Weighted average interest rate 5.90% 6.88% 6.05%
Credit availability? $ 375,000 $ 375,000 $ 426,500

1 Provides liquidity support for outstanding commercial paper and borrowing from credit line banks in the amount of $167.1 million, $339.5 million and

$266.4 million for 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively, effectively reducing the available borrowing capacity under these credit lines to $207.9 million, $35.5 million and

$160.1 million, respectively.
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The Company has, on occasion, entered into interest
rate swap agreements to reduce the impact of changes in
interest rates on portions of its floating-rate, short-term
debt. The one agreement outstanding at December 31, 1998,

NOTE 10.
Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

effectively changes the Company’s interest rate on out-
standing commercial paper to 9.64% on a notional princi-
pal amount of $16.5 million expiring March 31, 2000.

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at

December 31,1998 and 1997:

1998 1998 1997 1997
CARRYING FAR CARRYING FaIr
(DotLLARs IN MILLIONS) AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE
Financial Assets:
Cash $ 253 $ 253 $ 7.8 $ 7.8
Cabot common stock $ 400 $ 400 $ 415 $ 415
Cabot preferred stock $ 516 $ 516 $ =516 $ =516
Financial Liabilities:
Short-term debt $ 4509 $ 4509 $ 3725 $ 3725
Preferred stock subject to
mandatory redemption $ 732 $ 758 $ 781 $ 825
Corporation obligated, mandatorily
redeemable preferred securities of
subsidiary trust holding solely
junior subordinated debentures of
the corporation $ 100.0 $ 1093 $ 100.0 $ 1076
Long-term debt $ 15817 $1,686.0 $ 1,4627 $ 15473
Unrecognized financial instruments: .
Interest rate swaps — $ (13) — $ (1.2)

The fair value of outstanding bonds including current
maturities is estimated based on quoted market prices.

The preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption
and corporation obligated, mandatorily redeemable pre-
ferred securities of subsidiary trust holding solely junior
subordinated debentures of the corporation is estimated
based on dealer quotes.

The carrying value of short-term debt is considered to
be a reasonable estimate of fair value. The carrying amount
of cash, which includes temporary investments with origi-
nal maturities of 3 months or less, is also considered to be a
reasonable estimate of fair value.

The fair value of interest rate swaps (used for hedging
purposes) is the estimated amount that the Company
would receive or pay to terminate each swap agreement at
the reporting date, taking into account current interest
rates and the current credit-worthiness of all the parties to
each swap.

Derivative instruments have been used by the
Company on a limited basis. The Company has a policy
that financial derivatives are to be used only to mitigate
business risk and not for speculative purposes.
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NOTE 11.
Supplementary Income Statement Information

(DotLars IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1996
Taxes:
Real estate and personal property S 40,422 $ 46,252 S 43,762
State business 62,855 58,466 60,787
Municipal, occupational and other 48,090 45,252 43,681
Other 20,010 21,242 12,729
Total, taxes $ 171377 $ 171,212 $ 160,959
Charéed to:
Operating expense $ 160,472 $ 159,310 $ 155174
Other accounts, including
construction work in progress 10,905 11,902 5,785
Total taxes S 171377 $ 17,212 $ 160,959

See “Consolidated Statements of Income” for maintenance and depreciation expense.

Advertising, research and development expenses and amortization of intangibles are not significant. The Company

 pays no royalties.

NOTE 12.
Leases

The Company treats all leases as operating leases for
ratemaking purposes as required by the Washington
Commission. Certain leases contain purchase options,
renewal and escalation provisions. Capitalized leases are
not material.

Rental and operating lease expense for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, were approximately
$17,798,000, $19,428,000 and $19,394,000, respectively.
Payments due for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997
and 1996, for the sublease of properties were approximate-
ly $1,242,000, $962,000 and $1,674,000, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments for noncancelable
leases are approximately $14,562,000 for 1999, $14,762,000
for 2000, $13,501,000 for 2001, $13,040,000 for 2002,
$10,833,000 for 2003 and in the aggregate, $7,137,000
thereafter. Future minimum sublease receipts for non-
cancelable subleases are $1,883,000 for 1999, $1,681,000
for 2000, $669,000 for 2001, $669,000 for 2002, $390,000
for 2003 and in the aggregate, $o thereafter.
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Note 13.
Federal Income Taxes

The details of federal income taxes (“FIT”) are as follows:

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1996
ICharged to Operating Expense:

Current $ 90,696 $ 31672 $ 11989

Deferred - net 17,948 16,677 (3,058)

Deferred investment tax credits (740) (624) (1284)
Total FIT charged to operations 107,904 47,725 107,747
Charged to Miscellaneous Income:

Current 5,601 16,709 (784)

Deferred - net (648) {902) —
Total FIT charged to miscellaneous income 4,953 14,807 (784)
Credited to discontinued operations — (1412) (986)
Total FIT $ 12857 $ 61120 $ 105,977

The following is a reconciliation of the difference between the amount of FIT computed by multiplying pre-tax book
income by the statutory tax rate, and the amount of FIT in the Consolidated Statements of Income:

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1996
FIT at the statutory rate $ 98,864 $ 64,469 $ 95,024
[ncrease (Decrease):

Depreciation expense deducted in the
financial statements in excess of tax
depreciation, net of depreciation
treated as a temporary difference 7,756 7,019 6,603
AFUDC included in income in the financial
statements but excluded from taxable income (3,953) (2,774) (2,191)
Accelerated benefit on early retirement
of depreciable assets (1,241) {805) {1,105)
Investment tax credit amortization (740) (624) (1,184)
Energy conservation expenditures - net - 12,754 11,028 3,380
Conservation Settlement — (26,197) —
Other - net (583) 9,004 5,450
Total FIT $ 112,857 $ 61,120 $ 105,977
Effective tax rate 40.0% 33.2% 39.0%
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The following are the principal components of FIT as reported:

(DoLLars IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1996
Current FIT $ 96,297 S 48381 $ 11,205
Deferred FIT - other:
Conservation tax settlement 3,257 14,404 (759)
Periodic rate adjustment mechanism (PRAM) 107 (14,272) (26,014)
Deferred taxes related to insurance reserves (1,224) (2,768) (938)
Reversal of Statement No. go present
,  value adjustments 255 408 552
Residential Purchase and Sale Agreement - net 3,441 (6,047) (2,178)
Normalized tax benefits of the
accelerated cost recovery system 20,118 22,575 23,407
Energy conservation program (2,437) 5,101 (1,208)
Environmental remediation (2,946) (3,092) 1,148
WNP 3 tax settlement (826) 21,360 —
Merger costs 42 (7,322) —
Demand charges 3,273 (3,558) —
Other (5,760) (12,014) 2,932
Total deferred FIT - other 17,300 14,775 (3,058)
Deferred investment tax credits -
net of amortization (740) (624) (1,184)
Credited to discontinued operations — (1,412) {986)
Total FIT $ 112,857 $ 61120 $ 105,977

Deferred tax amounts shown above result from tem-
porary differences for tax and financial statement purpos-
es. Deferred tax provisions are not recorded in the income
statement for certain temporary differences between tax
and financial statement purposes because they are not
allowed for ratemaking purposes. _

The Company calculates its deferred tax assets and lia-
bilities under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”
(“Statement No. 109”). Statement No. 109 requires record-
ing deferred tax balances, at the currently enacted tax rate,
for all temporary differences between the book and tax
bases of assets and liabilities, including temporary differ-

ences for which no deferred taxes had been previously pro-
vided because of use of flow-through tax accounting for
rate-making purposes. Because of prior and expected
future ratemaking treatment for temporary differences for
which flow-through tax accounting has been utilized, a
regulatory asset for income taxes recoverable through
future rates related to those differences has also been
established. At December 31,1998, the balance of this asset
is $241.4 million.

PG 79
PUGET

SOUND|
ENERGY



The deferred tax liability at December 31,1998 and 1997, is comprised of amounts related to the following types

of temporary differences:
(DoLLARS 1N THOUSANDS) 1998 1997
Utility plant $ 567642 § 558170
Investrent in Cabot stock 13435 13,435
Energy conservation charges 57,919 74.376
Contributions in aid of construction (31,874) (30,350)
Bonneville Exchange Power 26,513 30,240
Other (5.081) (16,853)
Total $ 628554 § 629,018

The totals of $628.6 million and $629.0 million for 1998
and 1997 consist of deferred tax liabilities of $712.2 million
and $712.0 million net of deferred tax assets of $83.6 million
and $83.0 million, respectively.

Note 14.
Retirement Benefits

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan covering
substantially all of its employees. Benefits are a function of
both age and salary. Additionally, the Company maintains a

non-qualified supplemental retirement plan for officers
and certain director-level employees.

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company
provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for
retired employees. These benefits are provided principally
through an insurance company whose premiums are based
on the benefits paid during the year.

Prior to March 1, 1997, the Company had separate
defined benefit plans covering electric and gas employees.
Prior to 1997, the plan covering electric employees had a
measurement date of December 31 and the plan covering
gas employees had a measurement date of September 30.

PENSION BENEFITS OTHER BENEFITS

(DoLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1998 1997
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 325,063 $ 293,535 $ 27433 $ 26,243
Service cost 8,550 8,268 229 216
Interest cost 22,862 21,412 1,985 1,895
Amendments 2,540 2,828 — —
Actuarial (gain)/loss 15,272 3,532 1,896 884
Mergers, sales and closures — 16,304 — —
Benefits paid (21,865) (20,816) (2,105) (1,805)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 352,422 $ 325,063 $ 29,438 $ 27433
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $415,270 $354,634 $14.445 $13,718
Actual return on plan assets 67,544 80,548 570 803
Employer contribution 3,246 904 1,222 1,729
Benefits paid (21,865) (20,816) (2,105) (1,805)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 464,195 $ 415270 $ 14132 $ 14,445
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(continued from previous page)

PENSION BENEFITS OTHER BENEFITS
(DotLARs IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1998 1997
Funded status $ 11773 $ 90,207 $ (15306) $ (12,988)
Unrecognized actuarial (gain)/loss (133,189) (117,841) (1.532) (3,822)
Unrecognized prior service cost 25,510 26,301 (463) (497)
Unrecognized net initial (asset)/obligation (7.563) (8794) 8,775 9,402
Net amount recognized $ (3,469) $ (10127) $ (8526) $ (7.905)
Amounts recognized on statement of
t financial position consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost $ 8900 ¢ 2,238 $ (8526) $ (7905)
Accrued benefit liability (22,988) (16,828) -— —
Intangible asset 10,619 4,463 — —
Net amount recognized $  (3.469) $ (10127) $  (8,526) $ (7,905)

In accounting for pension and other benefits costs under the plans, the following weighted average actuarial assump-
tions were used:

PENSION BENEFITS OTHER BENEFITS
1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996
Discount rate 7% 7.25-7.5% 7.5% 7% 7.25% 7.5%
Return on plan assets 9.75% 9% 8.5-9% 6-8.5% 6-8.5% 6-8.5%
Rate of compensation increase 5% 5% 5-5.5% —_ — —
Medical Trend Rate — — — 7.5% 7.5% 8%
PENSION BENEFITS OTHER BENEFITS

(DoLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 8550 $ 8,268 $ 6,958 $ 229 § 216 $§ 424
Interest cost 22,862 21,412 16,715 1,985 1,895 2,157
Expected return on plan assets (33,744) (27,997) (20,944) (867) (821) (687)
Amortization of prior service cost 3,330 2,247 1,258 (34) (34) 32
Recognized net actuarial (gain)/loss (3,180) (1,144) (3) (97) (204) (230)
Amortization of transition (asset)/obligation (1,230) (1,095) (420) 627 627 1,057
Plan curtailments, mergers — 5,138 (1,613) — 712 1,418
Net pension benefit cost under

FASB Staterment No. 87 (3,412) 6,829 1,951 1,843 2,391 4171
Regulatory adjustment 1,263 1,263 1,263 — — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ (2149) $ 8092 $ 3214 $ 1,843 $ 2391 $ 4171
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The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit
obligation, and fair value of plan assets for the pension
plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of
plan assets were $27.7 million, $23.0 million and $o, respec-
tively, as of December 31,1998.

The assumed medical inflation rate is 7.5% in 1998
decreasing to 6% in 2003. A 1% change in the assumed
medical inflation rate would have the following effects:

1998 1997
1% 1% 1% 1%
(DotLars IN THOUSANDS) INCREASE DECREASE INCREASE DECREASE
Effect on service and interest cost components $ 690 $ (671) S 643 $ (625)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $ 45 $ (a4) $ 42 $ (41)

In December 1995, in connection with the proposed
merger with WECo, the Company offered to its employees
a Voluntary Separation Plan. A total of 204 employees elect-
ed to participate in the Voluntary Separation Plan resulting
in a curtailment gain for 1996 of $1.6 million under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 88. In
addition, curtailment losses under Statement No. 106 for
1997 of $4.7 million and 1996 of $1.4 million resulted from
the 1995 Voluntary Separation Plan. Also in connection
with the merger was a curtailment loss of $5.1 million in
1997 related to the supplemental retirement plans.

NOTE 15.
Employee Investment Plan & Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has qualified Employee Investment Plans
under which employee salary deferrals and after-tax con-
tributions are used to purchase several different invest-
ment fund options. The Company makes a monthly contri-
bution equal to 100% on up to 4% of participant contribu-
tions and 50% on the next 4% of participant contributions
which equates to a maximum contribution of 6% of eligi-
ble earnings. In addition, the Company contributes an
arnount equal to 1% of each participant’s base pay at the
end of the plan year.

The Company contributions to the Employee
Investment Plan were $6,141,400, $5,068,100 and
$4,102,000 for the years 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.
The shareholders have authorized the issuance of up to
2,000,000 shares of common stock under the plan, of
which 959,142 were issued through December 31,1998. The
Employee Investment Plan eligibility requirements are set
forth in the plan documents.

The Company also has an Employee Stock Purchase
Plan which was approved by shareholders on May 19, 1997,
and commenced July 1, 1997, under which options are
granted to eligible employees who elect to participate in
the plan on January 1st and July 1st of each year.
Participants are allowed to exercise those options six
ronths later to the extent of payroll deductions or cash
payments accumulated during that six-month period. The
option price under the plan is 9o% of either the fair market
value of the common stock at the grant date or the fair
market value at the exercise date, whichever is less. The
Company contributions to the Plan were $98,237 and
$97,615 for 1998 and 1997, respectively.
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NOTE 16.
Investment in Cabot Oil and Gas

In May 1994, the Company merged its oil and gas explo-
ration and production subsidiary, Washington Energy
Resources Company (“Resources”), with a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cabot Oil and Gas Corporation (“Cabot”) in a
tax-free exchange. At December 31, 1998, the Company
owned 15.4% of Cabot’s outstanding voting securities con-
sisting of 2,133,000 shares of common stock and 1,134,000
shates of 6% convertible voting preferred stock, stated
value $50. Prior to October 1, 1997, the Company’s interest
in Cabot’s common stock was accounted for using the
equity method because the Company, through its repre-
sentation on Cabot’s board of directors, had the ability to
exercise significant influence over operating and financial
policies of Cabot. Effective October 1, 1997, the Company
discontinued equity-method accounting for Cabot and
records its interest as an investment in stock because the
Company no longer has representation on Cabot’s board of
directors. Equity in earnings (losses) from Cabot were
$948,000 and ($619,000) for 1997 and 1996, respectively.

The investment in Cabot common stock has been clas-
sified as an available-for-sale security and is reported at its
fair value, based on the closing price on the NYSE on
Decernber 31, 1998, of $31,995,000. The unrealized gain of
$8,802,000 (net of deferred taxes of $4,739,000) is reported
as a separate component of common equity. No fair value is
readily available for the Cabot preferred stock as it is not
publicly traded; however, its cost basis of $51,619,000 is
believed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value at
December 31,1998.

See Note 17 regarding certain gas transportation, stor-
age and other contractual arrangements of Resources that
were excluded from the Cabot merger and retained by a
subsidiary of the Company.

NOTE 17.
Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments - Electric For the twelve months ended
December 31,1998, approximately 20.1% of the Company’s
energy output was obtained at an average cost of approxi-
mately 11.5 mills per KWH through long-term contracts
with several of the Washington public utility districts (“PUDs")
owning hydro-electric projects on the Columbia River.

The purchase of power from the Columbia River proj-
ects is generally on a “cost-of-service” basis under which
the Company pays a proportionate share of the annual
cost of each project in direct proportion to the amount of
power annually purchased by the Company from such
project. Such payments are not contingent upon the proj-
ects being operable. These projects are financed through
substantially level debt service payments, and their annu-
al costs should not vary significantly over the term of the
contracts unless additional financing is required to meet
the costs of major maintenance, repairs or replacements or
license requirements. The Company’s share of the costs
and the output of the projects is subject to reduction due to
various withdrawal rights of the PUDs and others over the
lives of the contracts.

As of December 33,1998, the Company was entitled to
purchase portions of the power output of the PUDs’ proj-
ects as set forth in the following tabulation:
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BoNDs COMPANY'S ANNUAL AMOUNT

QUTSTANDING PURCHASABLE (APPROXIMATE)
CONTRACT LicensE! 12/31/982 % OF MEGAWATT Costs3
PROJECT EXp. DATE Exp. DATE (MILLIONS) OuTPUT CAPACITY (MiLLIONS)
Rock Island
Original units 2012 2029 72.2 53.9
" . ] 480 $39.1
Additional units 2012 2029 319.7 100.0
Rocky Reach 2011 2006 227.2 38.9 505 20.8
Wells 2018 2012 172.5 31.3 261 9.0
Priest Rapids 2005 2005 171.9 8.0 72 2.1
Wanapum 2009 200§ 194.7 10.8 98 3.2
Total 1,416 $74.2

1 The Company is unable to predict whether the licenses under the Federal Power Act will be renewed to the current licensees. The FERC has issued orders for Rocky
Reach, Wells and Priest Rapids/Wanapum projects under Section 22 of the Federal Power Act, which affirm the Company’s contractual rights to receive power under
existing terms and conditions even if a new licensee is granted a license prior to expiration of the contract term.

2 The contracts for purchases initially were generally coextensive with the term of the PUD bonds associated with the project. Under the terms of some financings
and refinancings, however, long-term bonds were sold to finance certain assets whose estimated useful lives extend beyond the expiration date of the power sales
contracts. Of the total outstanding bonds sold for each project, the percentage of principal amount of bonds which mature beyond the contract expiration date
are: 43.7% at Rock Island; 52.2% at Rocky Reach; 80.2% at Priest Rapids; and 47.8% at Wanapum.

3 The components of 1998 costs associated with the interest portion of debt service are: Rock Island, $23.6 million for all units; Rocky Reach, $4.8 million; Wells, $2.7

million; Priest Rapids, $0.9 million; and Wanapum, $1.2 million.

The Company’s estimated payments for power pur-
chases from the Columbia River projects are $82 million for
1999, $80 miillion for 2000, $80 million for 2001, $80 million
for 2002, $78 million for 2003 and in the aggregate, $685
million thereafter through 2018.

The Company also has numerous long-term firm pur-
chased power contracts with other utilities in the region.
The Company is generally not obligated to make payments
under these contracts unless power is delivered. The
Company'’s estimated payments for firm power purchases
from other utilities, excluding the Columbia River projects,
are $151 million for 1999, $157 million for 2000, $151 million
for 2003, $143 million for 2002, $132 million for 2003 and in
the aggregate, $1.0 billion thereafter through 2037. These
contracts have varying terms and may include escalation
and termination provisions.

As required by the federal Public Utility Regulatory
Policies Act (“PURPA"), the Company entered into long-term
firm purchased power contracts with non-utility genera-
tors. The Company purchases the net electrical output of
five significant projects at fixed and annually escalating
prices which were intended to approximate the Company’s
avoided cost of new generation projected at the time these

agreements were made. Principally, as a result of dramatic
changes in natural gas price levels, the power purchase
prices under these agreements are significantly above the
current market price of power and, based upon projections
of future market prices, are expected to remain well above
market for the duration of the contracts. The Company’s
estimated payment under these five contracts are $280 mil-
lion for 1999, $284 million for 2000, $308 million for 2001,
$313 million for 2002, $318 million for 2003 and in the aggre-
gate, $2.4 billion thereafter through 2012. If retail electric
energy prices move to market levels as a result of electric
industry restructuring, the above-market portion of these
contract costs will become stranded costs which the
Company plans to seek to continue to recover in rates.

The following table summarizes the Company’s obli-
gations for future power purchases.
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2004 &

(IN MILLIONS) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 THEREAFTER TotaL
Colurabia River Projects $ 82 $ 8o $ 8o $ 8o $ 78 § 685 $1,085
Other Utilities 151 157 151 143 132 1,000 1,734
Non-Utility Generators 280 284 308 313 318 2,400 3,903

Total $ 513 § 521§ 539 $ 536 $ 528 $4085 $6722

Total purchased power contracts provided the
Company with approximately 15.8 million, 15.6 million and
17.1 maillion MWH of firm energy at a cost of approximately
$481.6 million, $464.5 million and $485.6 miillion for the
years 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

As part of its electric operations and in connection
with the 1997 restructuring of the Tenaska Power Purchase
Agreement the Company is obligated to deliver to Tenaska
up to 48,000 MMBtu per day of natural gas for operation of

Tenaska’s cogeneration facility. This obligation continues
for the remaining term of the agreement, provided that no
deliveries are required during the month of May. The price
paid by Tenaska for this gas is reflective of the daily price of
gas at the U.S./Canada border near Sumas, Washington.
The following table indicates the Company’s percent-
age ownership and the extent of the Company’s invest-
ment in jointly-owned generating plants in service at

December 31,1998:

COMPANY'S SHARE

ENERGY COMPANY'S PLANT IN SERVICE ACCUMULATED
PrOJECT Source (FUEL) OWNERSHIP SHARE (%) At CosT (MILLIONS)  DEPRECIATION (MILLIONS)
Centralia Coal 7% $ 267 $ 185
Colstrip1 & 2 Coal 50% 1871 106.6
Colstrip3 & 4 Coal 25% 4521 181.0

Financing for a participant’s ownership share in the proj-
ects is provided for by such participant. The Company’s share
of related operating and maintenance expenses is included in
corresponding accounts in the Consolidated Statements of
Income. The Company and other joint owners of the Centralia
Project are exploring alternative emission compliance options

and project economics in light of compliance costs to meet the |

Phase I limits in the year 2000 and other regulations.

In Novernber, 1998 the Company announced that it
signed an agreement to sell its interest in the Colstrip plant,
as well as associated transmission facilities to PP&L Global,
Inc, of Fairfax, Virginia a subsidiary of PP&L Resources, Inc.
The sales price is expected to be $549 million before taxes and
expenses. The net book value of these assets and related reg-
ulatory assets is approximately $464 million. After considera-
tion of taxes and other costs, the gain on the sale is expected
to be approximately $37.6 million. The Company expects the
Colstrip sale to close in the second half of 1999. Completion of
the sale is contingent on receipt of acceptable regulatory
treatment from the Washington Commission and the Federal

Energy Regulatory Commission. The Company has also
joined with the other owners of the Centralia project in offer-
ing for sale its ownership interest in the facility.

Certain purchase commitrments have been made in
connection with the Company’s construction program.

6as The Company has also entered into various firm supply,
transportation and storage service contracts in order to
assure adequate availability of gas supply for its firm cus-
tomers. Many of these contracts, which have remaining
terms from one to 25 years, provide that the Company must
pay a fixed demand charge each month, regardless of actu-
al usage. Certain of the Company’s firm gas supply agree-
ments also obligate the Company to purchase a minimum
annual quantity at market-based contract prices. Generally,
if the minimum volumes are not purchased and taken dur-
ing the year, the Company is obligated to pay either: 1) a
monthly or annual gas inventory charge calculated as a per-
centage of the then-current contract commodity price
times the minimum quantity not taken; or 2) pay for gas not
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taken. Alternatively, under some of the contracts, the sup-
plier may exercise a right to reduce its subsequent obliga-
tion to provide firm gas to the Company. The Company
incurred demand charges in 1998 for firm gas supply, firm
transportation service and firm storage and peaking service
of $29,571,000, $52,917,000and $8,832,000, respectively.

Demand Charge Obligations

The following tables summarize the Company’s obli-
gations for future demand charges through the primary
terms of its existing contracts and the minimum annual
take requirements under the gas supply agreements. The
quantified obligations are based on current contract prices
and FERC authorized rates, which are subject to change.

2004 &
(In THOUSANDS) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003  THEREAFTER ToTalL
Firm gas supply $ 29580 §$§ 2727 $27271  $ 26,041 S 23442 $ 17382 $ 151,887
Firm transportation service 51,331 51,331 51,279 51,227 51,227 136,291 392,686
Firm storage & peaking service 8,885 8,885 8,885 8,885 8,885 87,481 131,906
Total $ 89,796 S 87487 $ 87435 $ 87053 S 83554 $ 241154 $676,479
Minimum Annual Take Obligations

2004 &
(IN THOUSANDS OF THERMS) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003  THEREAFTER ToTaL
Firm gas supply 472.443 333957 333,957 320157 278132 121,835 1,869481

The Company believes that all demand charges will be
recoverable in rates charged to its customers. Further, pur-
suant to implementation of FERC Order No. 636, the
Company has the right to resell or release to others any of its
unutilized gas supply or transportation and storage capacity.

The Company does not anticipate any difficulty in
achieving the minimum annual take obligations shown, as

Maximum Supply Availahle Under Current Firm Supply Contracts

such volumes represent less than 57% of expected annual
sales for 1999 and less than 39% of expected sales in subse-
quent years.

The Company’s current firm gas supply contracts obli-
gate the suppliers to provide, in the aggregate, annual vol-
umes up to those shown below:

2004 &
(IN THOUSANDS OF THERMS) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003  THEREAFTER TotaL
Firm gas supply 663,402 511,489 511,489 505,489 444,739 289,209 2,925,817

Washington Energy Gas Marketing Company
(“WEGM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, holds firm rights to
transport natural gas on the Nova Corporation of Alberta
(“Nova”), Alberta Natural Gas Company (“ANG") and PG&E
Gas Transmission — Northwest pipelines from Alberta,
Canada, to the northern border of California, as well as cer-
tain gas storage rights at the Alberta Energy Company
("AECQ”) field in Alberta and the Jackson Prairie field in
western Washington. These rights were formerly held by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Resources but were excluded
from the merger of Resources and Cabot completed in May

1994. Following the merger, WEGM entered into a five-year
contract with IGI Resources (“IGI"), Boise, Idaho, to manage
these rights.

The transportation rights on the PGT pipeline initially
consisted of approximately 25,000 MMBtu per day of
annual capacity and 20,000 MMBtu per day of winter-
only capacity to Stanfield, Oregon, and approximately
20,000 MMBtu per day of annual capacity to the California
border. WEGM held similar rights on Nova and ANG.

Effective November 1, 1995, WEGM permanently
assigned to IGI all of its Stanfield capacity and associated

PG 86
PUGET

SOUND|
ENERGY



rights on Nova and ANG. In addition, WEGM segmented its
capacity to California at Stanfield and permanently
assigned 10,000 MMBtu per day of the Alberta-to-Stanfield
rights to a third party effective November 1, 1995. WEGM's
remaining PGT rights expire in October 2023, and the ANG
and Nova rights expire in October 2008, with annual
renewal options. WEGM, as an expansion capacity holder,
has been unable to fully recoup its demand charges, which
have been approximately 70% higher than those paid by
hglders of vintage capacity. On September 11, 1996, the
FERC approved a request from PGT for the cost of the
expansion capacity to be “rolled in” with the cost of the
vintage capacity to establish a uniform rate for holders of
both types of capacity. This change will be implemented in
two stages over six years with the first stage effective
November 1, 1996. WEGM's annual obligations for future
demand charges through the primary term of WEGM'’s gas
transportation and storage contracts are as follows: 1999,
$2,847,000; 2000, $2,843,000; 2001, $2,829,000; 2002,
$2,819,000; 2003, $2,296,000 and thereafter, $33,413,000.
The IGI management contract provides for incentive pay-
ments to IGI based on actual mitigation of demand charges
relative to targets established on an annual basis.

As of December 31,1998, WEGM has a reserve for future
losses associated with these contractual obligations of
$4,611,000. WEGM initially established the reserve for esti-
mated future losses associated with the transportation and
storage obligations with a $16,000,000 ($10,400,000 after
tax) charge to earnings upon completion of the merger of
Resources and Cabot in May 1994. In the fourth quarter of
1995, WEGM recorded a $5,000,000 ($3,250,000 after tax)
charge to increase the reserve based on an assessment of
the likelihood and timing of approval of rolled-in rates and
actual mitigation results in 1995. During 1998, 1997 and
1996, pre-tax losses totaling $1,916,000, $2,235,000 and
$2,652,000, respectively, were charged against the reserve.

Contingencies The Company is subject to environmental
regulation by federal, state and local authorities. The
Company has been named a Potentially Responsible Party
by the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) at several
contaminated disposal sites and manufactured gas plant
sites. The Company has implemented an ongoing program

to test, replace and remediate certain underground storage
tanks as required by federal and state laws. Remediation
and testing of Company vehicle service facilities and stor-
age yards is also continuing.

During 1992, the Washington Commission issued
orders regarding the treatment of costs incurred by the
Company for certain sites under its environmental remedi-
ation program. The orders authorize the Company to accu-
mulate and defer prudently incurred cleanup costs paid to
third parties for recovery in rates established in future rate
proceedings. The Company believes a significant portion of
its past and future environmental remediation costs are
recoverable from either insurance companies, third parties
or under the Washington Commission’s order.

The information presented here as it relates to esti-
mates of future liability is as of December 31,1998.

Electric Sites The Company has expended approximately
$14.5 million related to the remediation activities covered
by the Washington Commission’s order, of which approxi-
mately $7.5 million has been recovered from insurance car-
riers. At December 31, 1998, approximately $1.8 million has
been accrued as a liability for future remediation costs for
these and other remediation activities.

6as Sites Five former WNG or predecessor companies man-
ufactured gas plant (“MGP”) sites are currently undergoing
investigation, remedial actions or monitoring actions relat-
ing to environmental contamination: 1) Everett,
Washington; 2) “Gas Works Park” in Seattle, Washington; 3)
“Tacoma 22nd and A St” Site in Tacoma, Washington; 4)
Chehalis, Washington; and 5) the “Tideflats” area of Tacoma,
Washington. Legal and remedial costs incurred to date total
approximately $50.9 million and currently estimated future
remediation costs are approximately $7.0 million. Work at
both the Chehalis and Tideflats sites is substantially com-
pleted. To date, the Company has recovered approximately
$59 million from insurance carriers and other third parties.

Based on all known facts and analyses, the Company
believes it is not likely that the identified environmental
liabilities will result in a material adverse impact on the
Company’s financial position, operating results or cash
flow trends.
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Litigation Other contingencies, arising out of the normal
course of the Company’s business, exist at December 31,
1998. The ultimate resolution of these issues is not expect-
ed to have a material adverse impact on the financial con-
dition, results of operations or liquidity of the Company.

NOTE 18.
Discontinued Operations

On March 5, 1997, the Company conveyed its interests in
undeveloped coal properties through its wholly-owned
subsidiary Thermal Energy, Inc. to Wesco Resources, Inc.
effective February 1, 1997. The Company’s remaining $4.0
million investment in Thermal Energy, Inc. was written off

(UNAUDITED; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER-SHARE AMOUNTS)

to expense and appears in the consolidated financial state-
ments as discontinued operations. Prior periods have been
restated to include Thermal Energy, Inc. operations as dis-
continued operations.

NOTE 19,
Supplemental Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following unaudited amounts, in the opinion of the
Company, include all adjustments (consisting of normal
recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of
the results of operations for the interim periods. Quarterly
amounts vary during the year due to the seasonal nature of
the utility business.

1998 QUARTER FIrsT SECOND THIRD FOURTH
Operating revenues $ 522,069 $§ 365,525 $ 427357 $ 592,389
Operating income $ 99,257 $ 50,012 $ 532172 $ 96,494
Other income $ 1,160 $ 3,512 $ 14337 $ 3,087
Net income $ 66,003 $ 19,542 $ 21,001 $ 62,976
Basic and diluted earnings per common share $ 0.74 $ 0.19 $ 0.21 $ o1
(UNAUDITED; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER-SHARE AMOUNTS)
1997 QUARTER FIrRST SECOND THIRD FourTH
Operating revenues $ 463,319 $ 352,618 $ 341021 $ 519,944
Operating income $ 56,828 $ 45233 $ 35421 $ 78384
Other income $ 4884 $ 17804 $ 6029 $ (651)
Income from continuing operations $ 32,608 $ 33440 $ mn,998 $ 47,652
Net income $ 29,986 $ 33440 $ 11,998 $ 47652
Basic and diluted earnings per common share

from continuing operations $ 0.32 $ 0.33 $ 0.11 $ 0.52

1 Operating income and Other income in the amount of $3.4 million and $4.3 million, respectively, were reclassed to conform the

third quarter Form 10-Q with year-end presentation.

NOTE 20.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Company
considers all temporary investments to be cash equivalents.
These temporary cash investments are securities held for
cash management purposes, having maturities of three
months or less. The net change in current assets and cur-

rent liabilities for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows
excludes short-term debt, current maturities of long-term
debt and the current portion of PRAM accrued revenues. At
December 31, 1998, $15,710,000 related to a book overdraft
was included in accounts payable.

The following provides additional information con-
cerning cash flow activities:
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(YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31; DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 1998 1997 1996
Changes in certain current assets and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable $ (43,003) $ (4164) $ (22,242)
Unbilled revenue (3,.909) 4,591 (11,104)
Materials and supplies (4,111) 3,316 16,737
Prepayments and other (1,876) 5,339 1,491
Purchased gas liability (6,368) (34,966) 25,814
Accounts payable 27,082 7132 15,997
Accrued expenses and other 9,493 (39,642) 1,116
Net change in certain current assets
‘and current liabilities $ (22,692) $ (s8394)  $ 27.809
Cash payments:
Interest (net of capitalized interest) $ 131,567 $ 119,810 $ 113,634
Income taxes $ 119,664 $ 104,161 $ 98,609
NOTE 21.

Merger of Puget Power and WECo

Included in consolidated results of operations for the month of January 1997 and for the year ended December 31,1996,
are the following results of the previously separate companies for those periods:

MOoNTH ENDED YEAR ENDED
JANUARY 31,1997 DECEMBER 31,1996
{DoLLARS IN THOUSANDS): PUGET WECO PUGET WECO
Revenues $ 123,051 $ 60,486 $1,223,568 $ 425711
Net Income $ 19,671 $ 9378 $ 135371 $ 30148
Cormmon Dividends Declared $ 29,244 — $ 117,099 $ 24149

WECO0's operations for the three months ended
December 31,1996, have been reported as an adjustment of
$10.8 million to consolidated retained earnings in the first
quarter of 1997. WECo's revenues for the three months
ended December 31, 1996, were $148.6 million, net income
was $16.9 million, common stock issued was $1.0 million
and common stock dividends declared were $6.1 million
for the same period.

In connection with the merger, the Company recog-
nized direct and indirect merger-related expenses of $55.8
million during the first quarter of 1997. The charge consist-
ed primarily of severance costs of $15.5 million, benefit-
related curtailment costs of $9.1 million, transaction costs
of $13.7 million and systems and facilities integration costs
of $7.2 million. The nonrecurring charge reduced net
income by approximately $36.3 million or $0.43 per share.
In addition, merger-related costs of $4.8 million were rec-
ognized in the fourth quarter of 1996 by Puget Power.
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NOTE 22.
Segment Information

The Company primarily operates in one business
segment, Regulated Utility Operations. The Company'’s
regulated utility operation generates, purchases and sells
electricity and purchases, transports and sells natural gas.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

The Company’s service territory covers approximately
6,000 square miles in the state of Washington.

Principal non-utility lines of business include real
estate investment and development, home security services
and energy-related services. Reconciling items between
segments are not material.

Financial data for business segments are as follows:

REGULATED
1998 Uity OTHER ToTAL
Revenues $ 1891759 $ 15581 $ 1907340
Depreciation & Amortization 165,491 96 165,587
Federal Income Tax 106,967 937 107,904
Operating Income 292,337 6,643 298,980
Interest Charges, net of AFUDC 138,560 — 138,560
Net Income 170,435 (823) 169,612
Total Assets $ 4,630,501 $ 90,188 $ 4,720,689

REGULATED
1997 Utiry OTHER ToTAL
Revenues $ 1,640,871 $ 36,031 $ 1,676,902
Depreciation & Amortization 161,402 463 161,865
Federal Income Tax 34,230 13,495 47,725
Operating Income 215,126 740 215,866
Interest Charges, net of AFUDC 117,258 976 118,234
Net Income 123,872 (796) 123,076
Total Assets $ 4414396 $ 78974 S 4493370

REGULATED
1996 Uriury OTHER TotaL
Revenues $ 15983877 $ 50402  $ 1,649,279
Depreciation & Amortization 143,613 593 144,206
Federal Income Tax + 105,236 2,511 107,747
Operating Income 269,652 14,822 284,474
Interest Charges, net of AFUDC 108,688 10,028 118,716
Net Income 171,144 (5,625) 165,519
Total Assets $ 4,049,113 $ 178357  § 4,227.470
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SCHEDULE II.

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

{DoLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

BALANCE AT
BEGINNING
OF PERIOD

ADDITIONS
CHARGED TO
CoSTS AND
EXPENSES

DEDUCTIONS

BALANCE
AT END
OF PERIOD

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1998
Accounts deducted from assets
on balance sheet:

, Allowance for doubtful

' accounts receivable

$ 9n

$ 5905

$_ 5855

$

1,021

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1997
Accounts deducted from assets
on balance sheet:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable!

$ 1700

$ 5080

$ 5809

971

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Accounts deducted from

assets on balance sheet:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable

$ L865

$ 5920

$ 6,085

$

1,700

1Includes additions of $369 and deductions of $384 related to October through December 1996 for WECo.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Certain of the following exhibits are filed herewith. Certain other
of the following exhibits have heretofore been filed with the
Commission and are incorporated herein by reference.

21 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 18, 1995,
among the Registrant, Washington Energy Company and Washington
Natural Gas Compény. (Exhibit 2.1 to Registration No. 333-617)

3-a Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company. (Included
as Annex F to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus filed February 1,
1996, Registration No. 333-617)

3-b Restated Bylaws of the Company. (Exhibit 3 to Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997,
Commission File No. 1-4393)

41 Fortieth through Seventy-seventh Supplemental Indentures
defining the rights of the holders of the Company’s First Mortgage
Bonds. (Exhibit 2-d to Registration No. 2-60200; Exhibit 4-¢ to
Registration No. 2-13347; Exhibits 2-e through and including 2-k to
Registration No. 2-60200; Exhibit 4-h to Registration No. 2-17465;
Exhibits 2-1, 2-m and 2-n to Registration No. 2-60200; Exhibits 2-m to
Registration No. 2-37645; Exhibit 2-0 through and including 2-s to
Registration No. 2-60200; Exhibit 5-b to Registration No. 2-62883;
Exhibit 2-h to Registration No. 2-65831; Exhibit (4)-j-1 to Registration No.
2-72061; Exhibit (4)-a to Registration No. 2-91516; Exhibit (4)-b to Annual
Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1985,
Commission File No. 1-4393; Exhibits {(4)(a) and (4)(b) to Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, dated April 22, 1986; Exhibit (4)a to
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated September s, 1986;
Exhibit (4)-b to Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quar-
ter ended September 30,1986, Commission File No. 1-4393; Exhibit {4)-c
to Registration No. 33-18506; Exhibit (4)-b to Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1989, Commission File No. 1-
4393; Exhibit (4)-b to Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1990, Commission File No. 1-4393; Exhibits (4)-b
and (4)-c to Registration No. 33-45916; Exhibit (4)-c to Registration No.
33-50788; Exhibit (4)-a to Registration No. 33-53056; Exhibit 4.3 to
Registration No. 33-63278; Exhibit 4.25 to Registration No. 333-41181; and
Exhibit 4.27 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 5,1999.)

4.2 Rights Agreement, dated as of January 15, 1991, between the
Company and The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A, as Rights Agent.
(Exhibit 21 to Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on January 17,
1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

4.3 Amendment No. 1 dated as of August 30, 1991, to the Rights
Agreement dated as of January 15,1991, between the Registrant and the
Bank of New York (as successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A.), as
Rights Agent. (Exhibit 2.1 to Registration Statement on Form 8 filed on
August 30, 1991)

4.4 Amendment No. 2 dated as of October 18, 1995, to the Rights
Agreement dated as of January 15, 1991, between the Registrant and

The Bank of New York (as successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank,
N.A), as Rights Agent. (Exhibit 1to Registration Statement on Form 8-
A/A filed on October 27, 1995)

4.5 Pledge Agreement dated August 1, 1991, between the
Company and The First National Bank of Chicago, as Trustee. (Exhibit
(4)-j to Registration No. 33-45916)

4.6 Loan Agreement dated August 1, 1991, between the City of
Forsyth, Rosebud County, Montana and the Company. (Exhibit (4)-k to
Registration No. 33-45916)

47 Statement of Relative Rights and Preferences for the
Adjustable Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series B ($25 Par Value).
(Exhibit 11 to Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed February 14,
1994, Commission File No. 1-4393)

4.8 Statement of Relative Rights and Preferences for the Preference
Stock, Series R, $50 Par Value. (Exhibit 1.5 to Registration Staternent on
Form 8-A filed February 14, 1994, Commission File No. 1-4393)

4.9 Statement of Relative Rights and Preferences for the 7 3/4%
Series Preferred Stock Cumulative, $100 Par Value. (Exhibit 1.6 to
Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed February 14, 1994,
Commission File No. 1-4393)

410 Pledge Agreement, dated as of March 1,1992, by and between
the Company and Chemical Bank relating to a series of first mortgage
bonds. (Exhibit 4.15 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31,1993, Commission File No. 1-4393)

411 Pledge Agreement, dated as of April 1, 1993, by and between
the Company and The First National Bank of Chicago, relating to a series
of first mortgage bonds. (Exhibit 4.16 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31,1993, Commission File No.1-4393)

412 Form of Statement of Relative Rights and Preferences for the
Series I Cumulative Preferred Stock, $25 Par Value {included as Annex F
to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus filed February 1,1996).

413 Form of Statement of Relative Rights and Preferences for the
Series [II Cumulative Preferred Stock, $25 Par Value (included as Annex
F to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus filed February 1,1996).

414 Indenture of First Mortgage dated as of April 1, 1957 (incor-
porated herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas Company
Exhibit 4-B, Registration No. 2-14307).

415 Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 1, 1966
(incorporated herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas
Company Exhibit to Form 8-K for month of August 1966, File No. 0-951).

416 Twelfth Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1,
1972 (incorporated herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas
Company Exhibit to Form 8-K for November 1972, File No. 0-951).

4.17 Seventeenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of August g,
1978 (incorporated herein by reference to Washington Energy
Company Exhibit 5-K.18, Registration No. 2-64428).

418  Twenty-sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of
September 1, 1990 (incorporated herein by reference to Washington
Natural Gas Company Exhibit 4-B.19, Form 10-K for the year ended

PG 92

September 30, 1990, File No. 0-951).
[~}

wm S
O 5 =
D 5 W
3 E



419 Twenfy-seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of
September 1, 1990 (incorporated herein by reference to Washington
Natural Gas Company Exhibit 4-B.20, Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1988, File No. 0-951).

420 Twenty-eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 31,
1991 {incorporated herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas
Company Exhibit 4-A, Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,1993,
File No. 0-gs51).

4.21 Twenty-ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1,
1993 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4-A of Washington
Natural Gas Company’s S-3 Registration Statement, Registration No. 33-
49999).

4.22 Thirtieth Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 15,1995
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4-A of Washington Natural
Gas Company’s S-3 Registration Statement, Registration No. 33-6185g).

101 Assignment and Agreement, dated as of August 13, 1964,
between Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington and
the Company, relating to the Rock Island Project. (Exhibit 13-b to
Registration No. 2-24262)

10.2 First Amendment, dated as of October 4, 1961, to Power Sales
Contract between Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County,
Washington and the Company, relating to the Rocky Reach Project.
(Exhibit 13-d to Registration No. 2-24252)

10.3 Assignment and Agreement, dated as of August 13, 1964,
between Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington and
the Company, relating to the Rocky Reach Project. (Exhibit 13-e to
Registration No. 2-24252)

104 Assignment and Agreement, dated as of August 13, 1964,
between Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington and
the Company, relating to the Priest Rapids Development. (Exhibit 13-j to
Registration No. 2-24252)

105 Assignment and Agreement, dated as of August 13, 1964,
between Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington and
the Company, relating to the Wanapum Development. (Exhibit 13-n to
Registration No. 2-24252)

10.6 First Amendment, dated February g, 1965, to Power Sales
Contract between Public Utility District No. 1 of Douglas County,
Washington and the Company, relating to the Wells Development.
(Exhibit 13-p to Registration No. 2-24252)

107 First Amendment, executed as of February 9, 1965, to
Reserved Share Power Sales Contract between Public Utility District No.
1 of Douglas County, Washington and the Company, relating to the
Wells Development. (Exhibit 13-r to Registration No. 2-24252)

108 Assignment and Agreement, dated as of August 13, 1964,
between Public Utility District No. 1 of Douglas County, Washington
and the Company, relating to the Wells Development. (Exhibit 13-u to
Registration No. 2-24252)

10.9 Pacific Northwest Coordination Agreement, executed as of
September 15,1964, among the United States of America, the Company
and most of the other major electrical utilities in the Pacific Northwest.

(Exhibit 13-gg to Registration No. 2-24252)

1010 Contract dated November 14, 1957, between Public Utility
District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington and the Company, relating
to the Rocky Reach Project. (Exhibit 4-1-a to Registration No. 2-13979)

10.11 Power Sales Contract, dated as of November 14,1957, between
Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington and the
Company, relating to the Rocky Reach Project. (Exhibit 4-c-1 to
Registration No. 2-13979)

10.12 Power Sales Contract, dated May 21, 1956, between Public
Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington and the Company,
relating to the Priest Rapids Project. (Exhibit 4-d to Registration No. 2-
13347)

10.13 First Amendment to Power Sales Contract dated as of
August 5, 1958, between the Company and Public Utility District No. 2
of Grant County, Washington, relating to the Priest Rapids
Development. (Exhibit 13-h to Registration No. 2-15618)

1014 Power Sales Contract dated June 22, 1959, between Public
Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington and the Company,
relating to the Wanapum Development. (Exhibit 13-j to Registration
No. 2-15618)

1015 Reserve Share Power Sales Contract dated June 22, 1959,
between Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington and
the Company, relating to the Priest Rapids Project. (Exhibit 13-k to
Registration No. 2-15618)

1016 Agreement to Amend Power Sales Contracts dated July 30,
1963, between Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington
and the Company, relating to the Wanapum Development. (Exhibit 13-
1to Registration No. 2-21824)

1017 Power Sales Contract executed as of September 18, 1963,
between Public Utility District No. 1 of Douglas County, Washington
and the Company, relating to the Wells Development (Exhibit 13-r to
Registration No. 2-21824) )

1018 Reserved Share Power Sales Contract executed as of
September 18, 1963, between Public Utility District No. 1 of Douglas
County, Washington and the Company, relating to the Wells
Development. (Exhibit 13-s to' Registration No. 2-21824)

1019 Exchange Agreement dated April 12, 1963, between the
United States of America, Department of the Interior, acting through
the Bonneville Power Administration and Washington Public Power
Supply System and the Company, relating to the Hanford Project.
(Exhibit 13-u to Registration 2-21824)

1020 Replacement Power Sales Contract dated April 12, 1963,
between the United States of America, Department of the Interior, act-
ing through the Bonneville Power Administrator and the Company,
relating to the Hanford Project. (Exhibit 13-v to Registration No. 2-21824)

10.21 Contract covering undivided interest in ownership and oper-
ation of Centralia Thermal Plant, dated May 15, 1969. (Exhibit 5-b to
Registration No. 2-3765)

10.22 Construction and Ownership Agreement dated as of July 30,
1971, between The Montana Power Company and, the Company.
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(Exhibit 5-b to Registration No. 2-45702)

10.23 Operation and Maintenance Agreement dated as of July 30,
1971, between The Montana Power Company and the Company.
(Exhibit 5-c to Registration No. 2-45702)

1024 Coal Supply Agreement, dated as of July 30,197, among The
Montana Power Company, the Company and Western Energy
Corapany. (Exhibit 5-d to Registration No. 2-45702)

10.25 Power Purchase Agreement with Washington Public Power
Supply System and the Bonneville Power Administration dated
February 6,1973. (Exhibit 5-e to Registration No. 2-49029)

10.26 Ownership Agreement among the Company, Washington
Public Power Supply System and others dated September 17, 1973.
(Exhibit 5-a-29 to Registration No. 2-60200)

10.27 Contract dated June 19, 1974, between the Company and
PU.D No.1 of Chelan County. (Exhibit D to Form 8-K dated July 5,1974)

10.28 Restated Financing Agreement among the Company, lessee,
Chrysler Financial Corporation, owner, Nevada National Bank and Bank
of Montreal (California), trustee, dated December 12, 1974 pertaining to
a combustion turbine generating unit trust. (Exhibit s-a-35 to
Registration No. 2-60200) :

10.29 Restated Lease Agreement between the Company, lessee,
and the Bank of California, and National Association, lessor, dated
December 12,1974 for one combustion generating unit. (Exhibit 5-a-36
to Registration No. 2-60200)

10.30 Financing Agreement Supplement and Amendment among
the Company, lessee, Chrysler Financial Corporation, owner, The Bank
of California, National Association, trustee, Pacific Mutual Life
Insurance Company, Bankers Life Company, and The Franklin Life
Insurance Company, lenders, dated as of March 26, 1975, pertaining to a
combustion turbine generating unit trust. (Exhibit 5-a-37 to
Registration No. 2-60200)

10.31 Lease Agreement Supplement and Amendment between
the Company, lessee, and The Bank of California, National Association,
lessor, dated as of March 26, 1975 for one combustion turbine generat-
ing unit. (Exhibit 5-a-38 to Registration No. 2-60200)

10.32 Exchange Agreement executed August 13,1964, between the
United States of America, Columbia Storage Power Exchange and the
Company, relating to Canadian Entitlement. (Exhibit 13-ff to
Registration No. 2-24252)

10.33 Loan Agreement dated as of December 1, 1980 and related
documents pertaining to Whitehorn turbine construction trust financ-
ing. (Exhibit 10.52 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1980, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.34 Letter Agreement dated March 31, 1980, between the
Company and Manufacturers Hanover Leasing Corporation. (Exhibit b-
8 to Registration No. 2-68498)

1035 Coal Supply Agreement for Colstrip 3 and 4, dated as of July
2,1980; Amendment No.1to Coal Supply Agreement, dated as of July 1o,
1981, and Coal Transportation Agreement dated as of July 10, 1981.
{Exhibit 20-a to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30, 1981, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.36 Residential Purchase and Sale Agreement between the
Company and the Bonneville Power Administration, effective as of
October 1, 1981. (Exhibit 20-b to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1981, Commiission File No. 1-4393)

10.37 Letter of Agreement to Participate in Licensing of Creston
Generating Station, dated September 30, 1981. (Exhibit 20-c to
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1981, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.38 Power sales contract dated August 27, 1982 between the
Company and Bonneville Power Administration. (Exhibit 10-a to
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1982, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.39 Agreement executed as of April 17,1984, between the United
States of America, Department of the Interior, acting through the
Bonneville Power Administration, and other utilities relating to exten-
sion energy from the Hanford Atomic Power Plant No. 1, (Exhibit (10)-
47 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31,1984, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1040 Agreement for the Assignment of Output from the
Centralia Thermal Project, dated as of April 14, 1983, between the
Company and Public Utility District No.1 of Grays Harbor. (Exhibit (10)-
48 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31,1984, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1041 Settlerment Agreement and Covenant Not to Sue executed
by the United States Department of Energy acting by and through the
Bonneville Power Administration and the Company dated September
17,198s5. (Exhibit (10)-49 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1985, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1042 Agreernent to Dismiss Claims and Covenant Not to Sue dated
September 17, 1985 between Washington Public Power Supply System
and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-50 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1985, Cornmission File No. 1-4393)

1043 Irrevocable Offer of Washington Public Power Supply
System Nuclear Project No. 3 Capability for Acquisition executed by the
Company, dated September 17, 1985. (Exhibit A of Exhibit (10)-50 to
Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 3,
1985, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1044 Settlement Exchange Agreement {“Bonneville Exchange
Power Contract”) executed by the United States of America
Department of Energy acting by and through the Bonneville Power
Adruinistration and the Company, dated September 17,1985, (Exhibit B
of Exhibit (10)-50 to Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year
ended December 31,1985, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1045 Settlement Agreement and Covenant Not to Sue between
the Company and Northern Wasco County People’s Utility District,
dated October 16, 1985. (Exhibit (10)-53 to Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31,1985, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1046 Settlement Agreement and Covenant Not to Sue between
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198s5. (Exhibit (10)-54 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31,1985, Comrission File No. 1-4393)

10.47 Settlement Agreement and Covenent Not to Sue between
the Company and Clatskanie People’s Utility District, dated September
30,198s. (Exhibit (10)-55 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31,1985, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1048 Stipulation and Settlement Agreement between the
Company and Muckleshoot Tribe of the Muckleshoot Indian
Reservation, dated October 331, 1986. (Exhibit (10)-55 to Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1986, Commission
File No.1-4393)

} 10.49 Transmission Agreement dated April 17, 1981, between the
Bonneville Power Administration and the Company (Colstrip Project).
(Exhibit (10)-55 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31,1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.50 Transmission Agreement dated April 17, 1981, between the
Bonneville Power Administration and Montana Intertie Users (Colstrip
Project). (Exhibit (10)-56 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31,1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.51 Ownership and Operation Agreement dated as of May 6,
1981, between the Company and other Owners of the Colstrip Project
(Colstrip 3 and 4). (Exhibit (10)-57 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31,1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.52 Colstrip Project Transmission Agreement dated as of May 6,
1981, between the Company and Owners of the Colstrip Project.
(Exhibit (10)-58 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31,1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10,53 Common Faci].itigs Agreement dated as of May 6, 1983,
between the Company and Owners of Colstrip 1 and 2, and 3 and 4.
(Exhibit (10)-59 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.54 Agreement for the Purchase of Power dated as of October 29,
1984, between South Fork II, Inc. and the Company (Weeks Falls
Hydroelectric Project). (Exhibit (10)-60 to Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31,1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.55 Agreement for the Purchase of Power dated as of October 29,
1984, between South Fork Resources, Inc. and the Company (Twin Falls
Hydroelectric Project). (Exhibit (10)-61 to Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31,1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.56 Agreement for Firm Purchase Power dated as of January 4,
1988, between the City of Spokane, Washington and the Company
(Spokane Waste Combustion Project). (Exhibit {10)-62 to Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1987, Cornmission
File No. 1-4393)

10.57 Agreement for Evaluating, Planning and Licensing dated as
of February 21, 1985 and Agreement for Purchase of Power dated as of
February 21, 1985 between Pacific Hydropower Associates and the
Company (Koma Kulshan Hydroelectric Project). (Exhibit (10)-63 to
Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.58 Power Sales Agreement dated as of August 1,1986, between
Pacific Power & Light Company (PacifiCorp) and the Corpany. (Exhibit
{10)-64 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31,1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.59 Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Firm Capacity and
Energy dated as of August 1, 1986 between The Washington Water
Power Company (Avista) and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-65 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1987,
Commission File No. 1-4333)

10.60 Amendment dated as of June 1, 1968, to Power Sales
Contract between Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County,
Washington and the Company (Rocky Reach Project). (Exhibit (10)-66
to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.61 Coal Supply Agreement dated as of October 30, 1970,
between the Washington Irrigation & Development Company and the
Company and other Owners of the Centralia Thermal Project (Centralia
Generating Plant). (Exhibit (10)-67 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1987, Commission File No.1-4393)

10.62 Interruptible Natural Gas Service Agreement dated as of
May 14, 1980, between Cascade Natural Gas Corporation and the
Company (Whitehom Combustion Turbine). (Exhibit (10)-68 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1987,
Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.63 Interruptible Natural Gas Service Agreement dated as of
January 31, 1983, between Cascade Natural Gas Corporation and the
Company (Fredonia Generating Station). (Exhibit (10)-6g to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1987,
Commission File No.1-4393)

10.64 Interruptible Gas Service Agreement dated May 14, 1981,
between Washington Natural Gas Company and the Company
(Fredrickson Generating Station). (Exhibit (10)-70 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1987, Commission File
No.1-4393)

10.65 Settlement Agreement dated April 24, 1987, between Public
Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, the National Marine Fisheries
Service, the State of Washington, the State of Oregon, the Confederated
Tribes and Bands of the Yakima Indian Nation, Colville Indian
Reservation, Umatilla Indian Reservation, the National Wildlife
Federation and the Company (Rock Island Project). (Exhibit (10)-71 to
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1987, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.66 Amendment No. 2 dated as of September 1, 1981, and
Amendment No. 3 dated September 14, 1987, to Coal Supply Agreement
between Westermn Energy Company and the Company and the other
Owners of Colstrip 3 and 4. (Exhibit (10)-72 to Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1987, Cormission File No. 1-4393)

10.67 Amendatory Agreement No. 1 dated August 27, 1982, and
Amendatory Agreement No. 2 dated August 27,1982, to the Power Sales
Contract between the Company and the Bonneville Power
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Administration dated August 27,1982. (Exhibit (10)-73 to Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1987, Commission
File No.1-4393)

10.68 Transmission Agreement dated as of December 30, 1987,
between the Bonneville Power Administration and the Company (Rock
Island Project). (Exhibit (10)-74 to Annual Report on Form 10-X for the
fiscal year ended December 31,1988, Coramission File No. 1-4393)

10.69 Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Firm Capacity and
Energy between The Washington Water Power Company and the
Company dated as of January 1,1988. (Exhibit (10)-1 to Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,1988, Coramission File No.
1-4393)

1070 Amendment dated as of August 10,1988, to Agreement for
Firm Purchase Power dated as of January 4, 1988, between the City of
Spokane, Washington and the Company (Spokane Waste Combustion
Project).(Exhibit (10)-76 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31,1988, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.71 Agreement for Firm Power Purchase dated October 24,1988,
between Northern Wasco People’s Utility District and the Company
(The Dalles Dam North Fishway). (Exhibit (10)-77 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1988, Commission File
No. 1-4393)

10.72 Agreement for the Purchase of Power dated as of October 27,
1988, between Pacific Power & Light Company (PacifiCorp) and the
Company. (Exhibit (10)-78 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31,1988, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.73 Agreement for Sale and Exchange of Firm Power dated as of
November 23,1988, between the Bonneville Power Administration and
the Company. (Exhibit (10)-79 to Annual Report on Form 10K for the
fiscal year ended December 31,1988, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.74 Agreement for Firm Power Purchase, dated as of February
24,1989, between Sumas Energy, Inc. and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-1
to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1989,
Comrission File No. 1-4393)

1075 Settlement Agreement, dated as of April 27, 1989, between
Public Utility District No. 1 of Douglas County, Washington, Portland
General Electric Company (Enron), PacifiCorp, The Washington Water
Power Company (Avista) and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-1 to Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q quarter ended September 30, 1989, Commission
File No. 1-4393) '

1076 Agreement for Firm Power Purchase (Thermal Project),
dated as of June 29, 1989, between San Juan Energy Company and the
Company. (Exhibit (10)-2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quar-
ter ended September 30, 1989, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1077 Agreement for Verification of Transfer, Assignment and
Assurption, dated as of September 15,1989, between San Juan Energy
Company, March Point Cogeneration Company and the Company.
(Exhibit {10)-3 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1989, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.78 Power Sales Agreement between The Montana Power

Company and the Company, dated as of October 1,1989. (Exhibit (10}-¢
to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1989, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1079 Conservation Power Sales Agreement dated as of December
11,1989, between Public Utility District No. 1 of Snohomish County and
the Company. (Exhibit (10)-87 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31,1989, Commission File No.1-4393)

10.80 Memorandum of Understanding dated as of January 24, 1990,
between the Bonneville Power Administration and The Washington Public
Power Supply System, Portland General Electric Company (Enron), Pacific
Power & Light Company (PacifiCorp), The Montana Power Company, and
the Company. (Exhibit (10)-88 to Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal
year ended Decernber 31,1989, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.81 Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for the Assignment of
Power from the Centralia Thermal Project dated as of January 1, 1990,
between Public Utility District No. 1 of Grays Harbor County,
Washington and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-89 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1990, Cormmission File
No.1-4393)

10.82  Preliminary Materials and Equipment Acquisition
Agreement dated as of February 9, 1990, between Northwest Pipeline
Corporation and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-9o to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1990, Commission File
No.1-4393)

10.83 Amendment No. 1 to the Colstrip Project Transmission
Agreement dated as of February 14, 1990, among the Montana Power
Company, The Washington Water Power Company (Avista), Portland
General Electric Company (Enron), PacifiCorp and the Company.
{Exhibit (10)-91 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31,1990, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.84 Settlement Agreement dated as of February 27,1990, among
United States of America Department of Energy acting by and through
the Bonneville Power Administration, the Washington Public Power
Supply System, and the Company. {Exhibit (10)-92 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990, Commission File
No. 1-4393)

10.85 Amendment No. 1 to the Fifteen-Year Power Sales
Agreement dated as of April 18, 1990, between Pacificorp and the
Company. (Exhibit (10)-93 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1990, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.86 Settlement Agreement dated as of October 1, 1990, among
Public Utility District No. 1 of Douglas County, Washington, the
Company, Pacific Power and Light Company (PacifiCorp), The
Washington Water Power Company (Avista), Portland General Electric
Company (Enron), the Washington Department of Fisheries, the
Washington Department of Wildlife, the Oregon Department of Fish
and Wildlife, the National Marine Fisheries Service, the U.S. Fish and
wildlife Service, the Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakima
Indian Nation, the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Reservation,
and the Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation. (Exhibit (10)-95
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to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1990, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.87 Agreement for Firm Power Purchase dated July 23, 1990,
between Trans-Pacific Geothermal Corporation, a Nevada corporation,
and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.88 Agreement for Firm Power Purchase dated July 18, 1990,
between Wheelabrator Pierce, Inc,, a Delaware corporation, and the
Company. (Exhibit (10)-2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quar-
ter ended March 31,1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.89 Agreement for Firm Power Purchase dated September 26,
1990, between Encogen Northwest, LP, a Delaware corporation, and
the Company. (Exhibit (10)-3 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1090 Agreement for Firm Power Purchase (Thermal Project)
dated December 27, 1990, among March Point Cogeneration Company,
a California general partnership comprising San Juan Energy
Company, a California corporation; Texas-Anacortes Cogeneration
Company, a Delaware corporation; and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-4 to
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1991,
Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.91 Agreement for Firm Power Purchase dated March 20, 1991,
between Tenaska Washington, Inc, a Delaware corporation, and the
Company. (Exhibit (10)-1to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quar-
ter ended June 30, 1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.92 Letter Agreement dated April 25, 1991, between Sumas
Energy, Inc. and the Company, to amend the Agreement for Firm Power
Purchase dated as of February 24, 1989. (Exhibit (10)-2 to Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1991, Commission
File No. 1-4393)

10.93 Amendment dated June 7, 199, to Letter Agreement dated
April 25,1991, between Sumas Energy, Inc. and the Company. (Exhibit
{10)-3 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1991, Commission File No.1-4393)

10.94 Amendatory Agreement No. 3, dated August 1, 1991, to the
Pacific Northwest Coordination Agreement, executed September 1s,
1964, among the United States of America, the Company and most of
the other major electrical utilities in the Pacific Northwest. (Exhibit
(10)-4 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1991, Commission File No. 1-4393) )

10.95 Amendment dated July 11, 1991, to the Agreement for Firm
Power Purchase dated September 26, 1990, between Encogen
Northwest, LP, a Delaware limited partnership, and the Corpany.
(Exhibit (10)-1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.96 Agreement between the 40 parties to the Western Systems
Power Pool (the Company being one party) dated July 27,1991. (Exhibit
{10)-2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

and the Bonneville Power Administration dated September 18, 1991.
(Exhibit (10)-3 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.98 Amendment of Seasonal Exchange Agreement, dated
December 4, 1991, between Pacific Gas and Electric Company and the
Company. (Exhibit (10)-107 to Annual Report on Form 10-X for the fiscal
year ended December 31,1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

1099 Capacity and Energy Exchange Agreement, dated as of
October 4, 1991, between Pacific Gas and Electric Company and the
Company. (Exhibit (10)-108 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fis-
cal year ended December 31,1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.100 Intertie and Network Transmission Agreement, dated as of
October 4, 1991, between Bonneville Power Administration and the
Company. (Exhibit (10)-109 to Annual Report on Form 10-X for the fis-
cal year ended December 31,1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.101 Amendatory Agreerent No. 4, executed June 17,1991, to the
Power Sales Agreement dated August 27,1982, between the Bonneville
Power Administration and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-110 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993,
Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.102 Amendment to Agreement for Firm Power Purchase, dated
as of September 30, 1991, between Sumas Energy, Inc. and the
Company. (Exhibit (10)-112 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31,1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10103 Centralia Fuel Supply Agreement, dated as of January 1,
1991, between Pacificorp Electric Operations and the Company and
other Owners of the Centralia Steam-Electric Power Plant. (Exhibit (10)-
113 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decernber
31,1991, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.104 Agreement for Firm Power Purchase dated August 10,1992,
between Pyrowaste Corporation, Puget Sound Pyroenergy Corporation
and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-114 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10105 Memorandum of Termination dated August 31, 1992,
between Encogen Northwest, LP. and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-115 to
Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1992, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10106 Agreement Regarding Security dated August 31, 1992,
between Encogen Northwest, L.P. and the Company. (Exhibit (10)-116 to
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1992, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.107 Consent and Agreement dated December 15,1992, between
the Company, Encogen Northwest, LP. and The First National Bank of
Chicago, as collateral agent. (Exhibit (10)-117 to Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1992, Commission File No.1-
4393)

10108 Subordination Agreement dated December 17, 1992,
between the Cormpany, Encogen Northwest, L.P, Rolls-Royce & Partners
Finance Limited and The First National Bank of Chicago. (Exhibit (10)-

10.97 Memorandum of Understanding between the Company
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31,1992, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10109 Letter Agreement dated December 18, 1992, between
Encogen Northwest, L.P. and the Company regarding arrangerents for
the application of insurance proceeds. (Exhibit (10)-119 to Annual
Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992,
Commission File No. 1-4393)

10110 Guaranty of Ensearch Corporation in favor of the Company
dated December 15,1992. (Exhibit (10)-120 to Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1992, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10111 Letter Agreement dated October 12, 1992, between Tenaska
Washington Partners, LP. and the Company regarding clarification of
issues under the Agreement for Firm Power Purchase. (Exhibit (10)-121
to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1992, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10112 Consent and Agreement dated October 12, 1992, between
the Company and The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., as agent. (Exhibit
(10)-122 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31,1992, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10113 Settlement Agreement dated December 29, 1992, between
the Company and the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) provid-
ing for power purchase by BPA. (Exhibit (10)-123 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1992, Commission File
No.1-4393)

1014 Contract with W. S. Weaver, Executive Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer, dated April 24, 1991. (Exhibit 10.114 to Annual
Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993,
Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.15 General Transmission Agreement dated as of December 1,
1994, between the Bonneville Power Administration and the Company
(BPA Contract No. DE-MS79-94BP93947) (Exhibit 10.115 to Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decernber 31, 1994, Cormmission
File No. 1-4393)

1016 PNW AC Intertie Capacity Ownership Agreement dated as
of October 11,1994 between the Bonneville Power Administration and
the Company (BPA Contract No. DE-MS79-94BPg4521) (Exhibit 10.116 to
Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1994, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10.117 Power Exchange Agreement dated as of Septermber 27,1995,
between British Columbia Power Exchange Corporation and the
Corpany. (Exhibit 10.117 to Annual Report on Form 10 for the fiscal
year ended December 31,1996, Comamission File No. 1-4393)

10.18 Contract with W. S. Weaver, Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer, dated October 18, 1996. (Exhibit 10.118 to Annuat
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996,
Commission File No. 1-4393)

10119 Contract with S. M. Vortman, Senior Vice President
Corporate and Regulatory Relations, dated October 18, 1996. (Exhibit
10119 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31,1996, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10120 Contract with G. B. Swofford, Senior Vice President

Customer Operations, dated October 18,1996. (Exhibit 10.120 to Annual
Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996,
Commission File No. 1-4393)

10121 Service Agreement dated September 1, 1987 between
Northwest Pipeline Corporation and Washington Natural Gas
Company for SGS-1 firm storage service at Jackson Prairie (incorporated
herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas Company Exhibit 10-A
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1994, File No. 11271).

10122 Service Agreement dated April 14, 1993 between Questar
Pipeline Corporation and Washington Natural Gas Company for FSS-1
firm storage service at Clay Basin (incorporated herein by reference to
Washington Natural Gas Company Exhibit 10-B Form 10-K for the year
ended September 30, 1994, File No. 11271).

10123 Service Agreement dated November 1, 1989, with
Northwest Pipeline Corporation covering liquefaction storage gas serv-
ice filed under cover of Form SE dated December 27,198g.

10.124 Firm Transportation Service Agreement dated October 1,
1990, between Northwest Pipeline Corporation and Washington
Natural Gas Company (incorporated herein by reference to
Washington Natural Gas Company Exhibit 10-D Form 10K for the year
ended September 30, 1994, File No. 11271).

10.125 Gas Transportation Service Contract dated June 29, 1990,
between Washington Natural Gas Company and Northwest Pipeline
Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Washington Natural
Gas Company Exhibit 4-A Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
1993, File No. 0-gs31). .

10126 Gas Transportation Service Contract dated July 31, 1991,
between Washington Natural Gas Company and Northwest Pipeline
Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Washington Natural
Gas Company Exhibit 4-A Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
1993, File No. 0-g51).

10127 Amendment to Gas Transportation Service Contract dated
July 31, 1991, between Washington Natural Gas Company and
Northwest Pipeline Corporation.

10128 Gas Transportation Service Contract dated July 15, 1994,
between Washington Natural Gas Company and Northwest Pipeline
Corporation

10129 Amendment to Gas Transportation Service Contract dated
August 15, 1994, between Washington Natural Gas Company and
Northwest Pipeline Corporation.

10.130 Washington Natural Gas Company Deferred
Compensation Plan effective September 1, 19gs.

10131 Form of Washington Natural Gas Company - Executive
Retirement Compensation Agreement reflecting all amendments
through August 16, 199s.

10132 Second Washington Energy Company Performance Share
Plan (amended and restated effective October 1, 1991) (incorporated
herein by reference to Washington Energy Company Exhibit 10-L1,
Form 10K for the year ended September 30, 1991, File No. 0-8745).

10133 Washington Energy Company Interim Performance Share
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Plan effective December 7,1994.

10.134 Washington Energy Company Stock Option Plan (incorpo-
rated herein by reference to Exhibit 10-C Washington Energy Company
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1984, File No. 0-8745).

10135 Amendment to Washington Energy Company Stock Option
Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Washington Energy
Company Exhibit 10-S, Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
1986, File No. 0-8745).

10.136 Amendment to Washington Energy Company Stock Option
Plan dated as of February 26,1988 (incorporated herein by reference to
Washington Energy Company Form $-8, Registration No. 33-24221).

! 10137 Washington Energy Company Stock Option Plan effective
Decemnber 15, 1993 (incorporated herein by reference to Washington
Energy Company Exhibit 99, Registration No. 33-55381).

10.138 Washington Energy Company Directors Stock Bonus Plan
{incorporated herein by reference to Washington Energy Company
Exhibit 10-O Form 10-X for the year ended September 30, 1990, File No.
0-8745).

10139 Form of Conditional Executive Employment Contract, filed
under cover of Form SE dated Decernber 27, 1988 (incorporated herein
by reference to Washington Natural Gas Company Exhibit 10-M.2,
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1994, File No. 1-11271).

10140 Amended and restated Washington Energy Company and
subsidiaries Annual Incentive Plan for Vice Presidents and above, dated
October 1994.

10141 Interest Rate Swap Agreement dated September 27, 1989
between Thermal Resources, Inc. and the First National Bank of Chicago,
filed under cover of Form SE dated December 27, 1989, (incorporated
herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas Company Exhibit 10-N,
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1994, File No. 1-11271).

10142 Firm Transportation Service Agreement dated March 1,
1992 between Northwest Pipeline Corporation and Washington
Natural Gas Company (incorporated herein by reference to
Washington Natural Gas Company Exhibit 10-O, Form 10K for the year
ended September 30, 1994, File No. 1-11271).

10.143 Firm Transportation Service Agreement dated January 12,
1994 between Northwest Pipeline Corporation and Washington
Natural Gas Company for firm transportation service from Jackson
Prairie (incorporated herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas
Company Exhibit 10-P, Form 10K for the year ended September 30,
1994, File No. 1-1271).

10144 Firm Transportation Service Agreement dated January 12,
1994 between Northwest Pipeline Corporation and Washington
Natural Gas Company for firm transportation service from Jackson
Prairie (incorporated herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas
Company Exhibit 10-Q, Form 10-X for the year ended September 30,
1994, File No. 1-1271).

10.145 Firm Transportation Service Agreement dated January 12,
1994 between Northwest Pipeline Corporation and Washington
Natural Gas Company for firm transportation service from Plymouth,

ING (incorporated herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas
Company Exhibit 10-R, Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
1994, File No. 1-11271).

10146 Service Agreement dated July 9, 1991 with Northwest
Pipeline Corporation for SGS-2F Storage Service filed under cover of
Form SE dated December 23, 1991 (incorporated herein by reference to
Washington Natural Gas Company Exhibit 10-S, Form 10X for the year
ended September 30, 1994, File No. 1-11271).

10.147 Firm Transportation Agreement dated October 27, 1993
between Pacific Gas Transmission Company and Washington Natural
Gas Company for firm transportation service from Kingsgate (incorpo-
rated herein by reference to Washington Natural Gas Company Exhibit
10-T, Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1994, File No. 1-11271).

10.148 Firm Storage Service Agreement and Amendment dated
April 30, 1991 between Questar Pipeline Company and Washington
Natural Gas Company for firm storage service at Clay Basin filed under
cover of Form SE dated December 23, 1991.

10149 Employment agreement with R. R. Sonstelie, Chairman of
the Board, dated January 13, 1998. (Exhibit 10.150 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1997, Commission File
No.1-4393)

10-150 Change in control agreement with T. J. Hogan, dated
August 17, 1995. (Exhibit 10.152 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31,1997, Commission File No. 1-4393)

10-151 Asset Purchase Agreement between PP&L Global, Inc. and
the Company. (Exhibit 2a to current report on form 8-K dated
November 13, 1998).

*10-152 Employment agreement with S.A. McKeon, Vice President
and General Counsel, dated May 27, 1997.

*"10-153 Employment agreement with R.L. Hawley, Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer, dated March 16, 1998.

*10-154 Employment agreement with J. Quintana, Vice President
External Affairs, dated March 20, 1998.

*12-a Statement setting forth computation of ratios of earnings to
fixed charges (1994 through 1998).

“12-b Statement setting forth computation of ratios of earnings to
combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends (1994 through 1998).

*21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

*23.1 Consent of independent accountants.

*23.2 Consent of independent accountants.

*27 Financial Data Schedules.

*Filed herewith.
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HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA!

IYEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31;
$ IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER-SHARE AMOUNTS

% CHANGE

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994  ‘9770°98
Operating Revenues
Electricity sales $ 1475208 $1,231424 $ 1198769 $ 1179330 $ 1,194,058 19.8
Natural gas sales 416,551 409,447 400,108 420,048 396,407 17
Other 15,581 36,031 50,402 31,740 42,020 (56.8)
Total operating revenues 1907340 1,676,902 1,649,279 1,631,118 1,632,485 13.7
Operating Expenses
Purchased electricity 752,147 614,929 562,314 523,514 458,700 22.3
Purchased gas 175,805 179,287 177,719 219,022 223,502 (1.9)
Electric generation fuel 56,557 41,455 40,645 35,658 47,166 36.4
Residential/farm exchange credit (55.562) (71,970) (103,154) (88,004) (63,942) (22.8)
Utility operations and maintenance 237,835 250,565 242,290 258,058 332,574 (5.1)
Other operations and maintenance 7,614 21,256 32,234 29,492 42,019 (64.2)
Depreciation and amortization 165,587 161,865 144,206 141,008 146,971 2.3
Merger costs e 55,789 4,835 —_— — —
Taxes other than federal income taxes 160,472 160,135 155,969 150,507 145,907 0.2
Federal income taxes 107,905 47,725 107,747 91,519 74,816 126.1
Total operating expenses 1,608360 1,461,036 1,364,805 1,360,774 1,407,713 101
Operating income 298,980 215,866 284,474 270,344 224,772 38,5
Other income (net) 9,192 28,066 1,593 (14,909) (22,572) (67.2)
Income before interest charges 308,172 243,932 286,067 255,435 202,200 26.3
Interest charges 138,560 118,234 118,716 127,054 122,888 17.2
Income from continuing operations 169,612 125,698 167,351 128,381 79,312 34.9
Discontinued operations (net of taxes) —_ 2,622 1,832 26,597 929 —
Net income 169,612 123,076 165,519 101,784 78,383 37.8
Preferred stock dividend accruals 13,003 17,806 22,181 22,654 20,383 (27.0)
Preferred stock redemptions _ (an) e e e E—
[Income for commmon stock $ 156,609 $ 105741 $ 143338 $ 79,130 $ 58,000 481
Common shares outstanding
(average, diluted) 84,768 84,628 84,449 84,193 83,830 (01)
Basic and diluted earnings per common
share from continuing operations $- 185 § 1.28 § 172§ 1.26 § 0.70 445
Basic and diluted earnings per common
share from discontinued operations —_— (0.03) (0.02) (0.32) {0.01) —_—
Basic and diluted earnings
per common share $ 1.85 § 125 $ 170 $ 094 $ 0.69 48.0
Dividends per share of common stock $ 184 $ 178 $ 1.67 § 1.67 $ 1.67 _—
Total assets (at year-end) $4720,6890  $4493370 $ 4.227,470 $ 4,244,568 $ 4,496,770 5.1
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% CHANGE

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 ‘971098
Indicators and Ratios!?
Capitalization (at year-end)
Debt (including short term maturities) 55.7% 52.9% 65.9% 49.3% 50.7% 5.3
Preferred stock? 7.3% 7.9% 6.1% 9.2% 8.7% (7.6)
, Common shareholders’ investment 37.0% 39.2% 28.0% 41.5% 40.6% (5.6)
Average cost of debt 7.2% 7.4% 7.7% 7.7% 77% (2.7)
Times interest earned
(before federal income taxes) 3.0 2.3 3.1 2.3 2.1 30.4
Dividend yield3 : 6.6% 5.9% 7.0% 7.2% 8.3% 11.9
Dividend payout ratio 99.5% 142.4% 98.2% 177.7% 242.0% (30.)
Book value per share $ 1600 $§ 1630 $ 1631 $§ 1627 $ 1701 (1.8)
Retumn on average common equity 11.6% 7.7% 10.4% 5.6% 3.9% 50.6
Return on total assets 3.3% 2.4% 3.4% 1.9% 1.3% 37.5
Effective tax rate 40.0% 33.2% 39.0% 39.1% 55.3% 21.6

1 Pro-forma results of Puget Sound Power & Light Company and Washington Energy Company for periods prior to January 1, 1997, except as indicated.
2 Includes $100 million Corporation-obligated, mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trust holding solely junior su
debentures of the corporation.

3 Calculated using Puget Sound Power & Light Company’s year-end stock prices for periods prior to January 1,1997.

bordinated,
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HISTORICAL OPERATING DATA’

(YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31) % CHANGE
1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 ‘971098
Energy Sales Revenues
Electricity?
Residential $ 540549 $529,990 $ 554318 $ 524748 $§ 532,124 2.0
Commercial 431,752 414,480 423,139 397,211 375,751 4.2
Industrial 180,959 166,473 170,596 168,501 163,574 87
Sales to other utilities 274,972 133,726 67,716 52,567 60,537 105.6
Other3 46,976 (13,245) (17,000) 36,303 62,072 —
Total 1,475,208 1,231,424 1,298,769 1,179,330 1,194,058 19.8
Natural gas
Residential 253,169 246,747 238,560 231,202 206,602 2.6
Commercial 96,116 97,233 94,251 97,396 91,749 (1.2)
Industrial 40,747 39,356 43,400 70,371 80,252 3.5
Transportation 14,211 14,631 12,812 10,762 8,399 (2.9)
Other4 12,308 11,480 11,085 10,317 9,405 7.2
Total 416,551 409,447 400,108 420,048 396,407 17
Total energy sales revenues $ 1,891,759 $31,640,8711 $ 1,598,877 $ 1,599,378 $1,590,465 15.3

Energy and Transportation Sales Volumes
Electricity (thousands of MWH)

Residential 9,314 9,320 9,350 8,972 8,914 (0.3)
Commercial 7191 7,022 6,807 6,539 6,302 2.4
Industrial 4,073 3,995 3,794 3,721 3,725 2.0
Sales to other utilities 9,940 7,446 4,556 3,804 2,832 33.5
Other4 327 160 429 46 128 104.4
Total MWH sales 30,845 27,943 24,936 23,082 21,901 10.4
Natural gas (millions of therms)
Residential 445 434 422 398 371 2.5
Commercial 194 195 188 180 175 (0.5)
Industrial 115 105§ . 19 188 214 9.5
Transportation 254 277 242 157 120 (8.3)
Total gas volumes 1,008 1,011 971 923 880 (0.3)
Customers Served (annual average)
Electricity
Residential 782,095 767,476 754,097 739,173 723,566 1.9
Cormmercial 94,118 91,517 89,613 87,404 85,203 2.8
Industrial 4,193 4,090 3,993 3,908 3,851 2.5
Other 1,437 1,389 1,371 1,346 1,325 3.5
Total electricity customers’ 881,843 864,472 849,074 831,831 813,945 2.0
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Continued from previous page

(YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31) % CHANGE
1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 ‘9771098
Natural gas
Residential 486,553 465,185 440,586 423,195 403,642 4.6
Commercial 42,273 41,158 39,651 38,378 37,112 2.7
Industrial 3,790 3,801 3,762 3,791 3,833 (0.3)
Transportation 123 128 106 55 36 (3.9)
Total natural gas customers> 532,739 510,272 484,105 465,419 444,623 4.4
Heating degree days
* Actual (at Sea-Tac Airport) 4,498 4,599 4,953 3,994 4.341 (22)
Normal (30-year average) 4,909 4,908 4,909 4,909 4,911 0.0
% colder (warmer) than average (8)% (6)% 1% (19)% (12)%
Average annual residential data
Electric usage per customer (KWH) 11,909 12,143 12,399 12,139 12,319 (1.9)
Electric revenue per customer $ 721§ 717§ 762 $ 727 § 735 0.6
Price per KWH (average) $ 0061 $§ 0059 $§ 0062 $§ 0060 $ 0.060 3.4
Natural gas usage per customer (therms) 914 933 957 941 921 (2.1)
Natural gas revenue per customer S 520 § 530 $ 541 § 546 $ 512 (1.9)
Price per therm (average) $ 0569 $§ 0568 $ 0566 $ 0580 S 0556 0.2
Utility Employees 2,996 2,840 3,068 3,336 - 3,504 5.5

1 Pro-forma results of Puget Sound Power & Light Company and Washington Energy Company for periods prior to January 1, 1997.

2 Operating Revenues in 1998, 1997, 1996 and 1995 were reduced

Company’s sale of $237.7 million of its investment in customer-owned conservation measures.

3 Includes PRAM adjustments and change in unbilled revenue
4 Includes change in unbilled sales.

5 In 1998, approximately 275,000 customers purchased both forms of enerqy from the company.

COMMON STOCK PRICE

RANGES, VOLUMES AND DIVIDENDS

by $46.7 million, $40.5 million, $41.0 million and $25.1 million respectively, as a result of the

1998 1997
PrICE RANGE DIVIDENDS AVERAGE PRICE RANGE DIVIDENDS AVERAGE
HiGH Low PER SHARE  DAILY VOLUME HiGH Low PER SHARE  DAILY VOLUME
First quarter 301/4 26 5/8 $0.46 153,420 26 231/2 $0.46 181,980
Second quarter 28 5/8 25 $046 . 209,470 261/2 233/4 $0.46 150,750
Third quarter 28 241/16 $0.46 194,440 2615/16 251/8 $0.46 70,980
Fourth quarter 29 257/8 $0.46 191,250 30 3/16 251/2 $0.46 166,180
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Corporate

INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Puget Sound Energy

P.O. Box 97034

Bellevue, WA 98009-9734
Phone: (425)454-6363

FORM 10-K

ecember 31,1998, as filed with the
available at no charge to shareholders

The report also may be obtained
through the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s EDGAR internet site
(http://www.sec.com).

TRANSFER AGENT FOR COMMON
AND PREFERRED STOCK
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services,
L.L.C, maintains the Company’s share-
holder records, distributes dividend
payrents and administers the Stock
Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment
Plan. They may be contacted at the
ddress and phone number provided
elow (see “Shareholder Records

d Services”).

IVIDEND CALENDAR

Juarterly dividends on common stock,
as declared by the Board of Directors,
normally are paid on the 15th day of
February, May, August and November
each year.

A copy of Puget Sound Energy’s Annual
eport on Form 10-K for the year ending

Securities and Exchange Commission, is

upon request to corporate headquarters.

STOCK PURCHASE AND DIVIDEND
REINVESTMENT PLAN

Puget Sound Energy’s Stock Purchase
and Dividend Reinvestment Plan
provides a convenient way to reinvest
dividends on Puget Sound Energy com-
mon stock into additional shares of
stock at market price. Shareholders also
may make optional cash investments
of up to $100,000 per calendar year for
the purchase of Puget Sound Energy
common stock.

More than 33,000 shareholders,
or approximately 58% percent of the
Company’s 57,000 common sharehold-
ers, participated in the plan as of
December 31,1998,

In order to receive a plan prospec-
tus, please contact ChaseMellon
Shareholders Services at the address
and phone number provided below (see
“Shareholder Records and Services”).

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Puget Sound Energy common stock is
traded under the symbol PSD on the
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE).
Preferred stock is traded on the NYSE
under the symbols PSD-PR, PSD-PRA
and PSD-PRC. The stock may be quoted
as PugSdEngy or PugetEn in financial
publications

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP
Seattle, Washington

GENERAL COUNSEL
Perkins Coie
Seattle and Bellevue, Washington

SHAREHOLDER RECORDS AND
SERVICES CONTACTS -

ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, LLC. .

Shareholder Relations Dept.

85 Challenger Road

Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660
(800)997-8438 _

TDD for hearing impaired:
(800)231-5469

From outside the US: (201)329-8660
Internet address:
www.chasemellon.com

PUGET SOUND ENERGY
SHAREHOLDER SERVICES
P.O.Box 97034

Bellevue, WA 98009-9734

(425)462-3898

FINANCIAL ANALYST CONTACT
Robert H. Adams
Director-Investor Relations
(425)462-3808

BANKER CONTACT
Donald E. Gaines
Treasurer

(425)462-3870

NEWS MEDIA CONTACT
Puget Sound Energy 24-hr. Media Line
(888)831-7250

EMPLOYMENT POLICY
Puget Sound Energy is an equal
opportunity employer.

Design: Cummings Company, Seattle; Photography: Jeff Corwin, Seattle; Portraits: Kevin Cruff, Seattle
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Williarm S. Weaver Richard R. Sonstelie
President & CEO, S Chairman of the
and Member of the Board

Board of Directors YRES A Puget Sound Energy
Puget Sound Energy Age: 53

Age: 54 Years as Director: 12
Years as Director: 8 '

William A. Gaines
Vice President-

James W. Eldredge Donald E. Gaines

Corporate Secretary,

OFFICERS
of Puget
Sound Energy

Dorothy A. Graham S Richard L Hawley
Vice President-
Human Resources
Age:s8

Timothy J. Hogan
Vice President-
System Operations
Age: 47

Stephen A. McKeon
Vice President &
General Counsel
Age: 52

Susan McLain
Vice President
Operations-Delivery
Age: 42

Gary B. Swofford
Vice President &
E Chief Operating
Officer-Delivery
Age: 57

Joseph Quintana
Vice President-
External Relations
Age:50

Charles W. Bingham Phyllis J. Carpbell

President

Douglas P. Beighle
Senior VP (Retired)

DIRECTORS

of Puget The Boeing US Bank of
c Washi
Sound Energy AZE%ZHY A gaes 41;1gton

Years as Director: 18 Years as Director: 6

Years as Director: 21

4 John W. Ellis
Chairman & CEO
The Baseball Club
of Seattle
Chairman (Retired)
Puget Sound Energy
Age:70

Years as Director: 30

John D. Durbin
Principal
Olympic Capital
Partners

Age: 63
Years as Director: 15

Donald J. Covey
Chairman of the
Board (Retired)
UNICO Properties
Age:70

Years as Director: 17*

Robert L. Dryden
Executive VP
(Retired)
Boeing Commercial
Airplane Group
Age: 65

Years as Director: 8°

Dandel J. Evans Tomio Moriguchi
Former Governor Chairman & CEQ
& US Senator, . L} Uwajimayna, Inc.
State of Washington - Age: 62

Age: 13 ) Years as Director: 11°*
Years as Director: 9

Sally G. Narodick

CEO & President

Apex Online Learning, Inc.
Age: 53

Years as Director: 10°

“Includes service as a Director of Washington Energy Company
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